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COMMISSION ON FEDERAL VOLUNTARY
SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 1987

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,

COMMITTEE ON POST OFFICE AND CIVIL SERVICE,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:07 a.m. in room
15, State Capitol Building, St. Paul. Minnesota, Hon. Gerry Sikorskipresiding.

Mr. Slim 'Ism. The Subcommittee on Human Resources will cometo order. I would like to welcome everyone this morning. I amgoing to begin with an opening statement. We will then view ashort film put together by a young person on community service.
Then I will introduce members of our first panel, some of the
unsung heroes that we will be singing about this morning.

"National Youth Service" is a phrase that has many definitions
but one common goal: the development of patriotism and communi-
ty spirit by encouraging the country's youth to devote a portion of
their lives to working for the community good. As Richard Danzig,
leading advocate of youth service for some time, has said, "Nation-
al service is not an idea, and still less a plan, but rather an ideal
encompassing a variety of often inconsistent ideas. The core of theconcept is the conviction that the nation and its citizens will be
better off if more persons devoted a portion of their lives to publicservice."

A National service will benefit America in a number of ways.But none is so central as the development of a stronger sense of
American spirit and commitment to the American community in
America's youth. National service will instill a sense of citizenship
in the full sense of the wordmore than taxes, or pledging alle-
giance. Citizenship means involvement. It means putting back, re-turning to the community that nurtured you some of the talents
and abilities you developed that are of help.

This idea that service to others reflects the best of humankind is
not new. The ancient Roman, Pliny the Elder, who was a major
philosopher, stated that "For a man to help another is to be a god."
Closer to our own time and place, Fenry David Thoreau wrote that"If I can put one touch of a rosy sunset into the life of any man or
woman, I shall feel that I have worked with God."

So the belief that lending a hand, putting back, improves the
human spirit and the human community is a common thread
through our country's history. From barn raisings and quilting

(1)
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bees to the Civilian Conservation Corps and the Peace Corps, from
the generous welcome to the Pilgrims by America's first citizens
through Thanksgiving 1987, from armed revolution through terri-
ble world wars, from horrible natural disasters to great depres-
sions. Throughout our history Americans have remembered the
words of John Winthrop's famous sermon to the Puritans on the
ship Arabella, As they sailed into harbor, preparing a new life in
America. He said, "We must strengthen, defend, preserve and com-
fort each other. We must love one another. We must bear one an-
other's burdens. We must not look only on our own things, but also
on the things of our brethren. We must rejoice together, mourn to-
gether, labor and suffer together. We must be knit together by a
bond of love."

National youth service can continue and reinvigorate this most
American of American traditions. It must, for enormous areas of
need go unmet in our society today, and huge budget deficits have
stifled our ability to meet these needs. National youth service can
harness the energies of America's youth to respond where tradi-
tional government cannot and will not. National youth service can
mean thousands of illiterate people learning to read, better care for
the elderly and disabled, child care for the working poor. It can
mean safety for latch key kids, cleaner parks, and forests, and im-
provements in inner city housing. All without burdening future
Americans with an ever-increasing debt.

Finally, youth service can directly benefit participants by provid-
ing training, job experience, personal development, and career
counseling. Many of today's youth have not had the experience of
responsibility to oneself and one's coworkers and employer, which
comes with employment. National youth service will provide that
while teaching job skills.

Why are we holding a hearing in Minnesota? The idea of a na-
tional youth service has sparked the interest of a number of Mem-
bers of Congress and experts on youth volunteerism. Last April,
this subcommittee held a hearing in Washington to hear from
those people. We are in Minnesota today to hear from the real ex-
perts. Young people, like those in front of us right now, who par-
ticipate in voluntary service now. And people who will participate
in the future. We will hear from Minnesota college presidents,
deans, and youth service practitioners who have a hands-on under-
standing of the potential of a youth force excited by public service.
We are also going to hear from St. Paul councilman Jim Schiebel,
who is a current board member of the Friends of VISTA, a volun-
tary non-partisan organization which works to preserve, protect,
and promote the VISTA program.

What is being done on a federal level? A number of initiatives
aimed at developing a national youth service have been introduced
in Washington. Last August, I introduced legislation considered by
this committee, H.R. 3096, to establish a commission to look at the
opportunities for youth service in and with the federal government.
Last April, I introduced two bills with Senator Dale Bumpers of
Arkansas which will enable young people facing looming debts
from college education to work for non-profit organizations. One
presses the Department of Education simply to promote and adver-
tise and utilize an already existing provision of the Higher Educa-
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tion Act which allows a graduate to defer payment on his or her
loans while serving as a full-time employee at a minimum pay
level with a non-profit charitable organization. The other bill ex-
tends the current forgiveness of these loans that is enjoyed by
VISTA and Peace Corps volunteers to others in similar situations.

In addition, I am cosponsoring bills to estatlish a commission to
study youth service and provide matching grants to states and lo-
calities for operations of voluntary service programs involving

0 youth.
Finally, I am cosponsor of a bill which grows directly from one of

our nation's most successful youth service programs ever, the Civil-
ian Conservation Corps. H.R. 18 follows in the footsteps of great,
but far too small, state programs, like the Minnesota Conservation
Corps. It creates a new American Conservation Corps.

I want to tell a story my dad has told me many times of his in-
volvement in the CCC in Minnesota. My dad was involved in the
CCC in Minnesota in the late 30's. He planted trees, built dams
and bridges, and did a lot of conservation work that still stands
today. It protects Minnesota's land and water and produces wild-
life. It stands as a good symbol of what can be done when young
people are organized and the government assists. The CCC saved
my dad's family farm during the Great Depression. It taught my
dad hew to work and get along with other people. And today across
America, there stand three billion trees, mighty sentinels, which
stand as daily reminders of what young people can do in just one
relatively small project, if we let them.

Hubert Humphrey said, "Our great universities and colleges
need to become active participants in community life, not meadows
of meditation nor islands of retreat." You can hear him say that.
Our young must become full citizens. And public officials must not
sit on their hands and watch idly while vital needs continue to go
unmet in America, and the patriotism of a whole generation of
Americans is squandered. There is real evidence that too many
young Americans today are less interested in public service and
more interested in private gain. Less in putting back and more in
getting theirs. This is understandable in part. Scandals rock the
White House around the basement shredders, and Wall Street and
insider dealings, and some of the TV pulpits. Young people are
asked to carry a larger burden of their education at the same time
that it is harder and harder for middle income families to stay
above water. But we know that when called to devote their talents
and energies to the service of others, the youth of today are no less
American than those who preceded them. They know, deep down,
that as educator Nathan Schaeffer said, "At the close of life, the
question will be not how much have you got but how much have
you given? Not how much have you won, but how much have you
done? Not how much have you saved, but how much have you sac-
rificed? Not how much were you honored, but how much have you
loved and served?"

Let us see this film.
. [Video is shown.]

Mr. SIKORSKI. That is why we called today's hearing to showcase;
the skills and dedication and the energy of six representatives of
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Minnesota's high schools and colleges before us today. Through
service projects, they have enriched the lives of many people.

We are going to hear from Mark Senn, who, with Dan Conrad,
put together that video we just saw. Mark worked with the elderly
in a nursing home, the Edgewood Nursing Center. That is where I
got my start when I was sixteen. For two and a half years during
high school, I worked as an orderly in a nursing home in the Red
River Valley. You learn a lot about yourself, about life, about pa-
tience and love.

His classmate, Lisa Holrnboe, has brought communication to the
often isolated lives of speech impaired children. Sheila Jakes, a
sophomore at the Minnesota Academy for the Deal, has enriched
Minnesota's natural resources as a member of the Minnesota Con-
servation Corps. Jennifer Remmick, a student at St. Ben's, has
helped Special Olympic kids soar to new height,. Kristine Petter-
sen spends long nights volunteering at a shelter for the abused and
homeless, while other Augsburg students are enjoying campus par-
ties. Greg Rhodes graduated from Carleton College and the youth
service program there and is now coordinating campus-wide service
programs at Carleton.

Perhaps Minnesota is home to such inspiring young people be
cause, as Garrison Keilor says, "all the children are above aver-
age." I pray that these special people will be the average in Minne-
sota and America; that the accomplishments of these young people
reflect the real desire of young people across America to be a force
for improving our nation and the world.

Again, thank you all. I wanted to sing for the unsung this morn-
ing, but if you heard my voice, you would pray that we would just
talk. We will begin with Mark Senn, who did this video. Go ah 4d,
Mark.

STATEMENT OF MARK SENN, COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
STUDENT, HOPKINS HIGH SCHOOL

Mr. SENN. Thank you. I would like to start off by telling you
some reasons why I think community involvement is a good idea
for Minnesota and for the nation. Three reasons: it gives communi-
ty help; it gives the students help; and serendipity occurs.

On helping the community: some examples are people working
with emotionally disturbed children, working with the terminally
ill. These are examples that I have seen and have been a part of it.

With students, it helps give them skills working in an institu-
tion, what to do and what not to do. They learn responsibility by
needing to be there on time, and being counted on by the people
they work with. They also learn interpersonal communication,
which is very important in the world today.

The third most important thing is that serendipity occurs. They
go into the program thinking that they are going to be giving so .
much to people who need them, and they leave the program having
gained much more than they originally intended to. One example
of that is the first time that I was exposed to this program was
when I was with a large class of my peers. Before we went out in . .
the field, we went to a state institution to see if it was a place
where we might want to work. On the trip over on the bus we, me

8
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and my classmates, were joking about the old people, and the men-
tally retarded people, being crazy and how they smelled, and how
these institutions smelled. It was all a big joke to us. The reason
why we were joking, now that I look back Ji it, is that we were
afraid. Because we had never been exposed to it before, and this
was a way of covering uy our fears. When I entered the institution,
I was immediately silenced. There were people in wheelchairs
crying out, "help me, help me." There were people barking, doing
some very strange things. It changed my view completely. One of
my classmates that I had known since seventh grade was so over-
taken by this that he joined in a procession they were having with
musical instruments. This was a person I had seen go through
school putting other people down, and not planning on doing much
of anything. He changed immediately by this experience.

To me this is the most important thing that can happen. Besides
giving the people the help, it is teaching young people some impor-
tant, valuable lessons that they do not learn in school and cannot
learn in any other class. It is teaching them that there are other
people in the world. People that need help; that are not as fortu-
nate as us. And not the same. It has changed my views and I was
quite prejudiced against the mentally retarded and I joked about
them, not giving them much credit. They are real people just like
you and I. I think it is important that the youth understand this
because they are going to have to deal with it when they grow
older in the United States.

In closing, I would just like to say, again, that I feel community
involvement and youth service is good for both the needy people
and for the students. That it is serendipitous in that you receive
much more than you actually give in the program on both ends.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mark Senn follows:]
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Stateetnt by Hark Senn
Community Involvement Student

Hopkins High School

A Community Involvement program is good for the community and

the students in at least three ways: I. It gives the community help.

2. It gives students a chance to learn responsibility and skills.

3. Serendipity occurs.

The school is one of the most powerful resources in the

community. The Hopkins community has received help from students in

several ways. For example, two girls worked with emotionally-disturbed

kids, teaching them patience through cooking and creative projects. One

boy spent time at a state institution with a piing man terminally ill

with a brain tumor. By being his friend, he changed the status quo

by breaking down the thought that the terminally ill should just be

put away. He took him out to eat--in the real world--at a restaurant.

Two other students worked as a daycare center for the elderly. They helped

the elderly cope tiith growingolder, and with activities to keep active.

Often the students just sat and talked--to be a friend and to listen.

Com.,unity involvement also teaches the students a lot. It

teaches them responsibility, the importance of being on time, what it's

like to be counted on. They learn skills--how to work in institutions,

how to work with handicapped people. The biggest skill learned is

interpersonal communication.

Third, serendipity occurs. To tat, serendipity means looking

for one thing and findiq something else of greater value. What I've

suggested is that kids went out to work in their community to make a

difference, to be helpful in many ways. But the; ended up learning a

lot about themselves and how to work with other people. The whole

experience is serendipitous. They go into the program thinking they

will be giving to others and end up receiving much more than they give.

I have stated that community involvement is good for the

community and the students. It gives the community help in many ways.

Secondly, it teaches the students responsibility and skills. Thirdly,

it is serendipitous because the students receive mucti more than they

give.

10'
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CCRSI4ITY SMVICE AS A P/airAY o ntr"-ace
Diane Malin and Dan Conrad

The cost logo:tint question for anyone planning to start a ccersinity service

program in a school is: :S the student likely to got out of it or *How will sihe

be different as A result of being a volunteer,- In this article we will attempt to answer

this question as clearly as we can to help educators decide if youth service is an option

that strAild to included in their curricula.

We should note, at the outset, that we are unashamedly advocates of youth con-unity

service. lair enthusiasm is neither recently gained nor based on a compulsion to ju-p en

the latest educational bandwagon. It is based on core than IS years of experience runnino

service programs, doing research and evaluation on their irpact, and teaching vourses and

conducting workshops en experiential education for teachers, principals, and youthworters.

It is alternately raising and irksome to see touted as "now," an educational idea

that is as old as Adam and Due and that has had a respected place in American educational

theory and practice since at least the turn of the century. We needn't recount its

history here except to note that it has a history.and a body of research behind it twat

alloys claims for its eLficacy to be grounded on more than speculation or wishful

thinking. what involvement in conninity service can accomplish is solidly established.

Whether schools desire to achieve what service programs can deliver is the real issue that

educators oust decide.

mat you sight reasonably expect students to get from a conninity service provran

depends, of course, on its quality. A good program can be defined very sLoply as ono in

which the student plays a significant role in working with others to perform tasks which

both the young person and the community regard as worthwhile and needed. Further, a hood

nragran supports the service activities with a clear and explicit curriculum that

challenges students to think about and reflect on the meaning of their volunteer



experiences.

Both elerents ate critical, but the foundation is the experience it7elf, what the

students actually do. There io a asst array of volunteer tasks that can provide a

stimulus for learning. The exarples that follow are but a sampling to illustrate the

kinds of things young people in con:unity service are doing.every day (Conrad c Hedin,

1987).

At 7:00 a.m., on his way to school, Jereey stops at the senior citizen high rise to
put drops in the eyes of an elderly wean suffering (rem glatooma. She needs the
drops daily, but cannot adeinit.Jr then due to arthritis. Jerry's friend Ashley
will perform the same service on her way hone (nos school this afternoon.

Iwo high .icheol students, Beki and Paul, are Ming around a 4th grade claespoce

monitoring the children's mock emergency calls on 911. They're called PA non by the
kids, for they are instructors of the Red Cross' Basic Aid Training (BAT) pro-ram, a
six-sessiod course itt basic home survival skills for kids who often find thonselves

alone when they come here (roe school. It was precisely this lesson in petting
emergency half that last fall enabled one 9 year-old kid to 33V3 his grandfather's
life -ben he fell dada with a heart attack.

Troy and Angela sit in a corner of the Resource Center with Chao and Thanh-na.
Ito latter are not long rc-oved Cron refugee.camps near the Cembodian border. The
former are peer tutors in the English as a Second Language (ES'.) program at the

school. They cone hero everyday during their Sth parsed. Each ESL student who
desires it (1001 this year) is assigned a peer tutor, who inveriOlralso beeves an
advocate a friend.

Three young men in the weed snap are arilding and drastically modifying skateboards.
an a class visit to a day school for severely handicapped children, they noted the
children's restricted possibilities for independent movement and attcnercus play. An

avid skateboarder among the visitors wondered whether any of the kids could rove
their ants enanh to propel themselves along the floor while lying on a Icw board
with wheels. It *maid possible to the staff. The young men put out an urgent call

for broken or dust-gathering boards. They cot scree and now are dismantling then and

adding width, padding, chin rests and stripe.

Right after school, high school students, sane yembers of Cainp Pi: hers from Boys

Club, take their regular weekly turn as phone counselors at a ban telephones of

the Phcne-a-Priend program. This is a service geared to children wno find themselves
home alone and/or lonely in the hours after school. The teenagers talk to the

youngsters, who call an ever; topic Lneginable from fears of an abusive neighbor to

help with a math prehlem.
These examples demcostrate that there are many settings and organizations in whies

yam; people can take on significant tasks and play responsitie roles. Ubile many argue

for coummity service as a way to enhance or remediate young people's lagging sense of

responsibility, caring, and empathy, the examples above elnwthese activities can do far

12
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more. They can, and to be meaningful must, benefit tho larger community by providing the

persampower to work on commsmity problems that could not be so effectively addressed

without such a cadre of young volunteers.

They also benefit the school or youth agency from whence the student volunteers coe.

Two of the more obvious are increasing the range of meaningful curricular options offered

to students and giving the organization a new and more positive image as a resource to the

connunIty instead of a mere "holding vat" or "preparation center" for teenagers.

Finally, and most importantly, the students gain personally and intellectually Ewa

their experiences and that is the focus of the remainder of this article.

One of the most =mon discoveries in studies of student service programs is that

participants will report "learning more" from their service experiences than from other

classes -- even, and not at all infrequently, from all their other high school classes

combined. This remarkable assertion occurs with such regularity in formal evaluations of

community service programs and in student journals and papers that we have finally come to

sallow it ought to be taken seriously as a legitimate finding.

While the assertion of "learning more" is a clear fact, its actual meaning is rot so

obvious. In analyzing data Eras service programs we have concluded that the "more"

attested to is not so much a reference to amount as to significance, not so much to more

information but to more imporant insight, wisdom and knowledge. Now does this hapen? and

why?

A simple story, that comes not from an American high school student in the 1980's out

from India, many centuries ago, may serve to illustrate in one dramatic example what we

have cane to see as the dynamics of how students cone to "learn more" from direct

encounters with significant human problems.

In India, many centuries ago, a young prince stirred restlessly under the benevolent

proscription of the king that his on be shielded from knowing the pain and ugliness of

the world by restricting him to the sumpticus confines of the palace and the life of the

Aoyal Court. One night the prince slipped away and set out on a journey on his own. On

3
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this journey he encountered, in turn, an old man, a sick man, a dead man, and a mendicant.

these encounters, with the likes he'd never seen before, shattered his narrow and

=tonable view of the world and led him to devote the rest of his life to the search for

Truth: about life, the world, himself. The prince never returned to the palace and never

became a king. He became, instead, the Buddha.

The basic elements of the Buddha's story parallel -very closely, if more dramatically.

the journey of awakening described by young people in the course of their service to

others. Their own words describe the process so vividly and authentically that we will

provide only a phrase or two to sketch out what we see are the dynamics of learning from

service and allow student comments to illustrate their meaning.

In acting as the providers of service young people shed the limitino definitions of

themselves as immature teenagers and as'passive. depenent. students.

As I walked through the hallway...(of the elementary school

in which she was to begin leading children in theatre
experiences)...I realized what : had gotten myself into...a
challenge. But as I step through the door I transform from
student to person.

(After describing the first day's activities. she ended her
journal entry with) The first day went extremely well,'but
Pm glad / don't have to go through it again. Now to return
to school and became student again.

They assume roles of sicnificance.

What's kind of neat is that I'm treated as a teacher.
That's something that's kind of wierd to me because I've
always been the kid and then suddenly It put in someone
else's shoes.../t's not like I'm working under the
teacher because I AM the teacher(

end affirm this new role through meaningful interactions with others.

4
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I felt I talked to certain residents on an adult level,
rather than adult and 'teenage' level

They enter new settincs. encounter unfamiliar people, from which they min new information

and undsrstandina about people and places hitherto foreicn to them.

I feel bad when they're called bums. They realize what
they are, they're street people. 1 kinds understand why
they're there. People end upon the streets because of
depression costly. They have a divorce, or they lose

the right to see their kids, and they get depressed and
end up on the streets. Or they lose their job or their
housing, and they get depressed.

One guy 1 regularily talked to a lot said suddenly one day,
'I don't want to talk to you -- you're a kid.' I was hurt.
But I found out his wife had just denied him the right to
see his kids. He was lashing out at me as a kid and as a
woman.

They broaden their world, increase the ranee of places and people they know about, and

with wham they feel a connection:

I have cane a lo way though. I remember my first few
days at Oak Terrace. I was scared to touch people, or the
doorknobs even. And I used to wash my hands after I left
there every single day! Can you believe it? Now, I go tnd
get big hugs and kisses from everyone. Get-this -- I even
eat there! That's a horror story for same people.

where they not only serve others but Cain insight,

Maggie knows just what to say. She really picks re up.

We came here to volunteer Maggie, but she volunteers us:

and affirmation.

I used to make jokes about retarded people when I was
younger, and now they make me feel important.

Responsibility, for the person Giving service, is ran than obedience to external

rules. It becomes a ,erscm-.11v-felt obligation to fulfill commitments to others rig tne

following student discovered after missing a day at her placement):

As I entered St. D's it was my joy to see Adam wearing a

5
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smock covered with paint washing his hands at the sink.
'Hi.' I said.
'Did you go to school yesterday?' he replied shortly.
'Yes,' I said guiltily.
'Why didn't you come?' he demanded.
'I didn't have a ride to get back fran here ;' I explained,

thinking st as I could. When I started to touch
his shoulder - jerked away and said 'Don't!' So I
left him alone.../ felt like a criminal.

And learning is not merely answerina a teacher's questions to net a grade, but askinc your

cvn questions to understand and to know what to do.

(Another student, after describing another crisis) When a
little one panics like that I have to wonder what goes on
inside their heads? What sparks the fear? %hat rakes them
so terrified...? How come only a few children...react this
way? It makes on wonder about their home life...(etc.).

And when learning is from real life, and the oonsecuences are real, you may have to

question the surface appearance, the easy answer, and grapple with the deeoer c-x-olextties

cf life and relationships.

Paul (a severely and multihandicapped child] is like any
3 or 4 year old. He is full of energy and always wants
to play.../ began recalling the warm feeling he
gave me when he hugged me on Monday [An event reported
earlier as a great triumph). Today, for a time, he
rejected me. His behavior wasn't rational and I
rationalized that he rejected me for no sound reason.
I then realized that his Monday hug may have been just
as irrational. I felt as though that little 'retard'

had tricked me and I was confused.

Acts of service often allow, even demand, that individuals act on Parts ^' tnonsql -es

previously underutilized, perhaps even barely recognized in themselves or by others,

which are affirmed and strenathRned through practice.

This can be seen in a young man choosing to work with infants,

I didn't think they would give the job to a guy.
Society has always thought that nen were too tougn
to handle children and that they didn't know how to
handle then correctly, or wouldn't want to. Well, I was out
to prove then wrong.

6
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The first day I started I was a little nervous, since Jodi
said that I was the first male to join the staff at New
Horizon Daycare in chair 17 years of service...And it wasn't
that great at first. I had to change diapers, wipe noses,
bottle feed them and, most of all, put up with their bloody
whining and cryins. rstarted to think that maybe I bit off
more than I could chew. But after a week or two I got used

to it and it was no big deal....

All I can say is that I realy love these kids. Can you

believe that? Enjoying being with babies? Well, they've
really affected my life and I'll miss them....

and in a suburban cheerleader venturing into the heart of a city slum to minister to

street people.

This was my senior year and I wanted to do something
out of the ordinary...There's a stereotype of
cheerleaders as being air-headed, sweet, nice, pure,
petite, pretty...Well, I'm completely the opposite.

Affirminn these hidden parts of the self can be perolexina to peers,

When I tell friends that I work with children they say
'How can you stand them?' or 'They're just brats,
couldn't you have found something better to do?'

and ray be met with disbelief. The revelation that a hockey player with the leigue radon:

for most penalty minutes in a season also worked with Downs Syndrome children hr ,;14 th,.;

remark:

You can't mean Dilly: Have you ever seem him play
hockey? He's the meanest dude in the league!

It may even brim derision.

Oh, I hear it all the time. Just about every day
people ask me, 'Don't you hate going there with all of
those old people?' Darryl Reuben always gives me a
classic one, 'Goini to work with the old farts again,
huh ?' I can only ignore these remarks....

The result may be a subtle distancing -- a leavina behtnd of ore's ceers and ore's former,

more limited. self.

I have learned so much about myself and life and God

1"1



14

from going to Oak Tertacu. / hate to think what my
life would have been like if I'd never been working
there. I'd probably be as prejudiced as the rest of the
people....

People die there, of course. Everybody dies, so what
makes one human greater than another. We are all the
same. Old people at Oak Terrace are the same as me, I
an no better t'an them. Maybe that's the whole meaning
for me going there. I just wish I could explain to others
what I mean, make then understand. If they only knew.

In giving service to others, one travels on a road that brings one in contact, as it

did the Buddha, with life's ultimate situations. It may be obviously and dramatically so

as in seeing death for the first time:

On October 19th, I was asked to help out a woman. Her
name was Mabel. I had to help her eat and to drink because
she was paralyzed from the neck down. She was in a
wheelchair because of her disabilities. I tried to feed
her, but she refused the food. She drank some milk, but
she didn't seem to swallow well. She didn't mumble, she
didn't moan. She was just quiet and happy. After trying
to feed her I was asked to do somebody's fingernails.

About a half hour later, I went back to,Mabel's room to
see how she was doing, and she had passed away. I didn't
know 'quite what to do. I preceded to close her eyelids
like in the movies -- and got a nurse.

or, more subtlely, in responding to the loneliness of anther's fears

One day I was thinking about Jeff'(an 8th grader in a gym
class where this high school male volunteered) and I
remembered I hadn't seen him since they started swimming. I
looked for two days to find Jeff and then the Hall Monitor
helped me and I told him to get Jeff tomorrow, bring him to
the Detention Room and keep him there until I got there. Well
that worked out great. When I got there I took him down to a
roan in the locker roan. He wanted to be alone and didn't
want anyone to see him. So many people have picked on Jeff
that he likes to be alone and away from other kids...they
laugh when he can't tie his own shoes. Well now Jeff and
I have our own gym class. I'm the teacher. We work in
the weight roan, or the t,pper gym playing basketball and
sometimes we even run laps.

Jeff is feelinj better and better about himself. We caught
the one kid that has been really picking on him and took
care of that and no one has been picking on him since.

or :. child's tears.

8
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Kids really notice when you've been gone a few days. When
I walked in the door they went totally wild and started
yelling 'Susan's back) Susan's back!' and jumped all over
me. I thought they were gonna smother on and I had a time
calming them down. But Laura (her special charge) just
sat there. I went right over there and asked what was
wrong. She didn't even look at me. I didn't say a thing.
I just hugged her. She had tears, and so did I.

(NOTE: the above accounts take on an added poignancy with the additional knowledge that
the first writer was a "loner" himself in junior high and in perpetual trouble to senior
high and that the second writer's having been "gone a few days" was the result of
hospitilization from an attempted suicide.)

Seeing life more wholly, and more of it, rev cast a different and more inten.m Licht

on one's own life:

I can not even begin to count the number of days that I
trudged into Glen Lake, thinking about all the 'huge'
problems in my life I was facing: homework, fights with
my sister, money about college, the right guy not calling
my house, gaining too much weight, missing a party...and
the list goes on. I cannot think of a single time where I
came out after class not feeling 1001 better about life,
and also feeling guilty about only thinking negatively
about things that are so trivial in my life.

and the institutions of society (This from a day care center].

First of all, the children were all pet into groups
depending solely on their age, it was kind of like being
put into army squads...Another thing that bothered on was
when Hrs....told on I wasn't to get too close to the children,
that I was there as a volunteer to help watch the kids...I
thought day care consisted of someone caring for another
person's child...not just sit around watching so they don't
get into things they are not supposed to be in.

These people don't put their emotions into what they do, and
they're really not there for the kids, they are physically
but they need more than that. They need a friend, not a
circus tamer. They have a lot to say, but who listens? They
have a lot to give, but who takes? Here it's jam 'en in and
take their money!

Service provides a new perspective from which to critically analyze their own world. to

notice hitherto hidden peculiarities within the more familiar.

My kids ham so such loving, touching, caring affection
towards on and one another. It's amazing how such better
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you feel about yourself after getting all of this loving
affection atmosphere. It makes me wonder where, and when,
we lost all that loving an.: affection? You never see it
in high school. In what grade does all this stop?
Why does it stop? Does it have to stop? Does our
society put such pressure on us that if boys hold
hands in elementary school they will be laughed at and get
the image of fags? Do parents, teachers stop this
relationship? or ifs it the whole environment in which we
live?

The path of service, as a journey of awakening, opens one to truths both joyful and

disheartening. It may reveal beauty where ugliness was expected, friendship where there

was fear: but it may also reveal superficiality in what had been meaningful and add

confusion to what before had been so easily understood. It may underscore sadness,

injustice, and_pain -- as it did for this young woman who, in her journal reflects on the

loss of innocence in store for a child with whom she is working.

'I don't want you,' he stated defiantly.

I just shrugged my shoulders and told him I liked his shoes.
I said they were 'cool' and that they 'looked good.' So we
discussed his shoes...Somehow the subject changed to
Sccobeedoo. 'I used to watch that aloe!' I exclaimed. Adam
told me Scocbee fell down into a tree while being chased
by some man who was mad.

This is the important stuff. Talking to a tiny person about
Scoobeedoo. It beats all the death in El Salvador. It puts
El Salvador worlds away. Of course you don't want to tell
this kid that he's going to grow up in a sick world with a
demented society where people die for nothing. Kids don't
understand. Adults don't either. Nhy mention the fact that
as ho gets older he will be confused, judged by others; no
they aren't God but still Its their self-appointed task to
judge you; or worse, you may become an asshole..The worst
thing about assholes is that they don't realize that they
are assholes. It's sad. So you talk to this tiny person and
the world can stop or pass you by and it just doesn't matter.

Sorry, I got off on a tangent. Anyway, Adam the brat
became my friend.

Yes, service can lead one to see more of life and more of the truth of life. nut

that is not its only power, nor its greatest. the greatest power is that it reveals .hat

one is not Powerless, that a contribution can be given, a difference can be made, that ",
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can do something," that "I am significant."

I never knew that 1 person could give so much to =other by
just plain being there. Those people needed me, I've never

totally been wanted like this before. I can tell by their
daily hugs and smiles that spread over their faces....

Before, I used to want to go into business, but now I'm
thinking of going into physical therapy. It always
interested me, but I never thought that I could do it.
After this semester I really found out what I can and
can't do. And, I think I can do it!

These comments do not reflect all that is learned from service, nor do they reflect

what is learned by every student. Learning from service is, like any real learning, highly

personal and idiosyncratic, inflecting both the potentialities in the learning envirorment

and, of course, in the learners themselves. We don't mean to imply that every service

experience is a roaring success. Our own contact with experience is too close for thr.t,

our own awareness of barren placements and students who don't respond to even !N. -.,test

opportunities for learning haunt us.

But neither are the comments above anomalies, special cases, or rarities.

Adolescents are curic.is, they are seeking, they wonder about themselves and world.

The power of service as a path to learning is that it places them in a context UitErg the

learning is real, alive, and has clear consequences for others and for themselves. it

does not reach everybody, but it reaches a far higher percentage, more deeply, that) 0,11

other method we have tried.

Is this education? Is this appropriate for schools? In the ebb and flo,. of

educational fads and fancies, a prominent catch- phrase of our tire is that we mv+e to be

stimulating "higher level thinking." Most often those enamored with this idea don.; 4.31,

what this "higher level thinking" should be about. When they do, the meaning cg

phrase turns out to be something ranging from more intimate aguaintance with rte !vst
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thinking and writinp of our culture to a more sophisticated understanding of mathematical

and scientific principles. But "higher leve, reasoning," if it is to be truly useful,

rust also eno,age people in eeepening their knowledge and understanding of themselvesand

their world and to think more complexly about the fundamental issues of life. For

adolescents, the fundamental questions are: who an I? where ar,I going? is there any point

to it ell? The fundamental issues are those of relationship, significance, connection,

suffering, meaning, hope, love, end attachment.

Are these not also what education is really about? The purpose of education cannot

merely be to pass tests, accunulate facts, get decent grades, get into college. These are

moans, at best, the end of which most be to arrive at sane truth, for myself, scout

myself, and about my relationship to the world in which I live.

To opt for service as a part of the curriculum involves, we believe, a callitmqnt: a

=mit:lent that what is most important in the lives of adolescents is also what :5 nnst

important in their education.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you, Mark. Thank you for the video and for
sharing those experiences. I had the parallel experience, hundreds
(If years ago, when I went to the nursing home for the first time. It
is good to see that things do not really change. Our next witness is
Lisa Holmboe, also a senior at Hopkins High School. I noticed that
you are visually disabled a little bit, and because of that you have
a keen sense of hearing. You have developed your hearing and
have used that with speech impaired kids. Is that what you have
been working on in your community service?

Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Do you want to tell us about that experience?

STATEMENT OF LISA HOLMBOE, COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
STUDENT, HOPKINS HIGH SCHOOL

Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes. Monday through Thursday I go for about one
hour a day to Tang len Elementary School and I am not in the full
Community Involvement Program, but I am an intern for the first
semester. I help Mrs. Tyce. I work with four students, Jake, Scott,
John and Johanna. Each one has difficulties pronouncing such let-
ters as TH, S, and R. First I try to establish a friendly relationship
so it is easier for them to work with me. Since I am visually im-
paired, they sometimes feel uncomfortable.

Mr. SIKORSKI. They feel uncomfortable?
Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes, the students sometimes feel uncomfortable at

first, so I make it that it is not such a big thing. They all really
like me now, I guess. We work on flash cards and short readings of
newscasts or something like that. They read from them and try to
pronounce their troubled letters. For example, in each one, they
may have a lot of S'F, or TH's, or R's. For every good letter, they
say, they receive a point. After 400 points, they get to pick a prize,
which could be baseball cards or whatever. I also try to think of
games that would be helpful to them and that they would get
something out of, and have fun at the same time.

I guess I get a lot of personal satisfaction out of going because
others have helped me so much. Being blind, they have helped me
to lead a somewhat normal life as a blind person in a sighted
world. So I guess it really helps me to return my thanks to them
and say that you have helped me so much that I can come back
and help you do something.

I would really like to see more young people getting involved in
the community, because some of my friends say, "Isn't that boring?
Doesn't that get repetitive?" We do a lot of the same things every
day but every day the kids come in with a different attitude and
they look on it as different. I guess I get a little bit more out of it
everyday.

I just want to say that if I had not gotten the services I got from
the other kids that have gone out into the community, and helped
me, I might not be here where I am today. I think I am doing
pretty good so far.

[The prepared statement of Lisa Holrnboe follows:]

23.
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Stotement of Liso Holrnboe

Senior, Hopkins High School

I'm Lisa Holmbop cram Mionotonka. 1 am 18 years old

and a senior at Hopkins High Senn)]. I have bean vivually

handicapped since l'had encephalitis at the age of three.

Monday through Thursday for about one hour a day I go

to Tanglan Elementary School on the Community Involvement

Intcrnc.hip Program. 1 help Mrs. Marcia Theis who is a

speech therapist. I work with four students -Jake, Scott,

John and Johanna. Each one has difficulty pronouncing

certain lotterin such as "th, s and r." First, I try to

estealish a friendly relationship with each student so they

feel comfortable wyrkine with mu. Then wr work with flash

Cards And short readings which contain a lot of those

letters. For every "gaud" letter they sa), they resolve a

Point. I have to keep track of their puln%. un w counter.

After About 450 points they get to chou.ze u prize. I also

try to make up games that will be fun for thRm.

As an intern I will receive one credit toward this

semester. Next semester 1 plan to enrol in the full

Community Involvement program which requir s two hours a day

including a throe-week seminar. This cous..! is offered as a

two-credit Social Studies couran and will kly toward the

required in credits needed in Social Stueis.

I find that 1 got a let of personal sr isfactioo from

working with those kids. This is somuthin. I can do that is

a positive influence, and may develop into e possible career
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choice. It also gives me an opportunity to help others as

bthers have helped MIT to lead a somewhat normal life Ai. a

blind person in c uighted world.

I would really love to see more young people gut

involved in the community. both children and senior

ciiZene seem to resound to thy onthusiasm and energy of

teenagers.

In closing 1 would like to ymphosizo that it is

impurtant that all pouVld got involved in their community.

Without the help I received, I prObably wouldn't ha hero

today.

25
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Mr. SIKOP.SKI. You have done wonderfully so far. Lisa, I thank
you very much. Our next witness is Sheila Jakes, a Montgomery,
Minnesota, sophomore attending the Minnesota State Academy for
the Deaf, who has helped maintain the beauty and environmental
integrity of Minnesota through her work with the Minnesota Con-
servation Corps the last three summers.

Ms. Jakes' statement is in sign language. Ms. Linda Duck low
serves as Ms. Jakes' interpreter.

Ms. JAKES. Yes, that is correct.
Mr. SIKOFtSKI. The floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF SHEILA JAKES, SOPHOMORE, MINNESOTA STATE
ACADEMY FOR THE DEAF

Ms. JAKES. My name is Sheila Jakes. I would like to greet you all
here. I am 16 years old, and am in the 11th grade. I go to the Min-
nesota State Academy for the Deaf. It is in Faribault, Minnesota.
My home town, as he said, is Montgomery. I am here today to talk
about the experiences that I had through the Minnesota Conserva-
tion Corps. My father first found out about it for me, about th-
Minnesota Conservation Corps, through some contacts at the school
in Faribault. He was the one that told me about it. I have been
participating in the program now for three summers, 1985, 1986,
and 1987. Some of my experiences includedI did waterproofing of
steps, I cut down trees, filled in holes in the forests, and cut down
tall grass. And picked up litter and debris that was in the forest.
We took care of that. This all happened in Northern Minnesota. I
learned so much. I learned how to use different tools. Things like
shovels, equipn-zzt for cutting down the grass, axes, and different
types of breaks. I learned how to work very hard, and how to take
responsibility as I have never taken it before. I learned how to get
along well with my crew leader and my crew.

When I first went to the Minnesota Conservation Corps, I had
never had any kind of job before in my life. So that whole thing
had been a real new experience for me. It, of course, was a little bit
awkward for me. The second summer, though, with the Minnesota
Conservation Corps increased my experiences. My feeling of compe-
tence and self respect for me increased. Just confidence in what I
could do so much that really helped me to know that I could suc-
ceed. It helped me to learn to be a person who could cooperate not
only with my deaf friends, but it expanded my horizons more so
that I could cooperate and get along with other people, and I am
hrpeful now that this will help me in future job experiences.

The crew leader was a person who really helped me learn how to
get along with the other hearing people in the experience. It
helped me as a deaf person in a hearing world when the crew
leader and the crew people know that I can succeed. They would
ask me things like, can you hear the birds singing or can you hear
the fish jump in the lake? They would ask me questions like this,
and I would explain no, I cannot hear those things. But instead I
have eyes for my ears, and I can see things. I have very keen vision
and that helps me. For example, I can see something real far away,
or use my peripheral vision to see things out of the corner of my
eye that they would not notice. I could see a tree falling instead of
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them hearing it, and I can see real far away things, like hand sig-
nals from another deaf person real far away.

The Minnesota Conservation Corps, to me, was one of the most
positive experiences of my life thus far. It helped me in communi-
cation with not only my sign language, but I taught sign language
to other people who were participating in the program who were
hearing people. I taught them sign language who were interested
so that we could communicate together.

Finally, one of the best things to me about what I was allowed to
do, I was allowed to go to Boston. They had a competition there
and I won first place using some of the tools I had learned how to
use here in Minnesota. I have enjoyed this all so much. It has been
such a valuable experience for me being allowed in this program. I
believe that working with this program has helped the state parks
so much, also. It is helped them to be a more enjoyable place for
people to use. It has impressed me knowing that we can to do
something to help keep them clean and a healthy place for people
to go to. It is been a wonderful program for me to participate in
and I thank you.

[The prepared statement of Sheila Jakes follows:]
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Testimony by Sheila Jakes before U.S. House of Representatives Sub-Committtt
on Human Resources Regarding National Youth Services. Friday, November 13,
"987, St. Paul, Minnesota.

My father found out about the Minnesota Conservation Corps program through

school contacts and told me about it. I participated in the program for

three summers, 1985, 1986 and 1987. I cut down trees, waterproofed steps,

filled in holes on steps and trailc, cut tall grass, made trails and picked

up litter at state parks in Northern Minnesota. I learned how to use tools

such as a shovel, clippers, weed cutter, ax, rake and hand raw. I learned

how to work hard, be responsible, cooperate and accept criticism from my

crew leader and the crew.

When I first went to the Minnesota Conservation Corps, I never had a job

before. It was a new experience. I felt awkward. During my second summer

with the Conservation Corps, I gained more experience and felt braver. By

the third summer, I felt even braver and gained a lot of experience. This

experience gave me more confidence and I learned to be more cooperative

with my deaf friends. I now have more confidence in finding a ,,ob cut in

the world with hearing people. My best me.r.ory is the staff and crew leader

vho taught me how to cooperate.

I also learned that being deaf and working outdoors has advantages. The

crew leader used to ask me if I could hear the birds ning or hear the fish

jump in a lake. Of course, I said no, but I explained I can use my eyes

instead cf my ears to see nature and use my eyes well on the job. For

example, I can spot movement faster than a normal hearing person could.

I can see a falling limb or tree and hand signals from a distance faster.

Being with Deaf participants at the Minnesota. Conservation Corps win a

28
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positive experience. Everyone could communicate in sign language. I also

had the opportunity to teach other hearing participants to sign. I liked

teaching sign language to interested people.

Finally, my best experience with the Conservation Corps program was being

selected to go to Boston to participate in the games. I got first place

using tools that I learned how to use in Minnesota. I have enjoyed my

experience with the program. I believe my work with the program helped

the state parks in Minnesota be a more enjoyable place for people to use

and be impressed by the neat parks. I would encourage interested, young

people to go and participate in the Minnesota Conservation Corps program.

20
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Mr. &imam. Thank you. If we have trouble with this legislation,
we will have to call on you with your award winning tool expertise
to do some work for us.

Greg Rhodes graduated from Carleton College. He was in a serv-
ice program at Carleton College as a student and has gone on and
become director of Carleton's Acting in the Community Together
Program, the A.C.T. Program. As a student, Greg worked at the
Northfield Food Shelf and last summer worked with the homeless
in the Twin Cities. Now in his new job everyone tells me he is help-
ing to make Carleton's Volunteer Program a model of excellence. I
might mention that the person who wrote this is to my right and is
also a Carleton graduate. So he had to put about two extra sen-
tences for Carleton. Greg, go ahead.

STATEMENT OF GREGORY P. RHODES, A.C.T. COORDINATOR,
CARLETON COLLEGE, NORTHFIELD, MN

Mr. RHODES. I appreciate this opportunity to talk about the im-
portance of community service and underscore some of the points
made by the people who have already spoken. Such service is valu-
able for many reasons. Most notably, it draws the volunteers out of
their own small world,,enabling them to better understand human
conditions. It also encourages an ethic of service. Community serv-
ice as has been demonstrated here brings out the best in people,
their generosity, their concern for others, and their desire to
"make this world a better place."

I came late to the world of community service. In my senior year
at Carleton, I finally did what I had been promising myself I would
doI volunteered at the food shelf. My commitment was not earth
shattering. But my small effort had an effect, moving me from the
world of promising to the world of participating. I do not think I
am alone; many people experience the feeling that they should
become involved, but it takes time to overcome the inertia that has
kept them passive for so long. Involvement has meant a great deal
to me, broadening my horizons, and making me reconsider how to
channel my talents and energies. My application for the position as
volunteer coordinator grew directly out of the positive experiences
I have had as a volunteer.

My involvement also affected my choice of what to do this last
summer. Whether to work with the homeless, to work for money,
whether to travel. I did finally decide to spend the summer with
the homeless. I learned many lessons. I grew a great deal. I could
not sit here and describe all those things because it would take too
long. But what is important for this hearing about those experi-
ences is that there was some impetus for me to look beyond my
own self interests. And that impetus was provided by my previous
experiences with community service.

My story is not unique. Nor is it exceptional. At Carleton, over
270 students have been involved in community service during the
first two months of school. Some have started slowly, like I did,
making that first effort to get involved. Starting slowly is okay be-
cause often it leads to a rewarding and enjoyable experience, pro-
viding the impetus to do more. It is not so much how you start but
that you start. Commitment and enthusiasm develop from there.
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Why is community service important? I believe for three reasons
in particular. First, it gives a person a focus outside of oneself,
overcoming narrow self-interest. It encourages one to build rela-
tionships with new and different people, which leads to a broader
understanding of people and society. It builds an ethic of service.
All of these things are essential for people who want to be active
participants in a democracy.

This is why the government should be concerned about, and I be-
lieve involved, in community service. Because it has an enormous
stake in encouraging an active, understanding public.

What specifically should the government do? One popular idea
that was mentioned by Congressman Sikorski is loan forgiveness.
Harvard does this with its law students who spend a certain mini-
mum of time after graduation doing (low paying) public service
legal work.

This option is particularly important in light of the recent cut-
backs in federal aid to college students, forcing them to rely even
more heavily on college loans (assuming student can get them). As
I can attest, finishing one's undergraduate experience with $10,000
or even $15,000 in loans, is frightening enough if you are entering
the job market with some hope of a good salary. It could be enough
to make some people pass on public service work because of the
low pay.

This forgiveness option should be broadened, offering loans to
students who want to do an extended community service project
while they are still in school. Students from lower income families
often have no choice but to work in the best paying job they can
find during their summers, so they can contribute to their educa-
tion. But I submit that community service work is valuable and
educational and should be available to those who need to help pay
for their education. The government, federal and/or state, should
provide a loan to persons covering the loss of income resulting from
non- or low-paying service work, allowing students to continue to
pay for their education. The loan, like others, could then be forgiv-
en if a person worked in community service after graduation.
Better yet, the government could provide grants to low income stu-
dents doing service work. These students are often saddled with
enough debt as it is. They would very likely be unwilling to incur
more even with the possibility of forgiveness.

Finally, the government should encourage institutional support
for community service programs. There are many sectors where
this is possible: students at secondary schools and colleges seem
likely candidates, having large populations of people with a great
deal of energy and enthusiasm. Federal work-study funds can cur-
rently be used to pay a student doing community service work, but
the paper work discourages many schools from taking advantage of
this. Applying for work study funds in this manner should be made
easier.

I would make one caveat about community service. And that is
that it should never be used as an excuse or a vehicle through
which the government abdicates its role in providing for those in
need. The notion that private charities, civic groups, and individ-
uals should somehow take care of our hungry, homeless, and unfor-
tunate, is a farce. This problem is too large and when we pass it off
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to a group lacking the resources to address the issues adequately,
we leave the problem unsolved. On the other hand, I would encour-
age partnerships between government, industry, and private aid
groups which allows for better use of resources, and it enables indi-
vidual citizens to give of themselves to help those in need. But gov-
ernment must be willing to take a lead role in this and provide the
necessary resources.

Because community service provides a focus outside oneself,
broadens one's understanding, and encourages an ethic of service,
it benefits more than just those people who are directly involved.
There is no doubt that the volunteer and the recipient gain from
their relationship, but it does not end there. All of society benefits
from the lessons volunteers learn as they become more active, en-
gaged, understanding citizens. Service brings out the best in people.
Is not that what we really want to encourage?

[The prepared statement of Greg Rhodes follows:]
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6 November, 1987

Gregory P. Rhodes
A.C.T. Coordinator

CalNblt
One Nonh College Susie

Northfield, Minnesota 55057400
1507) 6634029

I appreciate, this opportunity to talk about the importance of
community service. Such service. is valuable for many reasons,
most notably because it draws volunteers out of their own small
worlds, enabling a deeper understanding of the human condition,
and encouraging an ethic of service. Community service brings
out the best in people -- their generosity, concern for others,
and desire "to make this world a better place."

I came late to the worldkof community service. My senior year at
Carleton I finally did what I had long promised myself I would
do: volunteer a the food shelf. My commitment wasn't earth-
shattering -- a few hours once a month, carrying bags and
stocking shelves. But my small effort had an effect, moving me
from the world of promising to the world of participating. I
don't think I'm alone; many people experience the feeling that
they should get into the game, but it takes time to overcome the
inertia that has kept them on the sidelines cheering rather than
on the field participating.

Involvement has meant a great deal to me, broadening ay horizons,
and making as reconsider how to channel my talents and energies.
My application for the position as volunteer coordinator at
Carleton was motivated by positive experiences I buys had as a
volunteer.

My involvement also affected my choice of what to do between
graduation and the start of my job -- what to do with my summer.
I pondered several options. The most obvious was working for the
construction company that helped is earn my way through college.
The money tempted me -- I could purchase yuppie toys I'd always
wanted. A second option was travel, if I could scrape up the
cash. But because of my volunteer,experiences, a third option
presented itself: working with the homeless, another game I'd
been watching from the sidelines for too long.

I chose, finally, to spend my summer with the homeless of

81-183 0 - 88 - 2

33



30

Page 2

Minniapolis. The lessons learned from this experience, the
personal changes made -- are far too numerous to mention here.
Indeed, they aren't really the subject of this testimony. What
is important, though, is that there was some impetus for me to
look beyond my own self-interest, an impetus provided by previous
experiences with community service.

My story is not unique, nor is it exceptional. Two stories of
other Carleton students illustrate the benefits of community
service.

One Saturday a few weeks ago a student went out to rake an
elderly lady's lawn. Asked how it went, he gave a warming
response. He and the lady hit it off, which was especially
terrific for him; the student had never had a close relationship
with his grandparents, and this woman opened a whole new world t,
him. He saw senior citizens in a new way, one that placed them
in a context that was positive. The student had grown and
learned a lesson he would never get in the classroom.

Another story involves a Carleton student making weekly visits to
one of the local retirement homes, building a relationship with a
resident there. This continued for five or six weeks -- until
recently, when the senior citizen died unexpectedly of a heart
attack. The loss caused the Carleton student considerable pain,
which isn't remarkable unless one considers how briefly the two
had known each other. In a short time they had gained an
intimacy of obvious importance to the student, and probably to
elderly person as well. Ard such intimacy is essential in our
too often cold and impersonal world. It humanizes and encourages
a broader understanding of many different types of people. This
is true not only for the volunteer, but for the recipient as
well, who can't help but be affected by the caring shown towards
himself or herself, and can also learn about different kinds of
people.

The experiences mentioned are not isolated events; they represent
the experiences of many people. At Carleton, over 270 students
have been involved in community service during the first two
months of school. Some have started slowly, like I did, making
that first effort to get off the sidelines and into the game.
Starting slowly is okay, because most often it leads to a
rewarding and enjoyable experience, providing the impetus to do
more. It's not so much how you start, but that you start.
Commitment and enthusiasm develop from there. Eventually you
might even become a hardcore volunteer, devoting large amounts of
time to several different efforts.

Why is community service important? It gives a person a focus
outside of oneself, overcoming narrow self-interest. It
encourages one to build relationships with new and different
people, which leads to a broader understanding of people and
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society. And it builds an ethic of service. All of these things
a tOOMUcuiside oneself, a broader understanding of people and

-jea ethic of service -- are essential for people who
;participants in a democracy.

Ile government should be concerned about, and
Wed in, community service -- because it has an

stake in encouraging an active, understanding public.

wilmi specifically ald the government do? One idea that has
been tossed around and gained popularity is loan forgiveness.
H arvard does this with its law students; those who spend a
certain minimum amount of time after graduation doing (low-
paying) public service legal work are eligible for loan
forgiveness.

This option is particularly important in light of the recent
cutbacks in federal aid to college students, forcing them to rely
e ven more on loans (assuming students can get them). Finishing
one's undergraduate experience with $10,000 or even $15,000 in
loans, and $25,000 to $50,000 for graduate students, is
frightening enough if you're entering the job market with some
hope of a good salary. It could be enough to make some people
pass on public service work because of the low pay.

This option should be broadened, offering loans to students who
want to do an extended community service project. Students from
wealthy backgrounds have many choices during their summer breaks:
work to help pity for college, get a paying or (more likely) non-
paying internship for experience, travel, or volunteer with a
community service organization. But for students from lower-
income families, there is no choice but to work. Working to
contribute to your own education is a positive experience, but
submit that community service work is valuable and educational.
The government, federal and/or state, should provide a loan to
persons covering the loss of income resulting from non- or low-
paying service work, allowing students to continue to pay for
their education. The loan could then be forgiven if a person
worked in community service.

Better yet, the government could provide grants to low-income
students unable to afford the loss of income towards collPutl
who would like to spend a summer doing service work. These
students are often saddled with enough debt as it is; they would
very likely be unwilling to incur more.

Finally, the government should encourage institutional support
for community service programs. There are many sectors where
this is possible: secondary schools and colleges seem likely
candidates, dealing with large populations of people with a great
deal of energy and enthusiasm. Students at these institutions
are in their formative years; lessons learned now about service
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will 'stay with them for a lifetime. Federal work-study funds can
currently be used to pay a student doing community service work,
but the paper work discourages schools from taking advantage of
this. Applying work-study funds in this manner should be made
easier.

Another institution to encourage is the corporation. Many
endorse employee community service; some even allow people to use
company time. Incentives, perhaps including tax breaks, could be
used to encourage more corporations to support this activity.

One caveat: community service should never be used as an excuse
or a vehicle through which the government abdicates its role in
providing for those in need. The notion that private Charities,
civic groups, and individuals should somehow take care of our
hungry, homeless, and unfortunate is a farce. This simply passes
the problem off to a group lacking the resources to address the
issues adequately. On the other hand, creative partnerships
between government, industry, and private aid groups should be
encouraged, allowing for a more efficient use of resources, and
enabling individual citizens to give of themselves to help those
in need. But government must be willing to take a lead role in
this, and provide the necessary resources.

Because community service provides a focus outside of oneself,
broadens one's understanding, and encourages an ethic of service,
it benefits more than just those people who are directly
involved. There is no doubt that the volunteer and the recipient
gain from their relationship, but it doesn't end there. All of
society benefits from the. lessons volunteers learn as they become
more active, engaged, understanding citizens. Service brings out
the best in people, and isn't that what we really want to
encourage?
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you, Greg. Our next witness is Kristine Pet-
tersen, who is a student at Oxford College in Minneapolis and, as I
said in a previous introduction, puts in a night now and then at the
homeless shelter near Oxford while her fellow students are study-
ing or enjoying a game or partying. She is over there having her
own party. Kristine, do you want to tell us your experiences?

STATEMENT OF KRISTINE PETTERSEN, STUDENT, AUGSBURG
COLLEGE

Ms. PurreRsEN. Sure. I volunteer at the shelter for the homeless
at Our Savior's Lutheran Church, which is in Minneapolis. I try to
do it at least once a month. Sometimes, as you said, it is hard to
get into the swing of things. And it is a whole separate world. But
now that I am continually volunteering, it gets to be easier and
easier. I would like to tell you what goes on once I get to the shel-
ter.

I arrive at 6:30 p.m., and the guests come at 7 p.m. We also have
a full shelter. They are always people that need to sleep overnight
in the church. We have the same people coming in for about a 30
day span, the same people come in. There are usually only about
three women; then there are about 18 to 19 men. First they sign up
for jobs for the evening like washing the dishes.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Kristine, the 30 day span, is that a rule or is that
what happens?

Ms. PETTERSEN. No, that is what happens.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Naturally?
Ms. PETTERSEN. Naturally, yes. Then they move on. They sign up

for jobs for the night and also for the next morning. Then we pro-
ceea to go through those things. The people, the guests mainly sit
in the TV room and watch TV during the night while the others
are doing the jobs they signed up for. I go upstairs to the kitchen
with one of the guests to help prepare dinner and we prepare an
evening snack. Serve that. P nd have a chance to talk with people if
they waiit to. Usually, they are really talkative. And they like to
hear about my life. That helps me to clear up things in my mind. It
is good for me too Like the others have been saying, that it is a
give and take situation. I have gained a lot because it is such a dif-
ferent reality than mine. It is so simple, the way they live. I really
enjoy that simpleness, and how the biggest issues for them are
washing the dishes, cleaning the tables, and who is going to empty
the trash, stuff like that. Usually I am not so concerned with that.
That is taken care of in my life. So that is really good for me to
have a give and take.

One thing that has been hard for me is my position of authority
over these people who are older than I am. Most of them are older.
There are teenagers, but most of them are middle aged people.
Some of them do not want to do their jobs and it is up to me to get
them to do their jobs at night or in the morning. That position of
authority has been hard for me, but I think that is good for my
character. I have learned to stand on my own two feet, and to help
other people see things that should be done.

Right now, Augsburg is starting a new program called HOPE,
Helping Other People Experience. Basically, we are trying to start

;
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a file that will be kept in the file at the college center for students
to come and look up certain volunteer programs in our community.
It does not necessarily have to be for the shelter. I happen to be
interested mainly in the shelter so people can come directly to me
and ask me about that. But we are just starting a file at Augsburg
for people who are interested in community service, whatever kind
strikes their fancy. So that is what happening at Augsburg. Thank
you.

[Prepared statement of Kristine Pettersen follows:]
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Statement of

Kristine Pettersen

Student, Augsburg Colige
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Mr. &iconic'. Thank you, Kristine. And finally, Jennifer Rem-
mick from the College of St. Benedict and St. John's, who, through
her involvement with the Special Olympics, has helped kids who
cannot walk to soar. She is a student director at St. Ben's program,
VISTO. Why don't you go ahead?

STATEMENT OF JENNIFER REMMICK, STUDENT DIRECTOR,
VISTO, COLLEGE OF ST. BENEDICT

Ms. REMMICK. Thank you. Chairman Sikorski, I thank you so
much for the opportunity to express my support for this necessary
and long awaited bill. I am from Minot, North Dakota, and cur-
rently live in St. Joseph, Minnesota. I am a senior at the College of
St. Benedict, majoring in elementary education, hoping to pursue a
degree in special ed next fall.

As a freshman at the College of St. Benedict, I joined an organi-
zation called Volunteers in Service to OthersVISTO. VISTO is a
volunteer organization consisting of six areas of interest and 17 dif-
ferent programs. Currently, VISTO's volunteer list is comprised of
650 names of active volunteers. The program is organized by a
group of coordinators, who are also volunteers, who oversee the
other volunteers in their direct contact with the recipients. These
people give an average of five hours to ten hours per week.

In an organization such as VISTO, the volunteer as well as the
recipient receive satisfaction. Combined, these two groups of people
form relationships that help them to achieve their goalswhether
they be physical, mental, or emotional. It is not uncommon to see
tears of gratitude at a Special Olympics awards ceremony or linger-
ing hugs after a Senior Citizens social. Through the giving of one's
self by the volunteers, in cooperation with the unbounded accept-
ance of the recipients, we see the development of community be-
tween college students and children, the handicapped, and seniors.

The spring of my sophomore year, I was appointed Area Volun-
teer Coordinator for the handicapped. The duties of my position in-
creased, thus limiting my contact with others. My position did,
however, expand my knowledge of volunteerism. I was responsible
for the operation of six areas ranging from religious education to
the mentally handicapped to coaching swimming and diving to the
physically handicapped. We held monthly meetings and volt -deer
appreciation functions. My main duty was the organization of
transportation to and from the site of service. Times, dates, and
meetings had to be arranged for over 90 volunteers and 130 recipi-
ents. Our handicapped program stretched over a 40 mile radius
touching individuals in group homes, institutions, achievement cen-
ters, and private homes.

Last spring, I was asked to fill the last student level position in
VISTO, that of Student Director. Although my time with the re-
cipients has been virtually eliminated, I have become closer to
them. After being associated with VISTO for three years, I have
formed bonds with many of the recipients.

I have many duties as Student Coordinator. My job now encom-
passes not only the handicapped area, but an additional five areas
of service. Over 650 volunteers are involved with the handicapped,
senior citizens, Project Friends, religious education, youth and spe-
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cial services. Again, many of my duties involve transportation and
meetings, bringing together the ideas and needs of over 650 special
volunteers.

As one can see, many of the jobs in VISTO deal with our fund-
ing. VISTO is a non-profit organization. Therefore, we cannot solic-
it or raise funds in any way. We operate solely from allocated
funds from the College of St. Benedict and St. John's.

For example, neither of our staff of advisors are salaried, necessi-
tating an annual turnover. This lack of continuity in our advisors
leads to chaos and inefficiency as they adjust each fall to their posi-
tion. If it would be possible to make our advisor positions salaried,
ideally through an increased budget, VISTO would not only grow
but operate more efficiently as well.

At the beginning of each year, VISTO submits an itemized, an-
ticipated list of expenses for the coming year. We are given $1,500
from each department of the respective school's Campus Ministry.
This $3,000 is then added to an agreed upon allocation from the
Joint Funding Board of the two schools. Because we are private in-
stitutions, we are fortunate enough to ask for and receive these al-
locations and even use of facilities.

At state institutions, this would inost certainly be more difficult.
Without the funding made by the two schools, volunteer programs
such as VISTO would not exist. For the 1987-88 academic year,
VISTO has been budgeted a total of $5,800. From this budget, we
fund all transportation, duplicating, public relations, and apprecia-
tion functions. VISTO has been operating on a similar budget
every year, always ending the year $200-$500 in debt. For the
1987-88 year, VISTO added another program. We hold this to be
our yearly goal, yet VISTO received only $300 more than last year.
With this strict budgeting, we are forced to limit our expansion in
other areas of volunteer service.

Without additional funding, as would be provided by this bill
before the House, VISTO and other volunteer programs are in seri-
ous trouble. The additional funding would make expansion of exist-
ing programs a reality and the formation of new programs, a possi-
bility. Without the support of our schools, VISTO at the College of
St. Benedict and St. John's University would be greatly diminished.
Federal funding for volunteer programs would not only encourage
existing programs, it would relieve the financial burden on private
institutions to support programs like VISTO. Thank yoe

[Prepared statement of Jennifer Remmick follows:]

4V



40

RR 3096 THE COMMISSION ON FEDERAL VOLUNTARY SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES
FOR YOUNG PEOPLE ACT OF 1987

TESTIMONY GIVEN BY JENNIFER J. REMMICK

It is a great honor to represent Senator Gerry Sikoreki and

the current bill (HR 3096 The Commission on Federal Voluntary

Service Opportunities for Young People Act of 1987) before the

House. I thank you for the opportunity to express my support for

this necessary and long-awaited bill.

My name is Jennifer Resnick. I an from Minot, North Dakota

and live currently in St. Joseph, Minnesota. I am a Senior at

the College of St. Benedict majoring in elementary education and

hope to pursue a degree in special education in the fall of 1988.

My interest in being a volunteer began with an overnight

camp-out with ten enatally and physically handicapped

individuals. It was the longest night of my life, but it helped

to define and influence my future plans. That outing was seven

years ago. Since then, I have given five to ten hours per week

to different programs of volunteer service.

As a freshman at the College of St. Benedict, I joined an

organization called Volunteers in Service to Others--VISTO.

Visto is a volunteer organization consisting of six areas of

interest and seventeen different programs. Currently, Vizto's

volunteer list is comprised of 650 names of active volunteers.

The program is organised by a group of coordinators who oversee

the volunteers in their direct contact with the recipients.

These people give an average of five hours per week to others in

need.

I became an active VISTO member in the area of Special
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Olympics,. where I coached mentally and physically handicapped

individuals in various sports. The following year I was

appointed Assistant Volunteer Coordinator. My duties included

arranging transportation and setting and coinciding times and

meetings with the Special Olympics contact person in St. Cloud.

I remained in direct contact with the athletes as our basketball

teem played in the division championship that year. It is haris

to express the satisfaction and gratitude I felt after our team

won after two rears of work.

In an organization such as VISTO, the volunteer as well as

the recipient recieve satisfaction. Combined, these two groups

of people form relationships that help them to achieve their

goalswhether they be physical or mental or emotional. It is

not uncommon to see tears of gratitude at a Special Olympics

awards c'remony or lingering hugs after a Senior Citizens social.

Through the giving of one's self by the volunteers, in

cooperation with the unbounded acceptance of the recipients, we

see the development of community between college students and

children, the handicapped, and seniors.

The spring of my sophoa,re year I was appointed Area

Volunteer Coordinator for the handicapped. The duties of my

position increased, thus limiting my contact with others. My

position did, however, expand my knowledge of volunteerism. I

was responsible for the operation of six areas, ranging from

Religious Education to the mentally handicapped to coaching

swimming and diving to the physically handicapped. We held
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monthly meetings and volunteer appreciation functions. My main

duty was the organisation of transportation to and from the site

of service. Times, dates, and meetings had to be arranged for

over 90 volunteers and 130 recipienks. Our handicapped program

stretched over a 40 mile radius touching individuals in group

homes, institutions, achievement centers, and private homes.

Lest spring I was asked to fill the lest student level

position in VISTO, that of Student Director. Although my time

with the recipients has been v4rtvally eliminated, I have become

even more involved with them. After being associated with VISTO

for three years, I have become very .lose to a number of

recipients. I have many duties as Student Coordinator; my job

now encompasses not only the handicapped area, hut an additional

five areas of service. Over 800 volunteers are involved with the

Handicapped, Senior Citizens, Project FOands (Big Brother/Big

Sister), Religious Education to surrounding parishes, Youth, and

Special Services. Again, many of my duties involve

transportation and meetings, bringing together the ideas and

needs of over 800 special volunteers.

As one can see, many of the jobs in VISTO deal with our

budget. VISTO is a non-profit organization; therefore, we cannot

solicit or raise funds in any way. We opc...?ate sololy from

allocated funds from the College of St. Benedict and St. John's

University. At, the beginning of each year, VISTO submits an

itemized, anticipated list of experles for the coming year. We

are given $1,500 from each department of the respective schools
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Caapt Ministry. This $3,000 is then added to an agreed upon

allocation from the Joint Funding Board of the two schools.

Because we are private institutions, we are fortunate enough to

ask for end receive these allocations and even use of facilities.

VISTO is often present in the halls, gymnasiums, and pools of the

two schools. At state institutions, this would most certainly be

more difficult. Without the funding made Sy the two schools,

volunteer programs such as VISTO would not exist. For the

1987-88 academic year, VISTO has been budgeted total of $6,800.

From this budget, we fund all transportation, uuplicuting, public

relations, and appreciation functions. VISTO has been operating

on a similar budget every year, always ending the year $200-600

in debt. With this strict budgeting, we are fo.cad to limit

expansion into other areas of volunteer service. For the 1987-88

year, VISTO added another program. We hold this tc 110 our yearly

goal, yet VISTO received only $300 more than last year.

Without additional funding, as would bo provided by this

bill before the House, VISTO and other volunteer programs are in

serious trouble. The additional funding would make expansion of

existing programs a reality and the formation of new programs a

possibility. The fact that our particular VISTO program involves

two private colleges is an interesting aspect on the issue of

Federal funding. Without the support of our schools, VISTO at

the College of St. Benedict and St. John's University would be

greatly diminished. Federal funding for volunteer programs would

not only encourage existing programs, it would relieve the

financial burden on private institutions to support programs like

VISTO.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. We heard amazing and powerful but
relatively simple stories here this morning. About the great work
that can be accomplished by putting back to the community that
helped nurture you. You are getting a lot back out, so young people
want to grab all the gusto they can. One way is in community serv-
ice. Sheila and Greg and Jennifer, and Lisa and Kristine and
Mark, we thank you for your stories. It is disappointing, but under-
standable, that these kinds of stories are not the headline news. If
the six of you demonstrated in this room, here this morning, in op-
position to academic standards, or against something, chances are
you would have a host of media attention and some response from
public officials and the rest. But that is not the situation we are in,
so we have to amplify our voices as best as we can. That is why we
are having the hes.ring and this record will magnify and ripple out
like ripples on a pond.

I would like to ask how your experiences have changed how you
plan your future. Mark, you talked about how it has affected the
behavior of your friend. He is not here today, is he?

Mr. SENN. No.
Mr. SIKORSKI. What are your plans for the future? You are a

senior in high school.
Mr. SENN. No, I have graduated.
Mr. SIKORSKI. You have just graduated from Hopkins. Where are

you now?
Mr. SENN. I am not presently attending school. I am taking a

year off before I go back.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. Has it affected your plans?
Mr. SENN. I think if I were ever in a position of hiring somebody,

I would definitely consider hiring someone less fortunate because I
have been exposed to them, and I know they are good, human
beings just like everybody else. They can do just as good a job, but
sometimes they are not given a chance. So being exposed to that
has given me an insight, so that I would not be prejudiced against
them.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Good. How about you, Sheila? Should I call you
Jack Pine Sheila now? How about your plans for the future? You
are young, you are 16? You are a sophomore.

Ms. JAKES. Junior.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Junior. I am sorry. You were a sophomore in the

program.
Ms. JAKF.S. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Have your plans for the future changed because of

your experience in the conservation corps?
Ms. JAKES. Yes, I want to encourage people to go out to the Con-

servation Corps to help them learn because I learned a lot there
also. I have nothing else to say.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Greg, your plans have already changed. Jennifer,
how about you?

Ms. REMMICK. My sense of commuility, the definition of my com-
munity has expanded ten times. My love has ten folded also. But
we have at St. Ben's and what I have been involved with has
taught me a lot of patience and has increased my vision to some-
how help. I feel like I have done something when I walk out of Spe-
cial Olympics, for example, or from a religious day at a group
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home, I have such a feeling of accomplishment. They give me so
much. I want to spread this, I have changed my attitude totally.

Mr. SIKORSKI. In the late 1960's I started at the nursing home at
about 75 cents an hour and ended up two and a half years later at
a dollar something an hour. But I found that working at the nurs-
ing home was like going to a good movie. The next day you think
about it, and a couple days later you are still thinking about it.
Now and then you think back to scenes in that movie, Having
worked at the nursing home, I was thinking about things that I
never would have. Normally, I was concerned about a pimple or a
date or something. I found myself thinking of a resident, someone
who was having trouble or someone who was having a greet time. I
was part of that life. Have you found that, Lisa? Do you think
about those kids that you work with now and then?

Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes, I guess. When I first got into it, Dan Conrad
came to me and I did not want to be in psychology anymore. And I
said, oh well, community involvement might be something I could
do. I was not very excited about that. I do not know if I can do this.
So then Mrs. Tyce came to me and said this might be somethingI
might be able to use her since she does have keen hearing and
stuff. I did not know if I could do it. Now I have gone there and I
give my love to the kids and they really come out. When they come
with me, they cheer up so much more. On the way over, Mrs. Tyce
was saying that she had a conference with one of the kids, and her
parents came in and said, you know, Johanna comes home and said
she really loves Lisa. It was so cool to hear that I guess. When you
hear second hand about how someone really appreciates you, I did
not think I was doing that big of a job. I-was just going over there
and working on flash cards. But I guess they really get something
out of it. I feel so much better in helping them, and knowing I am
helping them because they have helped me so much.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Great. Lisa, you said Mrs. Tyce is a teacher?
Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes, Marsha Tyce.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Is she here?
Ms. HOLMBOE. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Marsha, stand up, and Conrad. Other teachers,

Jennifer, do you have anyone here? Sheila, do you have other
people here that helped you in your programs? Mark, is there
anyone else here from Hopkins?

Mr. SENN. Yes, this man right here, Dan Eckberg.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you all, Marsha, Ed, and others for your ef-

forts. Otte last question. I have a position on this. I think young
people should be required to do so many hours of community serv-
ice in order to graduate from high school. I think it should be built
into the curriculum and I think everyone gains from that. That is
my position, and I wanted you to know it up front, but I would love
to hear if you disagree with that, or agree, or have a feeling on
that, at either high school or college level?

Greg, do you have an opinion?
Mr. RHODES. I always have an opinion. I think that would be a

very beneficial thing. So long as you keep in mind that there are
differing levels of commitment and however you were to structure
a program like that, you would need to insure that those people
who are deeply committed had their avenues through which they
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could serve, and those people who were not so committed but were
doing it because it was a requirement, that they were treated in
such a way that they were respected for their position. As I men-
tioned in my statement, people as they start to volunteer, get excit-
ed about it. Then commitment and enthusiasm grow from there. So
the approach needs to be one that allows that commitment and en-
thusiasm to grow for those people who do not yet have it.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Good. Jennifer, what do you think of the idea?
Making service a requirement to graduate?

Ms. REMMICK. As Greg said in his statement, getting started is
the hardest part. I remember the first time, it was ten years ago,
that I first went. It was an overnight campout. I thought I woulddie. I was so nervous to go, and after that, it only grew. And I
spent more and more time and more and more hours. I put in prob-
ably ten hours a week now. I think it is an excellent idea to have
it. Because initially that is the hard part.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Lisa, it gets you off your behind. And if it were
part of graduation requirements?

Ms. HOLMBOE. I think it is a good just because I do not feel that
the kids that do not participate in the community know. They
make fun of people. It is sad how they tease kids and tease older
people. I think it is a good eye opener for everyone to have to put it
some hours.

You get in trouble with lie. You get 16 hours in the community.
But then you are being forced to do it. My friend hates this. I think
it should be optional in some ways. I think everybody should do it
at some time.

Mr. SIKORSKI. At their level.
Ms. HOLMBOE. Without being forced to do it. You should get to

pick what you would like to do.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Thanks, Lisa. Kristine.
Ms. PErrEasEN. I think it is a really great idea. For me, I knew

about the shelter for the homeless before I went and volunteered.
It was really easy to read about it, and pretend to sympathize or
empathize and understand it. But actually going out and doing it
has changed my viewpoint. It has motivated me to continue
doing that. So I think, instead of just informing people about com-
munity service, we required them to go out and actually do it, then
it will sink in more. They c,n learn about it and really feel the
problem instead of just reading about it in black and rite OA apiece of paper.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Mark? What is your feeling?
Mr. SENN. I am not sure that it would be such a good idea simply

because of the fact that people who are forced to do something do
not really get the full feeling for it. If they are forced to do some
thing, they are not going to besome would respond, some would
not respond. Some would just go and not do a very pod job. I think
you really have to want to do son' thing like this to open yourself
up enough to realize it.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Whida comes first, the chicken or the egg? How
are we going to get people interested it programs? You yourselfsaid that until you got out on that bus and into the hallway of that
state institution, you really did not appreciate what was going on.It made a difference. But you did have a program there. Most
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schools do not have a program. We are not talking about mana-
cling people and taking them out.

We are just saying: there are certain standards that we have to
graduate from high school in the state of Minnesota. One of them
is that you are going to do some community service. A school dis-
trict is going to determine how many hours, and what kind of pro-
gramming is used to support that credit, just as you have foreign
language or math or English or other requirements. You are going
to have a requirement of community service. Some will be less in-
terested than others. Some will be very motivated.

But my position is that unless you have the program there, we
are going to have fits and b,,arts throughout the state. A lot of
people are going to miss the opportunity. I think this is apparent.

Mr. SENN. I think they should have the opportunity to do it and
to be exposed to it. But to receive credit for graduation as a re-
quirement might be difficult. It is ideal that it would work that
way. But I think it has a lot of problems and I think the school
should expose it so it grows bigger so that ten years down the road,
it may work. But it can cause problems.

Mr. SIKORSKI. You are right. The programming for that would be
massive and the resources needed to do that are pretty sizable. I
look at it a lot like brushing your teeth. You realize later on that it
is beneficial.

Sheila, did you have anything to say on either of these questions?
Ms. JAKES. I just wanted to add something. The first time that I

went, I was reall3 awkward and I did not know what to do. It was
really hard. I did ',..ot know where to go, what it was. Then later I
slowly got into the swing of thii.gs and it is fine. I have no problem
going. It is a lot of fun.

Mr. Sncor.sici. Do you think it should be a requirement for grad-
uation from high school in Minnesota?

Ms. JAKES. No, I do not think so. Because people are really busy.
I do not know. You have three years of going to school. When you
go home, some people just like to rest.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Very good. Anyone have anything they need to
say, they want to say, they must say? You have been absolutely
fantastic. You have been inspiring and direct. I want to thank you
on behalf of the House of Representatives for your time this morn-
ing and for your contribution to community. Thank you all. [Ap-
plause.]

The members of the next panel have had their lives enriched by
the students we just heard from. These witnesses span the spec-
trum of lives that are touched by youth service programs. We have
Maggie Spink, a resident of the Edgewood Nursing Center. We saw
that facility in the video that Mark provided. She was featured in
the video tape this morning. You were one of the stars. But you
were not given credit, Maggie. I did not see your name in bright
lig hts. Students from Hopkins High School regularly visited
Maggie.

Also today we have Christopher Messer, who recently moved
with his family to Northfield where school officials quickly found
his reading level beyond his current grade of four. Because the
school could not schedule more advanced reading classes, Carleton
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students have been tutoring Christopher each week and working
on special projects.

Maggie, why don't you begin?
Ms. SPINK. I was not prepared for this. I was not aware that I

had to prepare a little speech.
Mr. SIKORSKI. You do not have to prepare. Why don't you just

give it?
Ms. SPINK. Just give it. OK.
Mr. SIKORSKI. From the heart.

STATEMENT BY MAGGIE SPINK, RESIDENT, EDGEWOOD NURSING
CENTER

Ms. SPINK. I will tell you a little bit about myself. I am 72 years
old, and I cannot walk without assistance. I had three major knee
surgeries that were not successful. I have spent seven years in a
hospital for emotional distress. Now I can tell you why it means so
much to me to have these wonderful young people visit. Mr.
Conrad, whom I have met several times and have certainly been
impressed with him, has made arrangements for the young people
to come in and visit me. I think it works both ways. I do not know
if you people have ever had the experience of visiting a nursing
home, had the brunt of your family in the nursing home. It is not a
pleasant experience. There are very few people there that I can
relate to. Many have Alzheimer's that I cannot relate to. So by
having these young people come in as they do so marvelously, come
in and visit with me, it gives me a new lease on life. I cannot speak
highly enough of these young people. Yet they seem to want to talk
to me. I think that comes because I know life. I had a full life. I
had many disappointments. And I feel that I can give to them also
with understanding and compassion and really making a lot of our
association. I am so happy to have this experience with these won-
derful young people.

I had a couple last winter from out in the cold in Hopkins High
School that visited me three times a week. They brought me such
pleasure and said I did so much for them because I understood so
much about life.

Now I have two other young ladies, Heather and Jamie, and they
too have brought me much happiness. Yet they seem to like to talk
to me because I have a full understanding of what life is about.

I am not going to make this a lengthy discourse because I was
not prepared to come to speak, but I wanted you to know that I
come from a nursing home. I am an invalid. I cannot speak highly
enough of Mr. Connor's program here for the young people to
come. We have many young people working in our kitchen, also.
They too have been seeking out my advice and have paid me fre-
quent visits. I am very fortunate, having many friends. I do not feel
shortchanged that all these things have happened to me because I
think I have much more experience, have profited much more from
them.

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have done just great, Maggie. And I want to
express our appreciation. Just as you have been enriched by talk-
ing with these kids from Hopkins High, we have been enriched
talking with you and hearing your story.

5;2i



49

Ms. SPINK. I am not accustomed to this sort of thing. It is a little
foreign to me and I am trying to do a good job.

Mr. SIKORSKI. You are doing a great job.
We are going to hear Christopher, your partner beside you.

Christopher, why do you not tell us your story?

STATEMENT BY CHRISTOPHER MESSER, STUDENT

Mr. MESSER. I am working on a report on how dinosaurs died off.
Andy Mobley helps me by teaching me what to do to write a
report, how to find books to use, and know how to plan ahead, and
also to know how to set goals. It is fun. I am learning a lot. It is
probably going to help me a lot in the future.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Christopher, Andy is the student volunteer from
Carleton?

Mr. MESSER. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. He has been helping you with accelerating your

reading skills, writing skills, and the rest. You do not live in the
Sixth District, do you? [Laughter.]

We do not want to get too accelerated here. [Laughter.]
How often do you meet with Andy?
Mr. MESSER. Three days a week, Monday, Wednesday and Friday.
Mr. SIKORSKI. How long? An hour or so?
Mr. MESSER. Yes, an hour.
Mr. SIKORSKI. At the school?
Mr. MESSER. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. I jotted a couple of questions down. I think you

have answered them. You get something out of this process, but
you also mentioned, Maggie, that the kids are getting something
out, too, because there is a change in their demeanor. There is a
little electricity there. And you see it going both ways, do you not?

Ms. SPINK. That is what I wanted to say. It is going both ways. I
am deriving so much from the young people visiting me and yet
they tell me that I have helped them so much. Mr. Conrad's pro-
gram has been a very wonderful service for me, and I do have a lot
of friends of the young people and I really cherish that. I do not
think anyone will ever know how much it means for those people
to come and visit me. It is a lifesaver.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Your statements today will help a lot of those kids
to know how important it is, and help a lot of other people to know
how important it is to expand these programs. There are several
hundred skilled nursing facilities in Minnesota alone. And there
are thousands in the country. There are a host of elderly people in
their homes, in nursing homes, hospitals and a host of living condi-
tions that can benefit from contact with young people who are will-
ing to spend a little bit of time, maybe run errands for them.

Ms. SPINK. Write letters, or read to them. There are some elderly
people that we have there that have no contact with the outside
world at all.

Mr. SIKORSKI. How about dancing? I' was a great dancer way
back. About as good a dancer as I am a singer.

Ms. SPINK. It has been a pleasure being able to give you my
views and tell you a little bit about myself. I just enjoyed the whole
reading area so much.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Maggie, you are how old, if I may ask?
Ms. SPINK. 72.
Mr. SIKORSKI. And you lived in Minnesota most of your life?
Ms. SPINK. Yes, all my life.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Where were you born? .
Ms. SPINK. In Minneapolis.
Mr. SIKORSKI. In Minneapolis, and lived around for--
Ms. SPINK. In my growing years I went to Central High School. I

will not tell you how many years ago. .
Mr. SIKORSKI. I can figure that out. I am not in xn accelerated

math program, but I can figure that out. [Laughter.]
Ms. SPINK. I had no formal education as far as university or col-

lege, but I was a success in the business world, and was on execu-
tive payroll at a particular concern.

Mr. SIKORSKI. What kind of business?
Ms. SPINK. Super Value Stores.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Oh.
Ms. SPINK. I was assistant cashier for 15 years. Then I became ill

with an emotional problem that I had and I had to leave. Why I
bring out this emotional, I do not like to dwell on it, but just to let
you know what type of a person I am and what my needs are and
how they are being answared it with this contact with the young
people.

Mr. SIKORSKI. I can see why you were executive cashier. Christo-
pher, do you want this program to continue?

Mr. MESSER. Yes.
Mr. SIKORSKI. How did the dinosaurs croak, that is what I want

to know? Have you found that out yet? How the dinosaurs disap-
peared?

Mr. MESSER. Some theories, not exactly how.
Mr. SIKORSKI. I better give up while I'm ahead. Thank you, Chris-

topher. Thank you, Maggie. Very much.
Ms. SPINK. The pleasure was mine.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Members of the next panel made our inspiration

and request for youth service a reality. These individuals have
dedicated their lives to promoting opportunities for our young
people to give a part of themselves back to society.

Jim Kielsmeier is president of the National Youth Leadership
Council at the University of Minnesota Center for Youth Develop-
ment and Research. He has provided Minnesota and the country
with the leadership and direction necessary for establishing a vol-
untary service program.

Larry Fonnest is the director of the Minnesota Conservation
Corps and has been affiliated with the corps for more than nine
years. His leadership and foresight have given thousands of Minne-
sota youngsters the opportunity to enhance the natural beauty of
Minnesota's great outdoors.

Ruth Myers is the director of the Center for Indian Minority
Health at the University of Minnesota, Duluth Medical School, and
a leader in promoting service opportunities for American Indian
Youth. She has been instrumental in helping these youngsters
overcome looming obstacles that many residents of Minnesota's
Indian reservations face, su that they might help others.
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And Councilman Jim Scheibel has been a member of the St. Paul
City Council for five and a half years. Time flies when you're
having fun. He concentrates a great deal of his time and energy in
housing and hunger issues. He is chairman of the National League
of Cities Human Development Committee, vice president of the
League of Minnesota Cities, and a board member of Friends of
Vista, which works to preserve, protect, and promote the program.
You were a VISTA volunteer too?

Mr. SCHEIBEL. Director of VISTA. It is not the volunteer part.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Okay. Let us begin.

STATEMENT BY JAMES C. KIELSMV ER, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
YOUTH LEADERSHIP COUNCIL, ASSISTANT PROFESSOR, UNI-
VERSITY OF MINNESOTA, PREPARED WITH ASSISTANCE BY
RICH WILLITS, RESEARCH ASSISTANT, NATIONAL YOUTH
LEADERSHIP COUNCIL

Mr. KIEISMEIER. Thank you, Congressman Sikorski. Ladies and
gentlemen, it is a pleas'. re to be here. I am Jim Kielsmeier with
the National Youth Leadership Council, University of Minnesota.
First of all, I would like to thank you for allowing us to testify
today. And I especially would like to thank you for the respectful
way in which you conducted this hearing, leading off with young
people and asking them their opinion. I think that is where it
really has to start. We really need to ask them what they feel
about this very important issue. I commend you for that.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you.
Mr. KIELSMEIER. There is, quietly building, an unrest here in

Minnesota related to our young people. Robert Kennedy said "the
condition of youth is the best indicator of our health as a society."
Young people reflect not only our collective health but our deepest
yearnings and hope for the future, they are our legacy. When
things are not going well with kids, it affects everyone.

In response to a lot of this concern, a number of people got to-
gether in 1986. Governor Perpich, at the urging of the state's At-
torney General, Hubert Humphrey HI, appointed a task force
headed by State Representative, Kathleen Blatz, and Minneapolis
Mayor, Don Fraser. We held hearings throughout Minnesota, con-
ducted a pilot project that was conducted that year. And in general
we sought to poll the people of Minnesota about their feelings
about youth service. In response, we developed a report and then
legislation was advanced for a full time youth service opportunity
for young people in Minnesota between the ages of 18 and 22. That
bill was carried by Representative Ken Nelson and, in the Senate,
by Senator Michael Freeman. As you mentioned earlier today, that
bill did not pass. There were not important problems with it in
regard to the philosophy. It had to do with the funding.

A compromise, however, was reached and there was an impor-
tant piece of legislation related to the youth service, in fact, com-
pelled by the youth service, that did go through. I think it is impor-
tant to our discussion of national service that you understand
something about the legislation. There are 400 Community Educa-
tion Districts in Minnesota. The legislation that eid pass calk.; for
youth development plans in each of those 400 Community Educa-
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tion Districts. At this time, and this is voluntary, nearly 150 Com-
munity Education Districts have committed to developing youth de-
velopment plans. This is the first community-funded state youth
service model in the nation. School districts themselves are levying
themselves to be able to do youth service.

We are going ahead in 1988, reintroducing legislation for full
time youth sizvice. I think we will get farther with it this year. I
think it is important to look at national service as something more
than just serrice for your people who are between the ages of 18 to
22. I think we need to look at it with a complete new set of prospec-
tives. One of those prospectives is a revisioning of the place of
youth in our society. Typically young people are seen as something
that we have to put resources into. These are people that need
something. We need to do something for them. I think what we
need to think about is that young people can address unmet needs
in our society. In so doing, they create value. We are not just
saying we are putting resoiLl'es into young people and young
people soak it up. Young people create value by the things they are
doing, and the things that were demonstrated by the first panel. I
think it is really important.

I will skip ahead because I know we are short on time.
Mr. SIKORSKI. Just so everyone knows, every statement as pre-

pared and submitted, or as you want them, will be inserted in the
record. We will give you some time to formulate them and they
will be placed in the record as such, when the final record is print-
ed. So you can summarize as best you can.

My. KIEISMEIER. The second major point I would like to make
about youth service is that we often think of it in terms of people
18 to 2. I think a lot of the people here are examples of what can
happen at every level of a person's growing up experience. Most
people agree that what we should be about in society is creating an
ethos of service, a generally accepted norm that reaches every
level. And particularly the nurturing institutions of our young. I
would say to think about national service, we ought to look at a
developmental model of national service. I think at every level
there can be a way of building in service components in the school-
ing experience and in the extra curricular experience of the young
person.

I think one of the rationales for this, at this level, so called full
time service level, 18 to 22. The service models around the country,
the California Conservation Corps, and the Michigan Conservation
Corps, have extremely high attrition rates. Why is that? I think
learning to serve is like a lot of other things. You have to learn it
incrementally. What we need to be thinking about in community
service is building it into the fabric of our society. Building it all
the way through. So that, in the curriculum, a young person in
their classroom could be sending cards to people in their neighbor-
hood who are homebound and have birthdays. All of the computers
we have in our elementary schools could be used to develop data
bases of people who have needs in that community. And that young
people at every class level could take on those kinds of responsibil-
ities. The school could become a production unit in terms of doing
things in service, all the way through not only K-8 but 9-12. At
the high school level, we already talked about a number of things
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that are being done, and to get into the areof-extracurricular
kinds of activities thai are centered on service. Also, civic classes
and history classes could be based on service.

I think it is particularly important when you talk about service,
you realize you are talking about an element of character. As Aris-
totle said "States of character are formed by doing the corresponr1.-
ing act." You become brave by doing a brave act. You become serv-
ice oriented by doing service-oriented acts. We need to place people
into contexts very early in their growing up experience where they
learn that part of being fully human, as Ernest Boyer says, is
"learning to give back" and learning to serve.

So I think we need to think about a youth service as a continu-
um.

At the college level, as has already been mentioned, a lot of vol-
unteer activities could take place. There also could be some more
impelling activities for collegians through the kinds of bills that
you are introducing, urging piople right after college, not necessar-
ily to go right on into a high paying job but to take a year or two
and be a VISTA volunteer.

In this model, service opportunities would be woven into the
total fabric of growing up, much as music, art, and sports are inte-
grated. Every able bodiedand increasingly many who are not
young people in America have daily opportunities to get involved
in team sports. That we take this tradition for granted is quite a
fact and a recent creation. From grade school through college and
beyond, Americans are offered dozens of chances to play baseball,
soccer, football, and other sports. Most of us recognize the often un-
stated yet still primary goal of athletic activities is helping young
people to grow up healthy and happy, to learn team work, the pur-
suit of excellence, and appreciation for a healthy body, and good
sportsmanship.

How rewarding it would be if every child had as many chances
and as much encouragement to become active citizens by becoming
involved in youth service at each stage of life in much the same
way that they are encouraged to become involved in sports activi-
ties early in life.

While recognizing the newness of our integrated approach, I
would submit that the Minnesota model, which as I have indicated
earlier, involves an emphasis not only at the 18 to 22 year old
level, but an emphasis in the school based levelI would submit
that this integrated approach is a more reasonable approach to na-
tional service given the fact that learning to serve is an incremen-
tal educational process. Here in this state, each level of activity is
budding, literally a thousand flowers are blooming here in Minne-
sota around many of these areas. I think it is important for us to
recognize this. Finally, I would like to submit a footnote from histo-
ry. In April 1861, shortly after the fall of Fort Sumter, Minnesota's
Governor Ramsey pledged support to the union effort. The first
Minnesota Infantry Regiment became the first volunteer unit in
the north to enter the war between the states. Since then, largely
in peaceful pursuits, such as Hubert H. Humphrey's pioneering
proposal for the Peace Corps, Minnesotans have been in the fore-
front of efforts to mold and strengthen the nation. It is my hope
that as you and other leaders in the Congress consider ways to
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strengthen the human capital of this country through programs of
national service, you will continue to call on Minnesotans for guid-
ance and support in your worthy efforts.

[Prepared statement by James C. Kielsmeier follows:]
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A Vision for Mama ItaL
A Vision for the Nation

There is quietly building unrest here in Minnesota related to
our young people. Robert Kennedy said, "The condition of our youth is
the best indicator of our health as a society." Young people reflect
not only our collective health but our deepest yearnings and hope for
the future, they are our legacy. When things aren't going well with
kids, it affects everyone.

In 1986 Minnesota Governor Rudy Perpich, at the urging of the
state's Attorney General, Hubert Humphrey III, appointed a task force
headed by State Representative, Kathleen Blatz, and Minneapolis
Mayor, Don Fraser, to examine the needs of youth in the state and to
propose a means-of engaging youth more fully in the life of the
community. We held 5 hearings throughout Minnesota, conducted a
pilot youth service project and reported our findings. Appended is a
portion of that report.
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A citizen's advocacy group headed by the Attorney General,
Mayor Fraser, Representative Blatz and myself and including 44
Minnesotans from around the state then deve'oped legislation for a
year round service corps based on Task Force recommendations.
Bills were introduced in the Minnesota House by Representative Ken
Nelson and in the Senate by Senator Michael Freeman. (Copy
appended.) Ttra program model as proposed was not funded but the
legislation did yield two important outcomes:

1) As a compromise, new funding was authorized for the
400 Community Education districts in Minnesota to levy their
districts to support locally-based Youth Development Plans,
Youth Service being the most likely of the new projects to be
developed. At this time, nearly 150 community education
districts have committed to developing youth development
plans. This is the first community-funded state youth service
model in the nation.

2) An interagency planning group was mandated to review
the Task Force report and to initiate a coordinated youth
program for the state. This report is due in January 1988.

In 1988, we will again propose legislation for a full-
time youth service opportunity for 18-22 year olds which is
geared to addressing three clear missions:

1) caring for the home bound and institutionalized
elderly,

2) addressing environmental needs,
3) responding to the emergency needs of the state:

fire flood, tornado damage, etc.
In addition, the Minnesota Youth Service Initiative has gone on

record advocating a more expansive vision of youth service in
Minnesota which I believe has powerful implications for the shaping
of national policy on service. This vision is based on certain
assumptions about youth, the needs of society and how a service
emphasis can be integrated throughout the growing-up experience of
young people.

The place of young people in western society has undergone a
profound transformation during the last half of the 20th century.
Prior to this century, the majority of young people grew up in rural
households where their role and work were clearly defined and
clearly needed. Even in the small towns and growing cities, most
young people were part of definite communities or neighborhoods.
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Along with the social fragmentation of the industrial revolution,
however, work came to be something we in America saw as separate
from the community one lived in. Young people left home to work in
factories, and except for being wage-earners and, more recently,
major consumers, their roles in society all but disappeared.

In the twentieth century this tendency has accelerated to the
point where young people in general rarely know who they are, what
they are to do, and to what they can feel attached. Certainly, many
young people beat the odds and find their place in athletics, the a' ts,
religion, academics, or work. Yet there are still far too many who
never find such a purpose. Instz.;id they are left to destructive
temptations which, unfortunately, are all too available to them. We
will not stop our young people from turning to the drug dealer and
the gang until we offer them alternatives they can believe and
become engaged in.

In short, structural changes in society have disenfranchised
significant numbers of our youth, and so we must create new
structures where young people are needed and have clear, useful
roles. Flipping hamburgers at a fast food restaurant alone will not
do the Job. We must start with the assumption that young people.

O
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society. Those who create youth policy should view financial
resources spent on young people as a catalyst for creating new
resources, such as tne following diagram illustrates:

Youth Service and Community Deveioomen:
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As young people serve, they provide a return on our investment in
them.

Most people agree that we need to create an ethos of service in
society, a generally accepted norm that reaches every level and
particularly the nurturing institutions of our young. Currently
national service for young adults is offered as the major medium to
bring this about. I do not believe this is the answer. The tendency
to serve is a basic element of character which is learned
incrementally. Aristotle said, *States of character are formed by
doing the corresponding act. Youth become brave by doing brave
acts...." and so on. It would follow then that one learns to serve by
being impelled into service. Eventually, once the state of character
is shaped, the individual would seek out opportunities to serve on
his or her own. In an earlier generation when children worked along
side of parents and other adults, moving on at the age. of 18 to some
form of full-time service was a natural progression. We cannot
assume that this will work today, it needs to begin earlier. The high
attrition rate among participants in the youth service model
programs is witness to modern youth's lack of preparation for a
full-time .service commitment. In many programs, less than 50% of
those who start finish the first six months.

Here in Minnesota, our proposal is for a developmental youth
service education model beginning as part of the earliest schooling
experience and continuing to full-time voluntary service
opportunities upon leaving high school. Key elements would be:

Elementary and junior high schools would take on service
projects as class projects. Every grade would have a specific
responsibility for some need in the community such as sendii.s
birthday and get well cards to all the shut-ins and home bound
elderly in their community or shoveling walks for neighbors
within a three to five block radius of the school who were
unable to do it themselves.

High schools would integrate active service projects as part
of their history or civics courses. In addition, special service
electives for credit would be offered such as tutoring younger
children or serving as a peer counselor. Some schools might
require a certain number of service hours for graduation.

St Ate colleges would give admissions preference to
applicants with demonstrated service experience. Volunteer

62



59

service centers supported by the administration would
encourage active volunteerism on campus.

A post-high school Minnesota Youth Service Corps would
provide up to a year of full time service for those 18-22. A
G.I. bill type end of service allowance would be created to
encourage service corps graduates to continue with their
education.

In this model, service opportunities would be woven into the
total fabric of growing up much as music, art and sports are
integrated Every able-bodied (and increasingly many who are not)
young person in America has daily opportunities to get involved in
team sports. Though we take this happy tradition for granted, it is
in fact quite a recent creation. Fronigrade school through college
and beyond, Americans are offered dozens of different chances to
play baseball, soccer, football, and other sports. Most of us
recognize that the often unstated yet still primary goal of athletic
activities is to help young people to grow up healthy and happy. To
learn team work, the pursuit of excellence, an appreciation for a
healthy body and good sportsmanship are more important than the
particular skills one learns in any given sport.

How rewarding it would be if every child had as many chances
and as much encouragement to become active citizens by becoming
involved in youth service at each stage of life as he/she is now
likely to get to join a spa: is team. (See illustration following page.)
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RialiaZgrylain CItiz_ ensh in De v elonme nt

71:
Campfire, Scouts,
Cun-lculeriExtre-
Cuiriculer

9 - 12:
School Currlculer/Extre-
Curriculer, Community Ed.,
Rec. Centers, Red Cross, 4-H,
YMCA, YWCA, Scouts, Camp

s Etc.

v
Fire.

Full-time:
CCC, ha, MYSI,
VISTA, Peace
Corps, Camp
Staff

.01 Mt
COOL, VM-YWCA,
Fraternities and
Sororities,
Work Study,
Internships,
Summer Jobs

Post-Collegiate
Full-time:

Peace Corps,
VISTA, AFSC,
Church-related
Corps

Adult Citizenship:
Service Careers;
Volunteers: Boards, Communit Service
Organizations;

40 tics: Government, Electsx al,
Political Parties, Community Groups.

National Youth Leadership Council 1987
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The major elements of a ladder of service are already
beginning to connect here in Minnesota. Thanks to a generous grant
from ACTION, the federal agency, and in collaboration with COOL, the
Campus Outreacr Opportunity League, the National outh Leadership
Council is organi,.ing campus volunteer centers at each of the four
year colleges in Minnesota. As already mentioned, both the school-
based service effort and full-time options are already well
underway. Testifying here today are people who represent all the
elements.

Service elements sunoorted by
the Minnesota Youth Service Initiative

While recognizing the newness of our integrated approach, I
would submit that the Minnesota continuum model of service is a
most reasonable approach to national service. Here in this state,
each circle of activity is budding, literally a thousand flowers are
blooming.

In April, 1861, shortly after the fall of Fort Sumpter,
Minnesots Governor, Alexander Ramsey, pledged support fo the
Union effort. The 1st Minnesota Infantry Regiment became the first
volunteer unit in the north to enter the war between the states.
Since then, largely in peaceful pursuits such as Senator Hubert H.
Humphrey's pioneering proposal for the Peace Corps, Minn^sotans
have been in the forefront of efforts to mold and strengthen the
nation. It is my hope that as you and other leaders in the Congress
consider ways to strengthen the human capital of this country
through programs of national service, you will continue to call on
Minnesotans for guidance and support in your worthy efforts.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. This capitol was built after the civil war. As you
enter the rotunda upstairs you see all the trappings of that time
period. And the paintings around the governor's reception room
and elsewhere in the capitol highlight that time. Minnesota was
the first to volunteer in the Civil War and out of a total of 176,000
people in Minnesota at that time, 25-26,000 of those men, women,
and children were in that Civil War. One of every seven men,
women, and children fought in that war. An incredible volunteer
effort that was never matched by any other state since then.

Larry has been associated with the Conservation Corps for nine
years now. We would like to have your testimony.

STATEMENT BY LARRY FONNEST, DIRECTOR, MINNESOTA
CONSERVATION CORPS, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Mr. FONNEST. Thank you, Congressman Sikorski. You have
spoken eloquently of your father's own experience with the Civil-
ian Conservation Corp and the effects it had on his life. I would
like to take just a few moments to amplify on that experience and
share with you some of the experiences that we have today.

I will focus my comments on one of the intricate components of a
broad based national service model, that component being environ-
mental stewardship and the conservation corps movement.

The conceptual beginnings of today's conservation corps pro-
grams can be traced to William James' 1910 Essay, "The Moral
Equivalent of War" and his call for a peacetime service force which
would unite Americans in the common cause of preserving the na-
tional environment. Franklin Roosevelt's volunteer "Tree Army,"
better known as the Civilian Conservation Corps [CCCJ, answere"
that call during the Great Depression. In proving James' theory
sound, the CCC employed, trained, and educated some 3,240,000 dis-
advantaged young men. And, in the process, rebuilt the infrastruc-
ture of the United States.

In addition to providing an opportunity to corps members and
their families for a new lease on life, a sampling of the accomplish-
ments of those young men underscores the tremendous accomplish-
ments that they provided. And just to rattle off a few here, they
constructed 63,246 buildings, 800 state parks, 7,600 impounding
dams, 28,000 miles of foot and horse trails, restored 3,980 historic
structures, and the list goes on and on.

With the onset of World War II, the CCC Program was disman-
tled but not forgotten. Twenty-eight years later, in 1970, the Feder-
al Youth Conservation Corps or YCC was established. It was a
summer youth program for 15 to 18 girls and boys. The Young
Adult Conservation Corps, YACC, followed in 1977 and was a year
round program for 16 to 23 year old men and women. Administered
by the U.S. Departments of Interior and Agriculture and in coop-
eration with state governments, YACC emphasized enrolling disad-
vantaged youth while YCC, a much smaller and more middle-class
program, did nut.

Between the two programs, over 700,000 young Americans were
employed between 1970 and their demise in 1982. Careful evalua-
tion of the program showed a cest effectiveness ratio with $1.25 in
value of work performed for t.yery tax dollar invested. That fact
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coupled with a personal growth of participants and the sense of self
confidence, team pride, and accomplishment they received from
having performed real work, demonstrated the tangible worth of
the programs.

The true value of these programs however was not realized due
to limited public awareness, and according to Thomas N. Bethell's
essay, "Crippling the American Conservation Corps," the programs
lacked a champion. No one of importance in the Carter Adminis-
tration seemed to be directly in charge nor did anyone seem espe-
cially interested in telling its success stories to the public, the
press, or influential members of Congress. Responsibilities for
projects were spread so haphazardly among federal and state agen-
cies that no coherent evolution ever took place.

Because of that, the YCC and YACC programs fell easy prey in
1982 to the budget cutting zeal of the Reagan Administration. Re-
fusing to let a good idea die, however, several state and local gov-
ernments, private individual and citizen groups, mustered a ground
swell of support behind the conservation corp ideal. Today, 45
states, city, and county corps operate year round in summer con-
servation/service programs. Some 206,000 are or have been en-
rolled. Like their predecessors, today's corps place heavy emphasis
on cost effectively performing even natural resource work, instill-
ing in participants the attitudes necessary for a successful employ-
ment transition, and developing personal character in the sense of
citizenship. Many also provide remedial education opportunities
and post corps tuition vouchers to encourage continued schooling.

To bring things a little more to home, the Minnesota Conserva-
tion Corps, the MCC, operates both summer and year round pro-
grams. Utilizing a wide range of funding sources, MCC employs ap-
proximately 60 summer youth and 110 young adults year round.
All corps members earn $3.35 per hour and receive instruction in
career development, natural resource management, and environ-
mental awareness. Corps members are not eligible for any benefits
other than workers compensation.

The Minnesota Conservation Corps is more than a job. It is a
service commitment to the state and its resources. The MCC af-
fords Minnesota's young people the unique opportunity to work,
earn, and learn. And it is a program that is open to all youth in-
cluding the disadvantaged and the handicapped in which partici-
pants return more to the state in terms of work production than
they earn in wages.

That there is a need for a National Service Program is undeni-
able. Franklin A. Thomas, president of the Ford Foundation, has
outlined four principal reasons for national service. They are: a low
cost means of fulfilling the nation's unmet social and environmen-
tal needs; a means of mitigating youth unemployment; a means of
improving the character of young people by providing new chan-
nels of exploration and by fostering the spirit of service to others;
and to a lesser degree, a means of strengthening the Armed Serv-
icc:s.

I would like to talk just briefly about the first three reasons. As
it pertains to meeting the nation's social and environmental needs,
the Urban Institute and the American Institutes for Research have
conservatively estimated that nationwide there are 1,365,000 full
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time service opportunities waiting to be filled. 225,000 opportuni-
ties are available in environmental protection, energy and conser-
vation projects alone. In Minnesota, the results of a 1985 sample
survey conducted by the MCC indicated a backlog of natural re-
source work in excess of 50,000 person hours. That is just a very
small sample. The opportunities for service abound.

When it comes to youth unemployment, the problem persists
both on the national -aid state levels. According to a report by
James R. Wetzel and the William T. Grant Foundation entitled
"American Youth: A Statistical Snapshop", 11.1 percent of Ameri-
ca's white youth, and 26.6 of her minority youth were unemployed
in 1986. Wetzel concluded from his research that the unemploy-
ment gap for white youth is merely chronic, while for black youths
and other minorities, the gap has widened persistently over the
past 31 years.

Mr. Summit'. I hate to do this.
Mr. FoNzirsr. You are going to cut me short.
Mr. &Komi. Yes, we have another panel. We have a couple col-

lege presidents whom I want to speak, and they have to leave. We
are going to have to take a short break after this panel and before
that one. So I am going to have to cut you off, but everything in
your testimony will be placed in the record.

Mr. FONNEST. Okay. If I could make just one closing comment?
Mr. SIKORSKI. Yes.
Mr. FoNNFsr. The National Association of Service and Conserva-

tion Corps Programs is a national group representing the 45 pro-
grams I mentioned earlier. On their behalf, and as a member orga-
nization, I would like to endorse and call upon Congress for their
support of the American Conservation Corps bill. I would also like
to lend my personal endorsement to the recommendations of the
Minnesota Task Force on Youth Service and Work, and its call for
expanded and enhanced se; :ice and employment opportunities
here in Minnesota. The Minnesota Conservation Corps looks for-
ward to a collaborative approach in meeting this challenge.

Finally, I would like to thank you, Congressman, for bringing
this chance to Minnesota to share in forwarding the cause of na-
tional service. Our kids deserve this kind of program.

[Prepared statement by Larry Fonnest follows:]
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Testimony by Larry Fonnest Before

the United States House of Representatives

Sub-committee on Human Resources Regarding National Service

Friday, November 13, 1987

Saint Paul, Minnesota

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Larry Fonnest

and I direct the Minnesota Conservation Corps, Department of Natural Resources.

I want to thank you for this opportunity to speak to the issue of National

Service. It is an exciting all-American concept and one which I wholeheartedly

endorse.

Given the limited time available to us today, I will focus my comments

on one of the integral components of a broad based national service model:

that component being environmental stewardship and the Conservation Corps

movement.

The conceptual beginnings of today's conservation corps programs can

be traced to William James' 1910 essay, "The Moral Equivalent of Wee and

his call for a peacetime service force which would unite Americans in a

common effort to preserve the natural environment. Franklin Roosevelt's

volunteer, "Tree Army," better known as the Civilian Conservation Corps

(CCC), answered that tali during the Great Depression. In proving James'

theory sound, the CCC employed, trained, and educated some 3,240,000 disadvantaged

young men and, in the process, rebuilt the infrast,ucture of the nation.

In addition to providing an opportunity to corps members and their families

for a new lease on life, a sampling of the accomplishments of those young

men underscores the tremendous contributions of the CCC:

- 63,246 buildings constructed

- 800 state parks established

- 7622 impounding dams built

- 28,087 miles of foot/horse trails cleared
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- 3,980 historic structures restored

- 98,592 acres f trees planted in logged out areas

- k,757,419 acres of forest treated for diseased trees

The list could go on.

With the onset of World War II, the CCC program was dismantled but,

not forgotten. Twenty-eight years later, in 1970, the Federal Youth Conservation

Corps (YCC) was established. It was a mummer youth work program for 15

to 18 year old men and women. The Young Adult Conservation Corps (YACC)

followed in 1977 and was a year-round program for 16 to 23 year old men

and women. Administered by the U.S. Departments of Interior and Agriculture

and in cooperation with state governments, YACC emphasized enrolling disadvantaged

youth while YCC, a much smaller and more middle-class program, did not.

The YCC/YACC programs employed 700,000 young Americans between 1970

and their demise in 1982. Careful evaluation of the programs shows a cost-
effectiveness
/ratio of $1.25 in value of work accomplished for every tax dollar invested.

That fact coupled with the personal growth of participants and the sense

of self-confidence, team pride and accomplishment they received for having

performed "real work" (as opposed to "oake work" projects which Ind characterized

other youth employment programs) demonstrated the tangible worth of the

Corps.

The true value of these programs was not realized however, due to

limited public awareness. According to Thomas N. Bethell's essay, "Crippling

the American Conservation Corps," the corps lacked a champion. "No one

of importance in the Carter administration seemed to be directly in charge,

nor did anyone seem especially interested in telling its success stories

to the public, the press, or influential members of Congress. Responsibility

for projects was spread so haphazardly among so many federal and state

agencies that no coherent evolution ever took place."

y
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The YCC/YACC fell easy prey in 1982 to the budget cutting zeal of

the Reagan administration. YACC was completely eliminated while the YCC

continued as a mere shadow of its former self.

r.efusing to let a good idea die. sev1ral state and local governments,

private individuals, and citizen groups mustered a groundswell of support

behind the conservation corps ideal. Today. 45 state, city and ccunty

corps operate year-round and summer conservaticm/service programs. Some

206,600 young people are or have been enrolled. Like their predecessors,

today's corps place heavy emphasis on: 1) cost-effectively performing

needed natural resource work: 2) instilling in participants the skills

and attitudes necessary for a successful employment transition and, 3)

developing personal character and a sense of citizenship. Many also provide

remedial education opportunities and post-corps tuition vouchers to encourage

continued schooling.

The Minnesota Conservation Corps (MCC) operates both summer youth

and young adult. yea' -round programs. Utilizing a wide range of funding

sources. MCC employs approximately 60 summer youth and 110 young adults

(full-time). All corps members earn $3.35 per hour and receive instruction

in career development, natural resource management and environmental awareness.

Corps members are not eligible for any benefits other than Workers' Compensation.

The MCC tackles labor intensive projects for the Department of Natural

Resouces' Division of Parks. Wildlife and Fisheries, s'orestry, Trails and

Waterways, and other state and local government agencies. Corps members

build bridges and log shelters, construct and maintain trails and campgrounds,

improve wildlife habitat, plant and prune forests, assist in stccking fish.

collect and process research data, and are available to help in natural

disasters.
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The Minnesota Conservation Corps is more than a job, it is a service

commiteent to the State and its natural resources. The MCC affords Minnesota's

young people a unique opportunity to work-earn-learn. It is a program

open to all Minnesota youth, including the disadvantaged and handicapped,

in which the participants return more to the state in terms of work production

than they earn in wages.

That there is a need for a National Service program is undeniable.

Franklin A. Thomas, president of the Ford Foundation, has outlined four

principal reasons (each with its own constituency) for national service:

1. a low-cost means of filling the nation's unmet social and environment

needs;

2. a means of mitigating youth unemployment;

3. a means of improving the character of young people by providing

new channels of self-exploration and by fostering the spirit of

service to others, and, to a lesser degree,

4. a means of strengthening the Armed Forces.

I want to take just a moment to further address the first three reasons:

1. As it pertains to meeting the nation's social/environmental needs,

the Urban Institute and the American Institutes for Research have conservatively

estimated that nationw.de there are 1,365,000 full-time service opportunities

wating to be filled. 225,000 opportunities are available in environmental

protection, energy and conservation projects alone. In Minnesota, the

results of a.1985 sample survey conducted by MCC indicated a backlog of

natural resources work in excess of 50,000 person hours. The opportunities

f5r service are there!

72



69

-5-

2. Youth unemployment persists on both the national e d state levels.

According to a report by James R. Wetzel and the William T. Grant Foundation

entitled "American Youth: A Statistical Snapshot." 11.1% of America's

white youth and 26.6% of her minority youth were unemployed in 1986. Wetze.

concluded from his research that "the unemployment gap for white youths

is merely chronic. For black youths land other minorities), the gap has

widened persistently (over the past 31 years)."

In Minnesota, the 1986 annual average rate of youth unemployment stood

at 12.8% for all those between 14 and 21 years of age. In real numbers

that percentage translates to 22,000 youth who wanted but could not find

employment. The metropolitan inner cities and rural Minnesota accounted

for the majority of the unemployed.

The Education Commission of the States in a recent report titled,

"Reconnecting Youth" (Fall, 1985) estimated that 15% of American youth

are "disconnected" from society because they are "severely disadvantaged

or chronically alienated." Approximately 14 million American youth live

in poverty. In Minnesota, 100,000 children are enrolled in the Aid to

Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) program.

3. Character building and the nurturing of a spirit of service are

important elements in the mission of the conservation corps movement.

They are realized through the projects, the teamwork, the group living

experience, the educational programming . . . of the corps. All youth.

regardless of socio-economic or educational background, can benefit from

a healthy dose of character building experiences.

he comments of corps members and parents tell it best.

7 3
81-183 0 88 4



70

-6-

- "There are so many positive aspects of this program that I can't

say what was the largest benefit. The friends our daughter made, the education,

the self-sufficiency she learned, enjoyment of nature, are all of more

real value than the money she earned." Parent, Crookston, MN

- "I think the MCC program has brought alot of kids from different

cities together and has shown us that we are no different from anyone else.

By learning that we are all on the same level as far as how people feel

about certain matters. The work has been aiot easier to handle because

we all feel as a big happy family and everyone coonerated to get the work

done right." Youth, Ft. Snelling State Park, Bloomington, MN

- "We feel that this was one of the most worthwhile and positive experiences

in our son's life. During the course of this program we watched a very

positive change in our son's personality and work habits at home." Parent,

New Ulm, MN

- "Living things around you need more space to grow. As I worked

I began to understand nature better." Youth, Tettegouche State Park, Silver

Bay, MN

In closing, as a member organization of the National Association

cf Service and Conservation Corps, the Minnesota Conservation Corps (MCC)

enthusiastically supports passage of the American Conservation Corps Act

(H.R. 18 and S. 27) now pending before Congress. The Act would provide

an additional 30,500 conservation service opportunities. Its passage will

mark a sfiiiificaih1Xedliorward in realizing a greater National Service

program.



71

-7-

We welcome Congressman Sikorski's bills (H.R. 2156 and 2157) encouraging

community volunteer work by college graduates and the attending stuaent

loan deferment and partial forgiveness incentives. Tht bills offer a simple

and direct approach to engaging young people in addressing the pressing

needs of their home communities.

I want to lend my personal endorsethent to the recommendations of the

Minnesota Task Force on Youth Service and Work and its call for expanded

and enhanced service and employment opportunities for our state's young

people. The Minnesota Conservation Corps looks forward to the future and

a collaborative approach to meeting. that challenge.

Finally, my'thanks to Chairman Sikorski and the members of the committee

for their leadership in promoting and encouraging volunteerism. Forums

such as this, help in spreading the good word about our youth and their

willingness and need to be productive, contributing members of society.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. You are absolutely right. We are going to do allthat we can to make sure that the Minnesota program blooms and
those thousand flowers become 10,000 flowers. Ruth, I will ask youto summarize. Your entire statement will be placed in the record.
STATEMENT OF RUTH A. MYERS, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF THE

CENTER OF AMERICAN INDIAN AND MINORITY HEALTH, UNI-
VERSITY OF MINNESOTA-DULUTH

Ms. MYERS. Thank you, Congressman Sikorski. I think I wouldlike to make some key points. One of the points I would like tomake is that as we celebrate the bicentennial of the U.S. Constitu-tion, in order to give a good self concept to American Indian stu-dents, I would like the record to show that the Iroquois Confeder-
acy played a great role in the drafting of the Articles of Confedera-tion in the U.S. Constitution. I would like to quote from Peacemak-
er, who was the founder of the Iroquois Confederacy and he said
many, many years ago, "Think not forever of yourselves, 0 chiefs,
nor of your generation. Think of continuing generations of our fam-ilies, think of our grandchildren and of those yet unborn, whose
faces are coming from beneath the ground."

We as citizens must be concerned about and interested in the
young men and women, ages 17-24, valued members of our society.We must do all we can to ensure that their intellectual, vocational,
social, civic, cultural and personal self growth is developed to itspotential.

As Chief Seattle said in 1855:
"Whatever befalls the earth befalls the people of the earth.

Humans did not weave the web of life, we are merely a strand init. Whatever we do to the web, we do to ourselves. Tribe followstribe and nation follows nation like the waves of the sea. It is theorder of nature and regret is useless. Your time of decay may bedistant, but it will surely come, for even the whites whose god
walked and talked with him as friend to friend., cannot be exempt1.-om the common destiny. We may be family after all. We Alanbee."

We are family. We must revitalize our sense of community and
family. As we face the future together, to work to ensure that wegive to our youth a future, these are my comments The concept ofcommunity service be integrated into the curriculum of all levels ofeducation and I would strongly advocate that it begin when thelearner begins school so when they get to high school, it is notlooked at as a requirement but is embraced as a responsibility.

Community service is not some frivolous activity embarked on bycitizens who have nothing else to do, but that it contributes greatly
to the thread of life of this nation.

Particular attention needs to be given to encouraging youth toenter into the community service world. They must feel an owner .ship in this nation and that can begin by involving them in mean-ingful volunteer projects of which they have a major role in design-ing and implementing, rather than the top down mode of adminis-
tration. Future leaders at all levels of society need to be nurtured
and empowerment of youth in community service projects canassist in that development.
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I would advocate that community service not be limited solely to
low income and minority youth, but at the same time, there must
be opportunities for cultural, specific programs for groups such as
the American Indian and Alaska natives.

I would strongly encourage as we approach the 21st Century that
community service consider entering into full blown tutoring and
helping of minority youngsters in the system.

Youth service must not be simply seen as preparation for adult-
hood. The work of young people must be valued in and of itself as
an important contribution to the community and to society.

I commend, you on your interest in youth, your desire to build a
bridge between their intellectual, vocational, social, and personal
self. If your efforts are effective they will accomplish the Four R's
for youth community service: A Role, Respect, Responsibilities, and
Reward. When you establish your commissica, I would strongly en-
courage you to have a majority of young people involved in deter-
mining the way your bill is going to go.

In closing, I would like to read a poem by a San Filipe Pueblo
young man. In essence, it tells what youth service should be about.
It goes like this.

"I sPek the knowledge of the ancient ones, to hear the tales of
how we cane to be and why we do what we do, and to know right
from wrong, to understar4 my relationship with Mother Earth and
Father Sun and All.

"I seek the knowledge of the modern scholars to gain the knowl-
edge that will advance us and allow us to guide our destiny in the
way we know is right, with harmon-.

"I seek the knowledge that binds our past to our future. And
when the knowledge is found, I will have discovered the greatest
discovery. I will have discovered myself."

Volunteer quality community service can be a major factor in
the quest for self for our youth and we as a nation will benefit
greatly from the investment of resources. If I can be of any assist-
ance, please let me know. Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Ms. Myers follows:]



74

PREPARED STATMENT OP RUTH A: MYERS

I am Ruth A. *erg, from the great city of Duluth, I am an .

enrolled member of the Grand Portage Band of Chippewa Indians. It is

a piivilege to have been invited to this hearing today. my testimony

is not an official statement of any of the dozen or so committees/

boards I serve on, nor of my role as Assistant Director of the Center

of American Indian and Minority Health, University of Minnesota-Duluth,

but as a citizen of my tribe, this state and nation.

A quote from Peacemaker, founder of the Iroquois Confederacy,

which was the foundation for the Articles of Confederation and the

U.S. Constitution, which we are commemorating until 1991, is most

appropriate today:

"Think not forever of yourselves, 0 chiefs,

nor of your generation. Think of continuing

generations of our families, think of our grand-

children and of those yet unborn, whose faces are

coming from beneath the ground."

We as citizens must be concerned abote. and interested in the

young 17-24 year old men and women of our society. We must do all we

can to ensure that their intellectual, vocatioual, social, civic,

cultural and personal self is developed to its potential.

One aspect of that self-development is sharing. As Chief Seattle

said in 1855:

"Whatever befalls the earth befalls the people of

the earth. Humans did :.it weave the web of life, we arc

merely a strand in it. Whatever we do to the web we

do to ourselves. Tribe follows tribe and nation follows

inntion,like the waves of the sea. It is the order of

nature and regret is useless. Your time of decay may

be distant, but it will surely come, for even the whites

whose god walked and talked with them as friend to friend,

cannot be exempt from the common destiny. We may be

family after all. We will _ee.
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As we face the future together, to work to ensure that we give

to our youth a future, these are my comments on the concept of volunteer

community service, a federal, state, community and individual

partnership.

The concept of community service be integrated into the curriculum

of all levels of education in this nation and educational credit be earned

to give it dignity and status.

Community service is not some frivolous activity embarked on by.

citizens who have nothing else to do, but that it contributes greatly to

the thread of life of this nation.

Particular attention needs to be given to encouraging youth to enter

into the community service world. They must feel an ownership do this

nation and that can begin by involving them in meaningful volunteer

projects of which they have a major role in designing and implementing,

zither than the top down m^4.e of administration. Future leaders at all

levels of society need to be nurtured and empowerment of youth in community

service projects can assist that development.

Resources need to'be allocated in order to enable the low income

youth of this nation to participate and care should be exercised so that

all the resources are not expended on program administration.

Community service programa must not be limited solely to low income

and minority youth.

At the same time, there must be opportunities for culture specific

programs such as the American Indian/Alaska Native.

Youth service must not be seen simply as preparation for adulthood.

The.work of'young people must be valued in and of itself as an important

contribution to the community and ro society.

commend you on your interest in youth, your des17e to build a

bridge between tb-ir intellectual, vocational, social, civic, cultural

and personal self and volunteer community service.

If your efforts are effective they will accomplish the Four It's

for youth community service: A Role, Respect, Responsibilities and Reward.

7



76

In conclusion I would like to read a poem by a San Filipe

Puebla member, Michael D. Avritt, which came from the magazine

Winds of Change, March 1987, a publication of the American Indian

Science and Engineering Society of Denver, Colorado:

Discovery

I seek the knowledge

Of the ancient ones.

To hear the tales

Of how we came to be

And why we do what we do

And to know right from wrong,

To understand my relationship

With Mother Earth and Father Sun

And All.

I seek the knowledge

Of the modern scholars

To gain the knowledge

That will advance us

And allow us

To guide our destiny

In the way we know is right.

With harmony.

I seek the knowledge

That binds our past

To our future

And when the knowledge

Is found

I will have discovered

The great.vit discovery

I will have discovered

Myself.

Volunteer quality community service can be a major factor in the

quest for self for our youth and we as a nation will benefit greatly from the

investment of resources.

Thank you.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you, RI: 1. Jim?

STATEMENT OF JAMES SCI-1.....IBEL, ST. PAUL CITY COUNCIL,
BOARD MEMBER, FRIENDS OF VISTA

Mr. SCHEIBEL. Thank you, Congressman Sikorski. I will do my
best to summarize some of the points that I would like and know
the statement will be in the record. I would like to commend you
for your efforts. A lot of people pay lip service to the idea of youth
serving and the concept of national youth service. Seldom do those
ideas get turned into action. I am real pleased to see you taking
your ideas and trying to turn them to action.

I appear today as a board member of Friends of VISTA, and my
purpose is to talk of how VISTA is a model for enhancing work in
the program that has been discussed here this morning.

At a minimum, the 23 year history of the VISTA provides a
wealth of experiential information for these discussions. But we be-
lieve that beyond such trial-and-error wisdom, VISTA offers a suc-
cessful organizational structure through which the impact of these
discussions can be leveraged.

I was going to talk a little about the history of VISTA. John
Kennedy and: later, President Johnson saw the need to alleviate
some human .heed and saw the great resources available and start-
ed the VISTA Program. Since the start of the VISTA rogram, in
1964, 90,000 individuals have had the opportunity tc provide serv-
ice to people, the kind of service that we have been talking about
this morning.

I thought you might be interested, some 2,700 VISTA volunteers
across the United States are serving and alleviating human needs
in programs like food banks, homeless shelters, drug abuse clinics,
senior citizen ce.,;ers and literacy organizations. In this state
alone, we currently have nine VISTA projects and are utilizing 34
VISTA volunteers.

What I would like to stress today is I think we have learned a lot
from the VISTA Program. I know from my experience in govern-
ment, some times it is a lot easier to build upon an existing pro-
gram than to start a new one. We, the board members of Friends of
VISTA, believe that VISTA is that frame work.

From the VISTA experience, we learned that it is important to
have some kind of mission to alleviate poverty, be part of the war
against poverty. So therefore there should be some purpose for the
program. I would like to add as a city official, I know we have our
needs in our parks, in our libraries, in our health clinics the city
provides, and could greatly use the resources of the youths in our
state in this area.

We believe the service should be voluntary. We believe the struc-
ture should provide service opportunities for volunteers of all ages.
I think we heard today the great exchange, how older people bene-
fit from younger people and vice versa. I think that is an impor-
tant part of any program.

So I would just like to close by encouraging you on these efforts
and to learn from the history of VISTA and the other volunteer
programs that we have in this state, this area, this city. And t,.,
pursue involving our young people because,' like you, we have to

..., 8
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give these people the opportunities. I think they wa t tc Te,
they want to participate. But as you commented today, "%I.) zed
that first step. And sometimes programs like VISTA and the pro-
grams you are talidng about can give people that initial push, that
step, that can make a big difference in their life later on. Thank
you.

[Prepared statement of James Scheibel follows:]
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Flip OF VISTA TESTIMONY
MI TA.STATE CAPITOL
NO BER 13, 1987

Congressman Sikorski, thank YOU for the mortunity to testify this

morning on the matter of a service plan and network which can most

effectively enhance our national life. I appear today as a board

member of Friends of VISTA, and my ouroose is to detail how VISTA

Presents a current working model of the service plan being discussed.

At minimum, the 23-year history of VISTA provides a wealth of ex-

terientia1 information for these discussions, but we believe that

beyond such trial-and-error wisdom, VISTA offers a successful

organizational structure through which the imact of these discussions

can be leveraged.

Briefly, the historical context of VISTA began in 1962, when Pres-

ident John F. Kennedy formed the President's Study Group for Nationai

Service on the rationale that . . the overseas success of our

Peace Corps volunteers . . suggests the merit of a similar corps

serving out own community needs." The outgrowth of President

Kennedy's study group was that in 1964, under President Lyndon Johnson,

Voluntors in Service to America--VISTA--was created. The originating

legislation called for the recruitment and training of volunteers to

"alleviate human need." For the 23 years since enactment of that

legisla.ion, VISTA vc_unteers have been providing crucial services

to this country and its people.

The VISTA program is a full-time volunteer effort directed at nur-

turing and supporting movement toward self-reliance among America's
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Poor and disadvantaged citizens. Volunteers work for at least

one year under the direction of grassroots and other non-profit

anti-poverty organizations. They live among and at the same

economic level as those they serve. Since 1964, )0,000 individuals

of divergent races, backgrounds, economic levels, geographic origins

and ages have served as volunteers.

Currently, some 2700 VISTA volunteers serve across the United States

in food banks, homeless shelters, drug abuse clinics, senior citizen

centers and literacy organizations. You would be interested in

knowing that in Minnesota alone, there are nine (9) VISTA projects,

utilizing 34 volunteers in a broad range of services. It is note-

worthy that during a time of decreasing support from the administration,

VISTA continues as a viable organization and individuals continue to

choose VISTA volunteerism as an avenue for service.

VISTA presents an extraordinary record of addressing unmet human

needs in low-income communities throughout the United States. VISTA

volunteers have helped create employment programs, health clinics,

low-income crafts cooperatives, battered women's shelters, legal

service center and "sweat equity" housing programs. Volunteers

haves worked hand-in-hand with migrant farmworkers, the mentally

and physically disabled, low-income senior citizens, incarcerated

youth and adults, refugees and other disadvantaged populations to

assist their efforts toward increased self-reliance.
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Friends of VISTA believes that the experience and accomplishments

of 90,000 volunteers over a span of 23 years is a vital resource

which must not be overlooked in the current discussion about service.

The structures of the future should be built upon the effective

investments of the Past. VISTA is a tested and Proven model of

voluntary service.

In the course of V1STA's successful history, components have been

identified which we believe should be included in any subsequent

development of a service concept or program. These components are:

1. Definition of mission should Precede structural

concept. While service activities can justifiably

extend beyond the current VISTA model of serving

low-income communities, service goals should be

clear.

2. Service should be voluntary in nature.

3. Structure should provide service opportunities for

volunteers of all ages and backgrounds, and for

the sharing of skills across geographic areas. It

should be formed to draw on both local and national

resources, acu'rding to need.
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While we support student loan deferment and forgiveness, we caution

against focusing volunteer recruitment orlmarlly toward college-

educated Persons. This would not only unfairly impact economically

disadvantaged groups and middle-aged-to-older Americans, but it

would severely limit the diversity of sharing that we feel has been

30 important a part of VISTA history.

Friends of VISTA is committed to bringing the VISTA experience to

the forefront of service discussions, and I hope that my appearance

1%zre this morning will have forwardell that end. Congressional

testimony is rich with statements attesting to the benefits realized

it commun'ties served by VISTA volunteers, and with the r_rsonal

cements of vclunteers whose scope and facility as contributors

to our nation have been significantly enhanced. Friends of VISTA

Proposes that any program to expand the role of service be built

upon the proven, functioning foundation of Volunteers in Service to

America.

Thank you for your time and attention.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you. You discussion reminds me of testimo-
ny in our spring hearing voluniiry organizations told us that once
someone volunteers, whether it io at kindergarten level, high
school level, or college, they are a volunteer for life. When someone
comes to the door and needs assistance, they are ready to help.
When someone from the church, school or community calls and
says we need help on a specific project, whether it is a soup kitchen
or a homeless shelter, they volunteer. If we can ingrain in our
people a willingness to assist, to lend a hind, to put a little back
from early on, we will have someone who contributes and helps
and assists all the way through life. If we miss a generation, we are
going to miss a generation of volunteers later on.

How much do we have to provide as an incentive in terms of ma-
terial, goods, of possessions, to people to get them involved? I
expect it depends on the program. If we are trying to give disad-
vantaged youth marketable skills, the kinds of incentives we have
to put into that program have to be much greater. But when do we
lose the volunteerism and community service part of the program?
And when does it become just a pay for work kind of program?
Conservation Corps?

Mr. Foririm. It is difficult to determine at what points specifi-
cally that would happen?

Mr. SIKORSKI. You have not been in danger of that?
Mr. .e0NNEST. Not yet. We demand a lot of the young people tiiat

work in our program. They receive only the federal minimum
wage. They break their backs some days doing the work that we
give them. I think we can only look on that in fairness as a service
opportunity or a service that they render to the state. They cer-
tainly are not receiving from the state anywhere near what they
are providing to the public.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Had they been doing the same work outside they
would have gotten more. In VISTA, it is minimum wage or it is
nominal. It is hard.

Mr. KIELSMEIER. It is less than minimum. I think it is important
if we have programs where people are helping people help them-
selves, and serving, it is roing to be a volunteer program or service
program if there is a need there. The volunteers know they are as-
sisting somebody and they are getting something back. I think they
know and I think we can judge programs that they are not d.ing it
for the profit motive. But they are doing it to assist and be part of
a community. I think that is pretty clear when people working in
th,se kinds of programs .-....re working for those reasons as compared
to bringing home a paycheck.

Mr. SIKORSKI. You mentioned at the beginning and we're heard
in earlier discussions before this hearing this morning about the
need for young people to be involved as planners in order to maxi-
mize the impact on them. Do you want to expand on that or com-
ment on the other question?

Mr. KIEISMEIER. Not to the point, I think there would be a signif-
icant stake whatever they are being involved in. I think that com-
pensates to some extent for perhaps the low level of pay. If they
are in fact accomplishing necessary work, if they feel needed, if
what they are doing is important, I think most people would invest
if they felt they had some say in what was going on.
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Second point is I think some significant post service incentive is
extremely important that suggests that there is a real benefit to
completing whatever you are doing. I think there should be enough
compensation through the term of service that a person would be
under stress or duress to be able to serve.

I think good health insurance, and be able to defer some portion
of those college loans taken off during the time of service is impor-
tant.

But I think something like the old GI Bill type of co. ..msation
is extremely important. The City Volunteer Corps in New York
City speak very clearly that this is one of the strongest incentives
for people to be a part of the project there in New York City, which
by the way involves well over 60 percent of people who are low
income. The fact that they can see at the end of what they do a
very tangible- reward that is related to their service. It is not an
entitlement, it is a reward. I think that in itself is extremely im-
portant.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Great. Do we have to worry about displacing work-
er..-; in local, state, and federal governments with volunteer pro-
grams?

Ms. MYERS. I think we have to be cautious when we work with
institutions or agencies that have labor groups, so you do not dis-
place. But there are many other areas you can put youth into
work.

Mr. SIKORSKI. We know about the national forests, which are
money-making propositions for the federal government. There are
billions of dollars in unmet services, needs that are not being met
and never are going to be met unless there is a program such as
this. There we have no trouble with displacing workers in most
cases. But certainly this subcommittee is concerned about that. I
think I have some questions I am going to submit to you for the
record, and we will coordinate your testimony so that the record
reflects your full statement. Thank you very much, Jim, Ruth,
Larry and Jim again. [Applause.]

W a are going to take a five minute break and we will be back
here in four and a half minutes.

[Whereupon a short recess was taken.]
1171. E..1;:zoitsie.. Today's final panel includes four of the leading

educators in Minnesota's collegiate system. Each of these educators
has been instrumental in lessening the external pressures that col-
lege students often feel during their years of study. Because of
that, we are going to begin with Doctor Stephen Lewis, the newest
member of this distinbuished panel. He is the President of Carleton
College, a recent transplant from the east coast. He is already
stressing the high values of volunteering in the community at Car-
leton. Thank you.

STATEMENT BY DR. STEPHEN R. LEWIS, PRESIDENT, CARLETON
COLLEGE

Dr. LEWIS. Thank-you, Mr. Chairman. It is very nice to be. here,
particularly as a newcomer to both Carleton and Minnesota. As
you mentioned we are on a tight schedule. Let me abbreviate a few
things.
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Mr. Slicortsm. Your prepared s.ateinents will be in the record.
Dr. LEWIS. One thing I would like to stress is a point that Greg

Rhode:-.; made in pointing out the role that community service can
play in one's growth as a student as well as a citizen. In one of the
first talks that I gave at Carleton, I spoke about an "uncomfortable
learning" which comes from having students experience tension
that arises when they confront differences between people from
other races, cultures, and so on.

Community service can provide that sort of life experience that
helps students sharpen their own sense of values. It does so by im-
mersing th3m in needs, situations, problems. and values of others
much different from themselves. A student who has spent a day
trying to brighten the life of a retarded child or playing cribbage
with an elderly shut in, taking a walk in the park with a lonely
person, or being a friend to a child from a broken home, has prob-
ably learned as much in that day lbout him or herself and the
human condition as he or she would in the classroom, however in-
spiring or illuminating the subject or the teacher.

I will not go into the extent of Carleton's commitment in any
detail, just to point out that Greg is a full time employee of Carle-
ton hired to run our volunteer program. This is the third year that
we have had this program. This year he has more than 800 stu-
dents, close to half of those on campus this fall, who have ex-
pressed interest in community service and has already placed
almost 275 of those in participating volunteer activities in the fall
term, these first nine or ten weeks.

Let me turn to the question of what role government should play
since that is a critical element of your investigations in the hear-
ings today. I cannot comment comprehensively in such a short time
and I received a copy of H.R. 3096 only this morning, but as a gen-
eral proposition, I think that some form of loan forgiveness that
was mentioned by Greg is worth pursuing. There also are some pos-
sibilities that added funding would make available to us. Mr.
Chairman, you mentioned these in your opening remarks. Many
Carleton students are anxious to explore careers of service. If we
could provide supportfor example, if we could help support in-
ternships in the summers or during the terms offto enable our
students to work in public or private service organizations, we
could provide both assistance to agencies and organizations as well
as real educational services for the interns. The colleges could
handle identification of positions and placement; the agencies and
the organizations they work for would benefit; and all of these
goals could be accomplished, I am quite sure, for less costs than if
the organizations tried to do their own recruiting and placement.

I would like to respond to a couple of points in Bill H.R. 3096,
which I have reviewed quickly. First, I welcome the focus of the
Bill on people between the ages of 17 and 24. These are years of
growth and development and change where people make a transi-
tion from youth to adulthood, and of course they are the main
focus of colleges like Carleton. They are years in which young
people should be reaching and stretching, exploring their own
limits and their own capabilities as well as how they will relate to
their world. We have been plead by the ACT Program at Carle-
ton, and I think it is clear that it has the kinds of benefits you
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speak to in H.R. 3096. Second, I was pleased to see that the bill rec-
ognizes in Section Two that young people are a huge reservoir of
ta:ent and that voluntary service not only helps young people more
intelligently choose their careers but also contributes to their edu-
cationa point I addressed more fully i my prepared remarks.
Third, I was particularly pleased, Mr. Chairman, that the bill pro-
vides in section five, subsection nine, for invevtigating the desirabil-
ity and feasibility of providing opportunities for service in local
governments as well as in the federal agencies. It seems to me that
this is most in keeping with long standing traditions in the United
States of reliance on local institutions. It also makes it much more
likely that institutions such as 2arleton and other Minnesota col-
leges would be able to assist effectively in facilitating youth service
through the kinds of mechanisms you suggested. Thank you very
much, Mr. Chai:man.

[Prepared statement of Dr. Lewis follows:]
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CARLETON COLLEGE
ONE NORTH COLLEGE STREET

NORTHFIELD. MINNESOTA 55057..4010

V THE PRESIDENT ISO?) 6634305.

The Honorable Gerry Sikorshi
Chairman, Subcommittee on
Human Resources
Committee on Post Office
and Civil Service
U. S. House of Representatives

Statement of
President Stephen R. Lewis, Jr.

Mr. Chairman:

As a newcomer to Carleton and to Minnesota, I am

pleased to have this cpportunity to appear with my

distinguished colleagues on a matter that I consider to be

of crucial importance--not only in the education and

development of our students but also to the community in

which We serve.

Greg Rhodes has already stated quite eloquently his own

deep personal commitment to community service and the part

it has played in his growth as a student and as a caring,

involved and active citizen. In doing so he has, I believe,

captured much of what a liberal education ought to be about,

and too often is not. With your indulgence, I would

emphasize one statement in particular that he made, because

I feel it gets to the heart of the matter perhaps as well as

anything I might say:

9
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Community service "gives a person a focus outside of

oneself, overcoming narrow self-inihrest. It encourages one

to build relationships with new and different people, which

leads to a broader understanding of people and society. And

it builds an ethic of service. All of these things ... are

essential for people who want to be active participants in a

democracy."

In one of my first, calks at Carleton, I tried to strike

something of the same theme when Y spoke of an "uncomfort-

able learning." It is a phrase borrowed from one of the

most effective teachers I have ever known, ftbert Gaudino, a

teach._ of mine and later a colleague for many years at

Williams College. Mr. Gaudino felt very strongly that it

was essential for students to experience the discomforting

tension that arises from confronting differences- -

differences between people, between races, between cuA-ures,

between one's own ideas and opinions and those of others

from much different backgrounds and emironments. He had a

profound effect on those students whom he helped to confront

themselves, their own values, their sense of who they were

and how they related to the world. He did so not merely by

requiring extensive advance reading and study but by having

students immerse themselves directly in foreign cultures,

peoples, ideas--living in villages in India, for instance,

or in homes of working people, rich people, poor people in

different parts of the United States, and then examining

their own values and assumptions in the light of the very
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different values embedded in those situations. Like many of

us, he was concerned also about the discomfort that most

acadeaics feel when actually talking about and teaching

about values. He worried that academic departments and

specialties were "too narrow and exclusive for a liberating

education and not practical enough to show a student" the

limits he or she could reach.

lei much the same way, community service can be the sort

of life experie:o that helps students sharpen their own

sense of values by immersing themselves in the needs,

problems and values of others much different than

themselves - -or, as Greg Rhodes put it, drawing stt.ents out

of their own small world, overcoming narrow self-interest.

A student who her spent a day trying to brighten the life of

a retarded child, playing crikbage with an elderly shut-in,

taking a walk in the park with a lonely person, or being a

friend to a child from a broken home has probably learned as

much in that day about hiG5elf and the human condition than

he or she will in a classroom, however inspiring or

illuminating the subject.

Studonts today often are unfairly criticized as spoiled

and self-indulgent, lacking compassion, concerned only about

their own careers and comfort levels. I am pleased to

report that, at Carleton, our Acting in the Community

Together prograra (A.C.T.) stands in stark contrast to that

unfortunate stereotype. The program was started in 1985 by

a Carletoh graduate then serving as assistant to the
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president of the College. In its first year more than 250

of Carleton's 1,850 students took part in one or more of 11

community service projects. In its second year 430

participated at some time during the school year. This year

more than 800 students have indicated an interest in

community service and 274 already have participated in the

fall term. At the Northfield Community Action Center,

A.C.T. volunteers have established a free Saturday morning

child care service used primarily by low-income single

parents and have helped to collect and stock shelves at the

Northfield Frvd Shelf. Tutoring programs have now been

established in all Northfield schools including the high

school. A.C.T. volunteers who have travelled to foreign

countries on Carleton off-campus study programs share their

experiences as resource persons with children at Sibley

elementary school In Northfield. Volunteers serve as Big

Brothers and Big Sisters to children from singlo parent

homes; they work with retarded children and adults at Laura

Baker School in Northfield and Faribault State Hospital;

they become companions and friends to the eilerly at the Odd

Fellows Home and the Senior Citizens Center.

Our commitment to this effort is illustrated by the

fact that two years ago the College established a full-time

position of L.C.T coordinator, filled by a recent graduate

who has served as a volunteer in the program. It is our way

of saying how important this program is, not only it the

growth and development of our students but also in keeping
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the College in touch with the problems and issues of the

wider world and meeting our responsibilities to the

Northfield community in which we live and serve.

As you may be aware, an organization called "Campus

Compact: The Project for Public and Community Service" was

established a few years ago by a national coalition of

colleges and universities. Carleton and three other

Minnesota institutions--Mankato State University,

Metropolitan State University and the University of

Minnesota--are members of that group, and Reatha Clark King

is a member of the executive committee. Its objective is to

encourage more student participation in public and community

service by increasing access to information, creating a

greater awareness of and commitment to public service among

students,,and reducing the disincentives which now

discourage studentg from service work. Campus Compact has

been working with colleges and universities across the

nation to provide information and technical assistance to

campus programs, strengthen the links between campus and

community service organizations, develop policies that

reward and encouraga student public service, and identify

sources of funding for incentive grants. We fully support

those efforts.

On the question of what role government should play, I

haven't had an opportunity to review the proposed

legislation. I would agree with Greg Rhodes that, as a

general proposition, some form of loan forgiveness would be
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worth exploring, particularly for those students from low

and moderate income families who, because of the increased

restrictions in federal grant programs, are forced to take

out ever larger loans to finance their education. As Greg

has pointed out, students with large debts hanging over

their heads the moment they leave College find it extremely

difficult to devote time to community or public service,

however much they may wish to do so. I also think that some

added funding could be helpful. Many Carleton students aro

anxious to explore careers of service, and if we could

provide support, for example, for internships in the

summers or during terms off to enable them to work in public

or private service organizations, we could provide useful

assistance to agencies and organizations, as well as a real

educational service for the interns. I'd welcome that kind

of support. The College could handle identification of

positions and placement, the agencies or organizations could

benefit from the assistance, and it all could be

accomplished for less cost than if those Organizations tried

to do their own recruiting of short -term personnel. I hope

these suggestions will be helpful as you explore legislative

initiatives.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for inviting me to

be with yOU here today.

96



93

Mr. SIKORSKI. Let me apologize for putting you people on last. I
think we have some of the most distinguished educators in the
state. As with the last panel, we are giving somewhat short shift
and it is a function of two things. First, we try to do too much in
these hearings. And it is probably better to try to do too much than
too little. Second, we wanted to put the participants and recipients
up front and highlight those. I know you understand, but I feel
badly that we are not going to have more time to learn from the
reservoir of insight that is here today.

I would like now to introduce Doctor Reatha Clark King, who is
the president of Metropolitan State University, which is built on
the idea of community involvement. She has long been an advocate
of youth service. She has been instrumental in showing her stu-
dents that there are merits to leaning outside the classroom as
well as inside. And she is also to be congratulated since she re-
ceived due acknowledgement and acclimation this week. It is good
to have you here.

STATEMENT OF DR. REATHA CLARK KING, PRESIDENT,
METROPOLITAN STATE UNIVERSITY IN THE TWIN CITIES

Dr. KING. Thank you very much, Congressman Sikorski. I appre-
ciate your acknowledgement of my ten years at Metropolitan State.
University. I have enjoyed it immensely. I urge you not to apolo-
gize for scheduling the presidents as the last panel. I think your
order was appropriate because you will certainly get a chance to
hear from us again on the same topic.

In the time allotted, I wish to quickly touch upon three catego-
ries or points. The first one is why we think community service by
students is important. I wish to quickly touch on our work at Met-
ropolitan State University. And then comment on Campus Com-
pact, a new national organization that fosters public and communi-
ty service by students. In all of this, I hope to highlight an appro-
priate role for the federal government.

In addition to everything else that has been said about why com-
munity service is important for students, and the points that were
made in my written testimony, I would like to underscore commu-
nity service as a strategy for helping students improve their prob-
lem solving skills. In this regard, I, as an adult, have benefitted im-
mensely from community and public service. I believe community
service by students would be quite valuable for this reason. So if
you would take a look at the four points that I stressed in the writ-
ten testimony, and add that one, I would appreciate it.

I have already noted that Metropolitan State is somewhat differ-
ent from other colleges and universities because we serve older stu-
dents and have strongly encouraged volunteerism and community
service by students as a basic part of our mission. We have gone
further to develop strategies for helping students increase their vol-
unteer work and also get recognition through the curriculum
and application of the learning froth volunteerism for the degree.

Our formation strategies at Metropolitan State include a volun-
teer services program, in which we offer courses and internships in
the field of volunteerism for women and men. We, secondly, offer a
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large internship program which at the present time is funded by a
grant from the Fund for the Improvement of Post-Secondary Educa-
tion. This program is very attractive to students who would other-
wise take loans out to pursue their education.

For all of our students, we liberally, if they are interested, con-
sider granting college level credit for learning from volunteerism
and other experiences that they have acquired before coming to
Metropolitan State. As a matter of fact, we will evaluate most past
experiences from work volunteerism, travel, and other endeavors
and consider that for college credit. This is one of the important
philosophical concepts for academic programming at Metropolitan
State.

I would like to call your attention to one particular problem,
which we are dealing with now. It is the limited opportunities for
people in the rural communities to gain access to these very valuable
educational strategies available to people in the metropolitan area.
It is difficult for individuals outside the metropolitan area to achieve
scholastic recognition for tl-eir education and experience as volun-
teers. Because of that, we have in progress an experimental program,
grant funded by the Kellogg Foundation, to help colleges and univer-
sities in the rural communities or in greater Minnesota communities
learn the strategies that we have pioneered at Metropolitan State for
recognizing learning from volunteerism and other work experiences.

You might ask, that if our population of students is mainly older
students, how then can we bridge with colleges and universities
that serve traditionally :nunger students? I think we can demon-
strate for them, perhaps, that it is not only a respectable way to
get an education, that is, community service, but that it might be a
more valid strategy for learning than some of our other traditional
strategies are. Therefore what we have learned at Metropolitan
State might be transferrable and used to get more faculty interest
in recognizing community service by their students.

In closing, I would like to just comment on this new national ini-
tiative called Campus Compact. It is an organization that was
formed to promote public and community service by students. It
grew out of recommendations of four college and university presi-
dents including Frank Newman, who is with the Education Com-
mission of the States, Father Timothy Healy of Georgetown, Doctor
Swearer of Brown, and Doctor Kennedy of Stanford. These people
recognized the dilemma that our students have today because of
their limited opportunity to prepare to be more civic minded and
become prepared to take care of some of the problems of today and
into the future. They invited other college and university presidents
to join with them in this Campus Compact initiative.

We identified for ourselves eight goals, and they are identified in
the written testimony, so I will not read them for you.

I am pleased to report that the organization is developing very
well. We have accomplished several projects including a book that
lists various kinds of comet anity service by students on various
campuses. We have established a Robinson Humanitarian Award
to recognize volunteerism and community service by students.

We have come, though, to the moment of truth where we charge
dues to the member institutions and I am pleased to report that we
still have outstanding retention of those who were originally inter-
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ested. I think now about 150, maybe 200 members. The group will
convene at the time of the American Council on Education Annual
Meeting in Washington. I think our meeting will be on January 20,
so most likely you will hear from us then.

I commend the various points of the proposed legislation. I have
it before me. While my colleague president from Carleton com-
mended you on the emphasis on the age range, I ask you to include
older students also. I would ask you to consider the potential benefits
of transfer of experience or shared learning between older students
and younger ones. Thank you very much.

[Prepared testimony of Ms. King follows:]

..
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TESTIMONY BY REATHA CLARK KING -- CONGRESSMAN SIKORSKI'S PUBLIC HEARING OM

YOUTH SERVICE AND VOLUNTEERISM** 1

November 13, 1987

Minnesota State Capitol - Room 115

I am Reatha Clark King, President at Metropolitan State University in the.

Twin Cities. I have served in this position for ten years and my office is

located here in St. Paul. My own involvement in community-service and

volunteerism extends over several years both in connection with a national

initiative called Campus Compact, and through our work at Metropolitan

State. In the time allotted, I wish to inform you about these topics: (1)

why my colleagues in education and I think that community service by

students is important; (2) our work with students at Metropolitan State

University; and (3) Campus Compact, a national organization that fosters

public and community service by students. Also I will attempt to present

:ome ideas on the federal role.

WHY COMMUNITY SERVICE BY STUDENTS IS IMPORTANT.

Whether today's students are younger or older, my colleagues and I in

higher education consider community service by students as important for

several reasons. First, community service contributes to the welfare of

the communities served and the quality of life of other people. Another

important reason is that the experience from community service also

contributes to the students' knowledge of the world of work and allows them

to test skills and knowledge they have gained in the classroom. In

addition, we feel that community service by students helps them become more

civic-minded and able to assist with problem-solving for the broader

society both during and after their college years.

Acknowledgements:
**Dr. Carol Ryan, Faculty, Metropolitan State University

Business-Higher Education Forum, Background Materials for 6/87 Meeting

1 0 0



97

Page 2

OUR WORK AT METROPOLITAN STATE UNIVERSITY. COMMUNITY SERVICE AND

VOLUNTEERISM BY OLDER STUDENTS.

Even though Metropolitan State serves older students who now show an

average age of 35, we strongly encourage volunteerism and community service

by students. However, very little prodding is needed to bring this about.

any of Our students are already leaders in volunteer and service work

before they enroll at our institution, and are therefore able to be a

resource for this cork by other students and faculty. Operating with an

educational philssophy that advocates service as a strategy.for learning

for an advanced degree, Metro State offers students various options for

using community service for achieving educational goals.
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'One of our mayor strategies is our Volunteer Services Program. We offer courses and

internships in the field of volunteerism to women and men who wish to become

administrators of volunteer programs. A second emphasis is our new community

service internship program, funded by a grant from the Fund for the Improvement

of Post-Secondary Education. Our goals in this program are to encourage students

to undertake community service and to reduce the level of student loan indebtedness

by providing stipends to cover the cost of the internship. We are seeking local

foundation support for this portion of the internship program.

Finally, we evaluate soma of the volunteer training and experience adult

dtudents bring to our university. We have assessed experience and volunteer

learning and have awarded competence, or credit to students who, as volunteers,

may have researched community issues such as land use planning or waste management.

These activities might have been carried out by the student as a member of the

League of Women Voters or another citizen group. We have also given credit to

persons who have headed up community projects such as Bicentennial or arts

festivals and to those who have served as presidents of organizations such as

the Jaycees or Junior Leagues. These volunteers have received leadership

training from their parent organizations, and can demonstrate the skills needed

to manage a large volunteer organization.

One-to-one volunteer experience has also been recognized by the university.

For example, credit would be given to a student who trained with the Minnesota

Literacy Council and then tutored persons who are learning to read.
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Other colleges and universities have been slow to recognize the value

of these experiences and to translate them into credits for students. Thus

it is more difficult for individuals outside the metropolital area to achieve

scholastic recognition for their education and experience as a volunteer.

More could be done to encourage state schools to develop tests and other

methods to evaluate this learning. To meet this need, Metropolitan State,

supported by a grant from the Kellogg Foundation, is. engaged in-a cooperative

project with twelve other public community colleges, state universities and

private colleges in Minnesota.ln which faculty members at those institutions

will 'be trained to assess some of the prior life/work experience students have

had,including work they have done as volunteers. Of course not all work one

has done as a volunteer could be equated es equivalent to college course work.

It is not enough, for example, to have served as a Boy Scout leader or to have

collected for the United Way. However, many Minnesotans have built up significant

volunteer experiences, often with the same organization, so that individuals can

present considerable evidence to, a college demonstrating that he or she is

knowledgeable about a particular organization's mission and programs and has

actively participated in training and active service for the group or cause.

More credit for this experience could be given in the workplace as well.

There have been efforts by the state of Minnesota and some other businesses to

equate volunteer experience with paid work experience so that persons entering

or re- entering the work force would be placed at a level or in a salary range

based oh descriptions of their unpaid work experience as well as the paid

positions they may have held.
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Some organizations that rely on volunteers are beginning to assist in

the process of equating volunteer experience to work experience. The Girl

in which
Scout Council of the St. Croix Valley gives each volunteer a folder-gge can

keep listing all of the volunteer positions she has held or wishes to hold so

that shecan keep a record of her work. Each volunteer position has a specific

Job description as well so that the individual can see which skills she has

used or can develop. These skills and the training she has received to learn

the skills are transferable to the work place. Furthermore, the listing of

these skills is useful to the volunteer working on a resume.

Recognition of volunteer experience in a variety of ways is critical and

wt don't do enough of it either formally, as in the case of college credits or

job evaluation. or informally within organizations or communities. In preparation

for this presentation, I asked a group of well-trained volunteers what they

wanted most. All said they would like more recognition for their voluntary

contributions of tima and service to others.
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AG11014S.THAT COLLEGES AND UNNERSITIES CAN TAKETO PROMOTE
PUBUC AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

Ca Mpus Compact: The Project for Public and Como.: inity Service
Box 1975. Brown University, Providence, RI 02912

Develop institutional Policies that Support Public Service Activity
-establish a campus center with a coordinated listing of volunteer opportunities and programs with a
paid staff coordinator
-give preference in the admission process to students whir have done meaningful volunteer work or
offer special achollushipeto these students

Colloile Work Study development funds (10% of available funds or 520,000 maximum) to
develop community service placements

PrevideinformaderrandTeahnlosi Assistance
-provide adequate intonation on public service careers through the campus career counseling
officelarge =muses need to have a specialist .
-make students aware of partial student loan forgiveness when working as a Peace Corps volunteer, a
VISTA volunteer or u a teacher for low-income communities
-sponsor a campus-wide conference focusing on public service issues and the need for student
involvement in the community
-sponsor career forums featuring graduates who have gone into service careeers

service agencies from the community to the campus to recruit at a campus volunteer fair
-offer fellowships for students proposing public service projects during their summer
vacations

Promote. Public Service Awareness
-publish school litenduie for prospective candidates that reflects the institution's commitment to
service. and the priority it is given at the university
-submit an opted piece from the president or chancellor to the local newspaper on behalf of
publid service, citing rpedhlc student volunteers as exemplary
-Submit two articles a month to students' hometown newspapers commending the student's service
activity
-stress the importance of public service in commencment exercises, convocation speeches,
welcoming addresses, and other public speeches

Reduce Financial Olseentives for Students Serving their Community
-offer fellowships to students who propose public service projects during their summer vacation or
during January term breaks.
-encourage students to work in the community as part of the College Work Study or State Student
Incentive Grant (SSIG) Program
-speak out on federal tuition assistance programs that include a service component
-work with stale, local, and municipal government to create a local Volunteer Corps. or to create public
service Internship programs

ExploneWays to Link Service to the Curriculum
-establish &faculty committee to review ways to integrate service into the academic cumculum and
explore possibilities of awarding credit for service-learning
-support the faculty who are interested in civic literacy and experiential education by giving them
release time to develop programs or supervise Internships
-allow students to choose volunteer work as part of a senior project requirement

Recognize Public Service Initiatives
- Recognize current student volunteers or alumni who volunteer or have made public service a career, in
alumni magazines
-present an award for outstanding public service at graduation or during the year
-publish in the baccalaureate or graduation program, a list of students who are active in the community

105
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Staff Fe Owings this yeae-$103041500 awards given to student' who delay army
to college or take erne off to perform saws.

At De Paw Minty, a nwical asw and a cutsrucson crew. apixturnauft 125
students and faculty educes. go to South Amerca for Wow Break, This year the
Student{ ma build and develop a home for abohohe women In ficatagua. The
opesortunity is so menu that students camp out ournightln order to daimons of
the 125 apoliavalsble. and olden* Pal flier own way or look 100flooriniii from
churclese and orgenbasone. Through** Ti. you Ti. *wan* hi the twig units
on camps we pared watt i Novice poled, such as Friends of Ti. Meta. a
We Caron Prague, wag lar&treg Seam.

At Vendee** Urevelaty students at to CenW ssr Health Sciences have d tor the
lollowingr45.000 hHJTi examrialoris for residents Inn: cc be Income
comity:des: melded in to lonnatoe of more than 15 OnmarY Nall/10M centers:
helped to eetsbligi mantes for smal farmers In coos throughout the Southeast:
establehed a Mowery "'tech conducts VetirnMIlry analysis on more than 1000
walla and soil "an gles . emu* for communitygroups.

At Stale Uri% o NT-NWT approximately 800 students are placed in 250
.rnity and government agencies. Thew intemshess are obtained through

traolment Ina duals* ar-Lrds credit io the mutants. In 410 01 the
COMPOOSNAMIS suniundIng enrolment In this desk It sums Mat more so:dents
could be pleoul t Mae were staff to develop to placements.

At Honed the nwriber of students doing *gluier Wick at Mug Brooks Mown.
a voksnew roger,' on-campy& has jumped from Odom.* 280 and 300 students
Su yews ago * rum than 1000 students *et year. hi the dais of 1983. '.4.9
Percent gam some toe to pubic surd,. wider, the die of 1984 Me comparablo
spun wt{ 48 percent These Inver..us In student volunteering could be attributed
to Increased *Norte on the pan of the winerarty to promote aril uportunites.
Also. the Lamont Public Service Fellowships provided a0210011 010P to $0000 to
enable students to do =raw volunteer wont-a2 applied for 10 awards.

At Notre Came over 500 students are involved In *rutted sennolisocial anon
gram on cempus. They are wonting vial young children In the Heed Stan
Prop yearlong *nursing homes. snoring, and aachtrig adults how to read.
There are approximately another SOO students involved In Individual or
donn4pOnaorld Wyk, acthwes.

ACF1, 04TO POSTER Pueuc sowice

Campus CornpaccThe Project for Public and Communrty Swot has been established at Brown tralversny.
under he administrative oversight of EC.% to NO revive higher educsoorit commitment to troming Is =dorm for
fooPeAlble oitlallaltd. Campus Compact is a feudal an rod 1985 meeting of college and university pros nub
who met to discuss efforts they could take to foster greater youth involvement an public service. and who
unanimously agreed something must by done to address the Issue.

Campus Compact 0 sponsored by a =stun of Insetubcins el higher education. The Comp= is =rated
to creating a coalition with leocraphic and insnadonal dversey. *Curtin private and public. four year and two year
Institutions. Nolo wince is net moiety meiterivorit for 'at rtde youth or a 'noblesse oak* duty of Ivy Loewe
studalb. Ills s a responsbtty of al, and the coottoris members: up wit reflect that Campus Compact wit also
address the role of oldie stindlos, not only youSt, in campus public saves 13,0171MS.

1 8
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The Compact Intends to take the following actions to foster public service:

e to provide information and technical assistance to on-campus
public service centers across the nation

to strengthen the links between the campuses and off-campus
service organizations

to consolidale and improve access to public service information

14 develop. pubic policy thermal* and encourages. student
public savior

to raise public awareness and commitment to college student
Involvement public service

to identify sources of financial support for students involved in
public service programs

To strengthen n-campus activities that promote public service. The Compact intends to provide assistance
for bulking and expanding community service protects, by working with the Campus Outreach Opportunity
League. The project will also research and propose ways to redress disincentives that discourage students
pancipation In community service. Such measures might ir.dude special considerations in admission and financial
ald. Improved patio service career advising, financial compensation for students taking loaves of absence to make
meaningful public senriascommitments, and greater involvement of faculty and academic advisors in public service
to stand as ellecdwerolmodelm Oneof its fortrisorressych wi l bet° survey the colleges and universities within
the coalition to identifr policies and programs attheeinstnutions which can be used as models for other
unlversitise Thresunrey results will also help to highlight the gaps in civic education and be a springboard from
which to develop plides to address this issue.

Nationally. thousands of community action agencies exist. The project will work with these agencies to
develop networks of regional organizations where information could be consolidated and be more readily available
to students. The Compact will also wacky/eh state and municpl programs. Campus Compact Plans to organize a
series of regional meetings with key legislators. businsscoople. higher education institutions, community leaders.
and foundations. These meetings will auto strong regional foundations for SWAM work and facilitate an
exchange of Information between parties that might otherwise duplicate programs or not know how to hook up with
other public swine Naval".

ECS Intends to seek support from a coalition of the nation's governors. Governor Robb of Virginia.
Governor Graham of Florida. Governor Kean of tkroJersey, and Governor Riley of South Carolina are aware of the
project and support Its mission. Campus Compact will also develop ties to the business community. especially with
companies that supportpublic service activities such as Levi-Strauss. Stride rte. and Xerox.

The projectwal work for government assistance of public service through advocating student aid for service
work. For Instance, many students currently supported by College Work Study are sweeping Ibrary steps or
washing cafeteria dishes. The Compel:twill work to get Work Study back to its original purpose: financel support for
students doing work directly related to their academic programs or related to public service. Srrtularly, the project wit
endorse efforts for the reauthorization of the Guaranteed Student Loan Program with provisions for extended
repayment schedules, renewable deferments and principal reductions for students choosing public service
careers.

Campus Compact will undertake a media campaign to raise the issue of collegiate public servi...e en
the national agenda by increasing public awareness of the urgency for a rediscovered commitment to service and
by stressing the workable solutions available to address this need. Such a pudic campaign will issue not only a
challenge to students to get involved with the community but a reminder to colleges and universities to provide an
education consonant withtheir institutional goals of service to nicety.
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While Campus Compact applauds at efforts to encourage pubic service. the following types of service will
form the centerpoint of the protect:

University-sponsored service projects

Swine work in exchange for financial assistance from colleges

Work sponsored by a community medal agency

Church sponsored service work nitre the goal is meeting secular
needs not proselytring new members.

Government sponsored service work. inducting VISTA and Peace
Corps.

Independent service projects not sponsored by any agency.

Campus Compact:The Project for Public and Community Service apprecates the diversity in philosophies of
service across American campuses. These guidelines serve only to define the centerpoint and boundanes of
sauce for the project. By joining the Camped. colleges and uraversibeS do not give up Mere autonomy to define
their own incivklual campus-based service programs. Campus Compact wit not dictate its philosophy of service to
any institution.

Campus Compact wilt, however, dictate charge to the nation's Institutions of higher
education to reconotte themselves to equipping their students to be the committed,
compassionate citizens upon which this nation depends. These institutions must provide the
leadership, resources, and focus that will enable youth to envision a better world, an
Intefdopendent one but one in which they as Individuals can make a positive contribution.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. At our hearing in the spring, we had the president
of Brown University testify on Campus Compact. How many Min-
nesota schools are affiliated, do you know?

Dr. KING. I know at least four, I do not know all of them. Man-
:: kato State was an original member, University of Minnesota, Met-

ropolitan State, Carleton, and surely there must be others. Howev-
er< I would like to emphasize one pointthat there are many col-
leges and universities with long traditions of community and public
service by students and established strategies on campus for having
them to do that, who are not associated, or at least active members
of Campus Compact. So those of us who have bonded ourselves to-
gether in this compact are learning a great deal from these others.
So it is certainly not inclusive if you are looking for a list of all of
those in our country who are doing community service.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you.
Doctor Davis is the past president of Macalester College and has

not stopped promoting services in the community since he kind of
left academia. He is currently one of the leaders of the Minnesota
Literacy Campaign and is very active in youth service organiza-
tions throughout the state and the country. Doctor Davis?

STATEMENT OF DR. JOHN B. DAVIS, JR., FORMER SUPERINTEND-
ENT OF MINNEAPOLIS SCHOOLS AND PRESIDENT EMERITUS
OF MACALESTER COLLEGE

Dr. DAVIS. Thank you for the opportunity to be here. You have
my prepared statement, I shall make no reference to it. It was how-
ever designed exclusively to talk to your proposal and I commend
that as a valuable piece of legislation. Let me state, however, that I
wish there was a representative here from Macalester College, par-
ticularly Nancy Tel lett Royce, who has for the past several years
run one of the most extensive programs of school/college/volunteer
service for several hundred students each year involved in a varie-
ty of activities in community service.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Doctor Davis, let us an extend an invitation to her,
should she have the time between 2 a.m. and 4 a.m. in the morn-
ing, to prepare a statement on her experiences with that excellent
program and we will put it in the record.

Dr. DAVIS. If you would like, sir, I will take the initiative in
alerting her to the fact that she could submit if desired.

Mr. SIKORSKI. That is an outstanding invitation to anyone.
Dr. DAVIS. I should like to state that as one of the older people

here I, perhaps, have the distinction of having by special arrange-
ment spent a week and a half at a CCC camp location in the '30s. I
know what that experience was. I know its value. I want also to
state that all of my career has been committed to the issue of vol-
unteer service. Students from the Minneapolis public schools, when
I was a superintendent there, are in a large way responsible for re-
juvenating, beautifying the Mississippi River bank. I observed them
working to clean the river banks. That is illustrative of the work
that students can do.

We need to reorient America's thinking. There is a need for the
Congress in the words of the great Adlai Stevenson, to "speak
sense to the American people." That line has been lost in recent
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years. We need it also at the state legislative levels. One need only
read newspapers to discover that the planet Earth, this terrestrial
ball, is threatened for a variety of reasons including the projection
of an atmospheric warming of six degrees in the next 60 years,
which will have significant impact. We know also of the depletion
of natural r.. rtes.

The greatest natural resource we have are the young men and
women. They are deserving of attention. The program you advo-
cate, Mr. Congressman, is good, valuable and essential. I hope very
much that in some form, it can be implemented. More than that,
hope that the Commission established will look beyond the specifics
of your proposal and see the possibility of developing a pattern of
national effort which can guide universities and colleges, secondary
schools, as well as all volunteer programs to the end that there be
a coordinated effort of meeting more effectively the needs of society
and the needs of youth and young adults in the United States
today. Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Dr. John B. Davis, Jr. follows:]

11.2
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TESTIMONY OF DR. JOHN B. DAVIS, JR.

Former Superintendent of Minneapolis Schools, and
President Emeritus of Macalester College

in Support of H.R. 3096

November 13, 1987
Minnesota State Capitol - Room 115

We celebrate the 200th anniversary of our Constitution. In speeches and writings

we acknowledge its qualities and strengths which have enabled us to move, within its

frame of liberties and restraints, toward a just and humane structure of government

providing privilege, opportunity and responsibility for all to share.

At the same time we recognize our shortcomings, including an impressive lack of

understanding concerning how our national government functions, its relationshipto

states and communities and its dependence on broad-based citizen participation.

Thoughtful citizens are alarmed knowing that, absent citizen involvement in, and

and commitment to the processes of government, we diminish the authority of

government at every level and its capacity to serve and protect the interests of all

citizens.

Contributing to this risk in no small measure are millions of young Americans who

for a variety of reasons are disadvantaged, alienated and disinclined toward the

advantages and Importance of secondary school education. They live their lives outside

the framework of citizenship which has as its hallmark social conscience and

commitment to the common good. We are a society increasingly marked by wide

disparities in wealth, security of neighborhoods, housing, social services, educational

opportunity, religious orientation and attitude toward responsible living in our

democracy. As a result we are currently endangered and the threat to our future

increases.

Much has been written about American youth. Many plans and strategies have
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been advanced for meeting the needs of young Americans. States and communities have

taken steps to increase opportunities for bringing them into the mainstream exposing

them to the advantages present and potential for maximizing opportunity for self-

fulfillment and service for the common good. While particular attention has been given

to underprivileged youth, many are the voices raised in concern for the advantaged youth

in high schools and colleges who appear to lack motivation and interest in a "national

common purpose" but are rather oriented toward "unrestrained individualism."

The many reports and studies give fair warning.

It is time to act!

Study and planning should precede action.

The main thrust of H.R. 3096 is to study and recommend to the President ways by

which youth 17 to 24 years of age, the advantaged and the disadvantaged, may be

permitted to perform Volunteer Service in federal, state and/or local governmental

agencies. By so doing they would both serve and learn. That would be goodl It would be

good for youth and good for those who guide them. Such a program could immeasurably

benefit the nation as we seek ways of strengthening our commitment and belief in the

power and virtue of the undergirding instrument of our democracythe Constitution.

I believe further that the Commission findings could give direction to a

coordinated national approach for states and localities as they seek ways to improve

opportunities for their youth and young adults.

###
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Mr. SIKORSKL Thank you. Doctor Leslie Duly is the vice president
of the Bemidji State University and has been instrumental in
bringing youth service opportunities to the Bemidji State Campus
as well as service organizations in the Bemidji community. As a
member of the Advisory Board of Minnesota Youth Services,
Doctor Duly recently succeeded in bringing a branch of the United
Way to Bemidji. Thank you, Doctor.

STATEMENT OF DR. LESLIE C. DULY, VICE PRESIDENT FOR
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS, BEMIDJI STATE UNIVERSITY

Dr. DULY. Good morning. I would like to echo our appreciation,
Congressman, in holding this hearing in St. Paul. I would also with
the time that I have available this morning wish to invite you and
other Members of Congress to conduct a similar hearing in Be-
midji.

Mr. &comm. I was thinking earlier when Doctor Myers was
here of looking at Beyn'dji and Duluth for a one day kind of
"double hearing" in those areas.

Dr. DULY. Yes, that would be very good because I have to remind
myself as well as others that Bemidji State University serves an
area in Northern Minnesota that is larger than the states of Mas-
sachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Vermont
and half of Maine combined.

Mr. Smo Rm. Also, I was up in Red lake in March, and there was
a poster there about Carleton students coming up for a program at
the reservation at Red lake. So I know that a lot going on in the
Bemidji area.

Dr. DULY. In the written testimony, I have provided, and tried to
stress, two things. One, that again and again we may be focusing
on volunteer service only in terms of what it provides for those
who are directly involved in the activity rather than seeing it as a
very critical component in higher education today. The other point
I tried to develop in the testimony is that again and again especial-
ly in rural America, we are not only talking about providing stu-
dent volunteers to organizations that can assist in the promotion of
the overall welfare of the region but again and again we need stu-
dent volunteers to establish those necessary organizations. So that
in a sense we are contributing to the overall leadership develop-
ment of the region. Also I would want to add that there is, in refer-
ence to the question asked earlier this morning, on growing evi-
dence that volunteer service does not necessarily compete with the
economy, but on the contrary volunteers bring necessary service
skills and prospectives so they can be a source for the enrichment
of the economy. We at Bemidji State have recognized during the
past several years that it is not only appropriate to promote volun-
tary service for students, but we are trying to give that service tra-
ditional forms of recognition. For example, a Deans list might not
only identify students who have done extremely well in the class-
room but might also include students who have been serving the
community in various capacities.

I would be very happy to answer any questions that you may
have.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Excellent statements from all of you. I have two
questions now. One is: what about requireing, say on the high
school level, some modest community service, so that young people
can be exposed to it, if they have not by that time been so exposed
as a kind of price of citizenship?

Dr. DAVIS. I would like to comment quickly. I have no problem
with that if there can be adequate funding for the supervision to
the end that the experience a student has is valuable and is ac-
countable.

Mr. SIKORSKI. And positive.
Dr. DAVIS. And positive. But to just assert that the public schools

must now take on this burden without the personnel necessary to
do it would probably be ill advised.

Mr. SIKORSKI. As Jim mentioned, the state of Minnesota allows
50 cents per capita for community education planning to determine
the optimum youth program for the community. But that is my
feeling as well, Doctor, that the resources have to go hand in hand.
Doctor King?

Dr. KING. Yes. Congressman, I would like very much the idea of
appointing the young people while they are in high schoolthe
need, and having them develop to do volunteer service. I am think-
ing of my own children. One is 22, the other is 19. I know how
much I wanted them to be service oriented, civic minded. I would
like to offer a suggestion that might accomplish the same at an
earlier ag' for students. That is the idea of introducing it in
elementary schools; the concept of volunteerism and connecting that
with the school's curriculum. I believe that there is a project done by
the Memphis United Way that seeks to do this. I have not seen the
details of the project, but I read about it in the United Way of
America newsletter to volunteer chairpersons throughout the coun-
try. They adopted this, I think, as a centennial year project. You
might want to investigate that and see if we could get it started in
the elementary school level, then by the time the young people get to
high school, it might be part of their culture. As you know, this year
is the centennial celebration year for United Way, and I am chair-
person of the board of the St. Paul United Way, so I have been very
close to the National Initiatives and some of them are just wonder-
ful. By the way, last night we celebrated the conclusion of our
campaign. We achieved our goals so this morning, everything is
easier.

Mr. SIKORSKI. I am going to hire you as a fundraiser then.
Dr. KING. I can only help if you need $16.5 million. [Laughter.]
Mr. SIKORSKI. Doctor Duly?
Dr. DULY. We certainly would like to see if not a requirement,

certainly the idea, vigorously supported. In Northern Minnesota in
particular there are limited opportunities for the young people to
see what are the benefits of education, what are the benefits of dif-
ferent career possibilities, and again and again, whatever can be
done to promote that contact would be an excellent way to assist in
the development of Northern Minnesota.

Mr. SIKORSKI. I am going to ask you to respond for the record.
And I am going to ask this of other college presidents in Minnesota
and elsewhere: what is the interrelationship between a college post-
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graduate volunteer service program involving deferment and for-
giveness of student loans and the problem with student loan delin-
quencies, generally? I can see a couple of issues off the top: with
less money going back to the revolving fund, you are going to have
less available for other things, a public relations issue and an issue
of fairness, of only deferring and partially forgiving those who are
in community service and others who are escaping payment totally.
And there is the issue of relative priority of monies.

Dr. DAVIS. Without speaking against it, Mr. Congressman, I
would point out that to the degree there is a reward or remunera-
tion, something at the end that has a personal value, you have dis-
torted to a degree the sense of volunteerism. I think we should
keep that clearly in mind. If there is to be a forgiveness, I would
reiterate the importance of having whatever voluntary work serv-
ice is done, be done under the very finest, sensitive supervision
with accountability as a requirement for insuring that which is
done has some correspondence to that which is owed. But tran-
scending what was owed is a commitment on the part of every citi-
zen, each must feel that they owe the nation. So I have some con-
cerns about it. But I would not discourage-

Mr. SIKORSKI. The way Senator Bumpers talks about loan for-
giveness is that there comes a point when you have got to remove
some barriers to volunteering. I thought I had a lot of debt when I
left school, but right now twice as many students need to take out
debt in order to complete college. And the debt has riscq to be
twice as large as it was when my generation was going to college.
And that is pretty substantial.

Dr. DAVIS. I would make one point, to the degree that worthy col-
lege students carry debt is a representation, a reflection of the in-
ability of the society to provide that education without significant
debt. That is the other side of this coin.

Adequacy of support for public and to a proper degree private in-
stitutions from the flow of federal monies makes good sense.

Mr. SIKORSKI. That is what I would like you to address. We have
a problem with delinquent loans, I suspect because we have expo-
nentially increased the burden on students in order to get through
college. We want college graduates in a competing economy. We
want a higher education level. We want people to go for that
American dream. But we have been stealing resources from that. I
would like you to address thatand I did not want to get too much
into it because we steal from the strength of your comments.

Again, I thank you very much for your contribution. You have a
last minute comment?

DULY. I just wanted to point out that many of our students,
for example, are driving 200 miles round trip per day. This means
that it is very, very difficult for them to put in the time and to pay
for the costs of volunteer service activities. We would very much
like to see federal support provided not only for the student as a
volunteer contributor to the community, but also to look at per-
haps ways in which the volunteer organization might be enhanced
in its use of student volunteers.

[Prepared statement of Dr. Leslie C. Duly follows. Also included is
a statement from Rick Jackson, vice president, Metro Minneapolis
YMCA:]
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Preaentation to the Congressional Hearing on Volunteer Student Service

by

Leslie C. Duly

Vice ?resident for Academic Affairs

Deaidji State University

13 November 19111

Representative Sikorski and other webers of the Congressional delegation

and staff present thisiiiorning:

May I begin by thanking you for electing to hold this hearing to examine the

need for greater national recognition and assistance on behalf of Volunteer

Student Service. I appreciate the opportunity to present my views on the

need for such attention. I serve as Chief Academic Officer of Bemidji State

University. With a current enrollment of approximately 4500 students,

Bemidji State is the only baccalaureate-level institution serving the

northern third of the'State of Minnesota, a service region larger than the

states of Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Vermont

and half of Maine combined.

As noted in its mission statement and its firs resolve to provide an

undergraduate education that empowers its students, the University is

vitally concerned with promoting the intellectual, social, cultural and

economic development of society and more especially of northern Minnesota.

I as here this morning because of that commitment, and I as articulating one
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of Bemidji State's highest priorities when I state that we enthusiastically

sylvan the establishment of a national commission to study and to promote

youth service and other strategies for the promotion of community service by

today's youth and college populations.

My *attitudes*, I ask you to note, also reflects a sense of urgency that

through federal as well as state leadership sore substantial suppora is

given to volunteerism enemy models of youth service. This support needs

to be given as quickly as possible if we are to respond to the leadership

and social services' **ads of America's communities, both urban and rural.

At the recant hearing on volunteer service held by Governor Perpich and the

Minnesota Office on Volunteer Services, Department of Administration, in

Bemidji, Dr. Judith McDonald, Deem of the Division of Humanities and Pine

Arts etllemidji State, testified on behalf of responding to this urgent

need. She dealt in particular with several public policy. issues involving

the promotion of volunteer service, and I have appended a copy of her

remarks to my testimony.

Turning to higher education, I wish to state that the involvement,

sponsorship and recognition of community service as a part of and a

complement to higher education is not an optional activity for today's

University as it seeks to fulfill its educational responsibilities. There

are some vary +significant reasons why higher education needs community

service if it is to educate well its students. In a recent issue of Ch:Ige

Naming, Jon Wagner, Director of University- School Education Dvzovoment

for the University of California, noted, 'a separation of academic cork from

community service can diminish intellectual capacity, maks students less

2
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thoughtful than we want them to be, and allow less than rigorous efforts to

frame and test research questions. This separation parallels similar

disjunction, between action and reflection or between theory and practice,

disjunction that colleges and universities have a special responsibility to

transcend. Allow me to expand upon Dr. Wagner's rationale with specific

reference to Bemidji State.

As you may know, in our own general education program of courses common to

all degree programs, the University has recognized the importance of the

evaluation of student-based outcomes and the recording of the 'value added'

to the educational competencies of our students. Our continuing

in concert with the nationally-sponsored College Outcomes Measurement

Project (COMP) by ACT substantiates the paramount importance of two learning

outcomes: the ability to undertake analytical reasoning and the utilization

of effective communication skills. And each of these skill] must be placed

within an orientation of adaptability and responsiveness by today's student

who seeks to be successful. Although there remains the practice both within

es well as outside of the academy to measure student use of universities

and, therefore their value, in terns of majors completed and degrees

pursued, this index hides several realities for the college graduate.

Students, on the average, change their majors more than thren times while in

college. Less than 40% of the students who graduate in a given major will

take employment in that field. This is made more understandable when one

recognizes that more than one -third of the positions to be tiken by college

graduates over the next ten years have not yet been invented; they will be

dependent upon disciplines not yet invented. Finally, as demonstrated by

the statistics and by those of us in this room, career mobility is a marked
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attribute as well as expectation by college graduates. Opportunities for

social interaction, group experience and organizational skills therefore are

likely to be of increased importance in the future.

How to promote opportunities for students to strengthen as well as to test

their abilities to solve problems, to clarify issues, and to formulate

values - which are all components in analytical reasoning skills - and to

gain increased communication effectiveness becomes a special challenge for

today's University. First one must recognize that today's student is not

necessarily a participant in a situation whey inclass and extracurricular

activities may blond within a self-contained environment. Today 35% of the

Bemidji State student population consists of students over the age of 26 and

and over 300 of tha students are transfer students, presenting a variety of

previous educational experiences; 20% are commuters, many whom attend on a

part-tine basis as resources and needs permit; still others are taking our

"waning progress at Hibbing and elsewhere and attend other institutions by

day. College is for many an experience that complements their involvement

in careers, rather than is a pre-condition. For example, this fall the age

range at Bemidji State for its students runs from 16 to 83. These students

cannot be reached through traditional campus-based activities - their

perspective goes beyond limited collegiate sct'ial institutions and

opportunities. Yet many of these students may receive only a fragmented

higher educationmade up of courses here and courses thereunless the

University itself sees ways for these students to participate in meaningful

educational activities within the larger community. Herein lies the

importance of our vigorous promotion of voluz,' T service. Adding

additional significance to this point for ali of our students is that we

4
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know if a student dos not participate in extracurricular or

community-fo4used activities while in college, the chances of such

participation later in his/her career are about nil. On the contrary, the

more experience, the more confidence, the more interaction eXperien;ed by

the student in these activities during college the more substantial will be

that student's contributions to the larger community after graduation. In

short, our success in education as well as our success in developing

long-term leadership resources for our comet pities depends upon our ability

as universities to vigorously encourage student involvement in community

service as undergraduates. te need to focus upon the community as a way to

complete our reaponsibilittes to our students, and student involvement in

volunteer community services permits a wide array of opportunities for

students to apply as well as to strengthen their academic experiences and to

gain needed insights into their own perspectives and talents.

In recognizing this, Bemidji State has recently sought to endorse the

establishment of a student-initiated volunteer office to coordinate student

contributions to community services and agencies. Project SCOPE (Student

Community Outrec:h program, Etc.) begins this spring. Also as a University

we are investigating the recording of sustained volunteer community service

as a part of a students' official record; the awarding of credit for

specially-designed student programs; and the establishment of a Deans' List

for Distinguished Community Service. And we intend to do more. However,

there are needs that cannot readily be met by the University, whose funding

is based upon inch.)s credit hour production, not by students wishing to

contribute to community projects. Allow me to present these needs later in

my testimony.

5
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Turning to our Aiirvice area, which is undeniably one of the moot beautiful

environments in the nation, the generally rural, isolated yet culturally

diverse population together with an absence of widespread industry,

profitable agriculture and other employment opportunities have led to a

quality of opportunity that is severely limited in comparison to other

regions of Minnesota and the nation.

As you may know, the majority of students - 60% - who attend Bemidji State

University are residents of the north central region of Minnesota. Althorgh

the percentage of high school graduates who elect to attend pOst-secondary

institutions has historically been lower for Minnesota's northern counties,

the proportion within the service region electing attendance at Bemidji

State University over other institutions remains hIghapprostmately ova out

of every three selecting a baccalaureate institution has selected Bemidji

State University. For these studentsmany of whom elect associate as well

as baccalaureate programs, the Utivereity is often the only avenue of

opportunity for higher education. This is particularly true of the Native

American student; it has been estimated that 901 of the Native Americans

from our service region who attend baccalaureate institutions attend Bemidji

State University. More than 250 Native Americans are currently attending

the institution.

In this setting, with the University serving as the major educational force

in the vast region, any effort by the institution to promote student service

in community organizations pays two additional dividends. Firstly, through

such service, the student becomes knowledgeable about how his/her own

6
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community functions and how humeri resources may be mustered to deal with the

Challenges facing that community. Secondly,the community itself receives

the services of the student volunteer--a decided increase in the capacity of

the community's agencies and services to enhance their effectiveness. These

volunteers canralso bring in new talents and perspectives as well as

willingness to serve. And in a region where diverse role models of

opportunity and education may not be readily seen by the younger population,

campus volunteers may well be able to serve as sources of encouragement.

The linking of the region to its educational resources through students

serving as volunteers in its communities constitutes a very exciting outcome

of a more substantial commitment to volunteer service by Bemidji State

University.

Then, too, I should note that our University faculty are actively involved

in research and service projects. Last year alone the University's faculty

generates 1.4 million dollars in external grants and contracts alone. The

range of the projects is impressive; however, what is missing from the list

are projects carrying University resources into the region's civic

organizations, community service organizations, and social service agencies,

providing for them leadership training, management skills, computer

training, or even CPR and other health-related educational instruction. In

brief, there are few funds available for the initiation of projects that

promote the upgrading of volunteer organizations in rural America, that

provide for inservice educational needs of the community's leadership in

volunteer organizations, or that support social research projects that might

well promote the establishment of new volunteer organizations or alliances

to take better advantage of the human resources in the region. With student

7
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participants in such research and service programs joined by faculty with

expertise to be put to uses, the students and faculty together would gain a

further, enriched understanding of the importance of community service and

community development. And again the community itself also would be a major

beneficiary.

To the above point, I would like to add a personal observation about rural

America in this time of great economic hardship end dislocation. Hot only

is it true that older community-based organizations, like the communities

themselves, are undergoing change, but in many fields of human endeavour, no

volunteer organization or service exists. Even in settings where there is a

recognition that something should be done to improve the quality of life for

a particular group within the population, there is sometimes an absence of

education on how to establish volunteer organizations, of models elsewhere,

and of networks that might put these people in touch with their counterparts

in the region. Yet precisely at this time when more human services are

needed to me t the needs of the entire span of the population within the

region, more concerted efforts are needed to help communities understand how

they may be abl to augment their services through the establishment of

volunteer organ' rations. Here, I see national support being used to enlarge

the effectiveness of such services as the Minnesota State Office of

Volunteer Services. the National Youth Leadership Council, and the Campus

Outreach Opportunity League. What is especially attractive to me as an

educator is the opportunity this would give to allow students to be

problem-solvers in real life situations.

8
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From my remarks, it should be clear that I strongly support the

establishment of a Federal Commission to study and to promote Youth

Service. I see a critical need for this Federal Government to provide both

support and endorsement for the strengthening of opportunities for our youth

to serve society. It is important for that support and endorsement to

extend beyond a limited audience. One of the critical needs is to promote

the recognition by business and industry, by post - secondary education and by

government itself of the value volunteer service has to these enterprises as

well as to the individual. We need to move beyond altruistic endorsements

of volunteerism and vs need to see how we all have benefits to reap as well

as contributions to give to a society in which volunteerism is a way of

life.

I also wish to recommend the following as a partial list of appropriate

responses to some of the needs I have addressed:

1. Estiblishmsnt of and providing of funds on behalf of a

University-Community Volunteer Service Initiation Program. Funds

would be used to permit faculty and students and leaders of

community organizations to initiate student volunteer service

programs, to provide for the construction of a network enng

volunteer organizations and the University, to provide needed

educational services to the organizations, and to promote ongoing

institutional recognition of the value of community service to the

institution's students.

9
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2. Concerted study of ways to support the needs and assist in

addressing the costs for students to be volunteer participants in

Al
community organizations. I believe it unreasonable, considering

the need for students to meet escalating costs in attending

school, for students to absorb in full the expenses of sustained
ti

involvement in volunteer community service. Especially for our

service region, the concept of volunteerism would be

disappointingly limited if vs are to have students serve only in

the Bemidji area. How are these costs to be net, especially if an

organization itself is struggling to perform its function?

Perhaps, an enlightened study would demonstrate that a joint

sponsorship by an institution, the tate and the federal

government would be one way to meet these costs. Perhaps, another

would be for the Federal Government to provide communities with

incentive grants to use student volunteers am to meet some of the

costs of transportation and lodging.

3. Vigorous support for such organizations as the Minnesota Youth

Services Program, with its emphasis on providing service to the

individual and contributions to the community. Bemidji State

University in particular recognizes that the Minnesota Youth,

Services Program constitutes a very attractive option to the

student from rural Minnesota who may not be able to afford or who

may not yet be ready for college to gain that necessary

perspective to be a long-term, positive contributor to the state.

We need well-funded Youth Services Programs that can serve as

10
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orientations to long-term community commitments by our young

people.

4. Consideration for the establishment, perhaps is a model program,

of regional, Volunteer Service/Education Coordinators. Serving in

his/her region as both a facilitator and resource for contributing

to the welfare of volunteer organizations and as a field

coordinator of student volunteers from both high schools and

post-secondary. institutions, the Coordinator/Educator would be a

very inexpensive investment, yet that person would provide both

broad coordination as well as continuing community interest in the

volunteer concept. The person would be in a sense both a

representative of the energies of our young people and an

ambassador on behalf of community expectations and needs. Perhaps

such roles could be performed by members of our senior citizenry -

sn excellent way to take advantage of the expertise of our retired

people.

In closing my remarks, I wish to add that Bemidji State University wishes to

express its willingness to make its resources available to achieve these and

other goals on behalf of student volunteer servitas; we are anxious to

assist in every way we can. I also wish to state that Bemidji State

University shares in the expectation that as we together forge new

structures to promote students as volunteers, we will be improving the

educational effectiveness of those students.

Thank you.

11
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STATE OF VOLUNTEERISM HEARING
MINNESOTA OFFICE ON VOLUNTEER SERVICES

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

ORGANIZATION: BEMIDJI STATE UNIVERSITY
TESTIFIERS: JUDY MCDONALD. DEAN OF HUMANITIES AND FINE ARTS

LETICIA SANBORN, STUDENT, ENGLISH MAJOR
ANN HAUGO, STUDENT, ENGLISH MAJOR

DATE: OCTOBER 28. 1987
?LA,..., BEMIDZI CITY HALL

MCDONALD TESTIMONY

LET ME BEGIN BY EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF BEMIDJI STATE UNIVERSITY

TO GOVERNOR PERPICH FOR HIS PRESENCE HERE TONIGHT, THUS ADDING FURTHER TO HIS

LONG-TERM SYMBOLIC AND POLITICAL SUPPORT OF VOLUNTEERISM. I ALSO WISH TO THANK

MEMBERS OF THE PANEL FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY AS PART OF THE "VOLUNTEERS

MOVE MINNESOTA" EFFORT TO INCREASE THE LEVEL OF MINNESOTA VOLUNTEERISM BY 50% BY

1990. I AM PLEASED TO ACKNOWLEDGE IN PARTICULAR YOUR MODERATOR. KAROL

MCCRACKEN, WHO HAS BEEN AND IS A MAJOR CONTRIBUTOR TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF

VOLUNTEERISM IN THE BEMIDJI comMUNITY AND IN PROMOTING VOLUNTEER INITIATIVES

BETWEEN THE COMMUNITY AND THE UNIVERSITY.

IF TIME PERMITTED, I WOULD RECOUNT FOR YOU THE MANY EDUCATIONAL AND

SOCIAL REASONS WHY STUDENT VOLUNTEERISM IS A HIGH PRIORITY OF STUDENTS, FACULTY

AND STAFF AT BEMIDJI STATE. MY STRATEGY INSTEAD WILL BE TO IDENTIFY SOME PUBLIC

POLICY ISSUES THAT WE ARE ENCOUNTERING OR ANTICIPATING AS WE CARRY FORWARD OUR

EFFORTS TO ENCOURAGE STUDENTS TO ACT ON THEIR IMPULSES TO BE OF SERVICE TO

OTHERS AS PART OF THEIR EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE. I WILL SUMMARIZE FIVE POLICY

QUESTIONS AND THEN ASK TISH SANBORN AND ANN HAUGO, BEMIDJI STATE UNIVERSITY

STUDENTS FROM RICHFIELD AND BEMIDJI, TO SHARE WITH YOU THEIR THINKING AND

EXPERIENCES WITH STUDENT VOLUNTEERISM.

puBLIC PoLICT QUESTIONS

1. HOW DO WE AS A SOCIETY REKINDLE THE "HABIT", THE SPIRIT OF

VOLUNTEERISM
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NEARLY 150 YEARS AGO, ALEXIS DE TOCQUEVILLE WROTE IN PINEOLCLIff

=BIG& OF HIS ADMIRATION OF THE EXTREME SHILL ANOILICJAS SHOW IN

'PROPOSING CONNON OBJECT FOR THE EXERTIONS OF MANY AND IN

INDUCING TEEN VOLUNTARILY TO PURSUE IT.' HOSPITALS, LIBRARIES,

CHURCHES, AND SCHOOLS GREW OUT OF AMERICAN INGENUITY TO PkOCLAIN A

TRUTH OR PROPAGATE SOME FEELING, THUS SETTING THE GREAT EXAMPLES

OF VOLUNTEERISM. OUR SOCIETY HAS CHANCED AND VE CAN NO LONGFE

ASSUME THAT FREE ASSOCIATIONS SUCH AS LADIES AUXILIARIES WILL BE

THE MAJOR POOL FROM WHICH VOLUNTEERISM IS GENERATED OR THAT THE

NEED FOR HELP IS A RATIONALE IN ITSELF FOR ACTION. VE NEED TC .

CONFRONT THIS SITUATION SO THAT OUR TIME WILL NOT BE CITED AS THE

PERIOD DURING WHICH THE SPIRIT OF AMERICAN VOLUNTEERISM WAS LOST.

LET US ACT NOV FOR LEADERSHIP SUCCESSION IN CONNUNITY SERVICE. WE

BELIEVE THAT IT IS QUALITY OF LIFE ISSUE FOR THE PERSON BEING

SERVED.

2. WHAM VALUE, IF ANY. WILL FUTURE EMPLOYERS AND/OR GRADUATE SCHOOLS

GIVE TO STUDENT VOLUNTEERISM THROUGH THEIR HIRING AND SELECTION

PRACTICES?

TRANSCRIPTS. PORTFOLIOS. AND LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION ARE SOME

TYPICAL METHODS USED BY UNIVERSITIES TO VALIDATE STUDENT

PREPARATION AND COMPETENCE. UNIVERSITIES VANT THEIR STUDENTS TO

SUCCEED IN BOTH THEIR PERSONAL AND INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENT, TO BE

COMPETITIVE IN THE MARKETPLACE, AND TO FUNCTION AS SOCIALLY

RESPONSIBLE CITIZENS. VOLUNTEERISM HELPS STUDENTS RELATE WHAT

THEY LEARN TO LIFE. HOW DO VARIOUS CONSTITUENCIES WANT THOSE

RESULTS COMMUNICATED, IF AT ALL? AGAIN. WE BELIEVE THAT IT IS A

QUALITY OF LIFE ISSUE. AND I VAN? YOU TO KNOW THAT A. NUMBER OF

BEMIDJI STATE EMPLOYEES HAVE BEEN ENTRUSTED WITH THE

130
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RESPONSIBILITY OF GIVING APPROPRIATE RECOGNITION AND SUPPORT TO

STUDENT VOLUNTEERISM.

3. IS THERE EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE IN VOLUNTEERISM?

CLOSE TO ONE -THIRD OF THE STUDENTS AT nu= STATE ARE TEX

SO-CALLED RETURNING ADULT. NEAR= 90B OP ITS STUDENT POPULATION

IS ON FINANCIAL AID. VAST MAJORITY OF THESE TWO GROUPS EITHER

ROIL ANB,..- HAVE FAMILY RESPONSIBILITIES. BEMIDJI STATE ALSO HAS

OVER 200 INDIAN STUDENTS ENIOLLED.DORING ANT ONE QUARTEI. TIME,

CULTURE, AND LIFE CIRCUMSTANCES NERD TO RE OVERCOME AS HARRIERS 70

STUDENT PARTICIPATION IN VOLUNTEERISM.

OTHERS TONIGHT WILL MOST CERTAINLY DESCRIBE THE GREAT NEED YE HAVE

IN NORTHERN MINNESOTA FOR HUMAN SERVICES TO COMBAT poultry,

ILLNESS, VIOLENCE. AND ALIENATION. THE POINT IS THAT VOLUNTEERISM

MATTERS AS QUALITY OF LIFE ISSUE TO THE PERSONS 'RING SERVED.

MOREOVER, THERE IS JOY THAT CONES WITH BEING SERVER THAT IS

DITFELERT VIDE DOING THAT RUCH TOO ARE PAID 70 DO.

4. IS VOLUNTEERISM FREE?

UNIVERSITIES AEI FUNDED LARGELY ON THE BASIS OF artommorr AND

CREDITS GENERATED. YET UNIVERSITIES ARE ALSO EXPECTED TO PROVIDE

VAST AIRE! or SERVICES THAT TYPICALLY DO NOT CLIMATE CREDIT AND

ARE LABOR INTENSIVE. VOLUNTEERS OF= NEED TO BE TRAINED, OTHERS

NEED TO NAVE TRANSPORTATION OR. CHILD CARE PROVIDED. STANDARDS POE

VOLUNTEER/SE NEED TO RE ESTABLISHED AND SUSTAMEED COORDINATION

NEEDS TO RE PROVIDED BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY AND THE LANCER

COMMUNITY. EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE NEEDS TO BE

MONITORED.

MERE ARE EXISTING MODELS, SUCH AS THE BOY SCOUTS, THAT

DEMONSTRATE HOW THE INVESTMENT IN PAYING FOR COORDINATION OF

VOLUNTEER SERVICES PRODUCES HUMAN DIVIDENDS. OUR REGION AND OUR
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UNIVERSITY NEED MONETARY ASSISTANCE SO THAT PARTNERSHIPS CAN BE

DEVELOPED TO INSPIRE THE SPIRIT AND PRODUCTS OF VOLUNTEERISM.

MORE IMPORTANTLY, I WOULD (AGUE THAT CASE CAN BE MADE TO

FINANCIAL SUPPORT TO THOSE VOMITERS WHO WISH TO ACT OM THEIR

IMPULSE TO SERVE, BUT ARE PREVENTED PION DOING SO BECAUSE OF

BARRIERS SUCH AS TRANSPORTATION, CHILD CARE, OR OTHER LIFE

CIRCUMSTANCES. VOIANTEERISN IS NOT nu, BUT IT CAN BE POWERFUL

TOOL AS LINKAGE FOR RURAL DEVELOP) T. VOLUNTEERISM DOES NOT

COMPETE WITH THE ECONOMY, IT ADDS TO ITS HEALTH.

5. DOES VOLUNTEERISM COMPETE WITH COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP OR MAKE IT

MORE DIVERSE?

OUR EXPERIENCE WITH STUDENTS SHOWS US THAT THOSE WHO ARE ACTIVE IN

CAMPUS ORGANIZATIONS AND COMMUNITY LIFE DURING THEIR UNIVERSITY

DAYS ACQUIRE SUMS AND DEVELOP POSITIVE ATTITUDES TOWARD SERVICE

THAT ARE TRANSFERRABLE TO THE SO- CALLED REAL WORLD. MOREOVER, IT

IS THIS RIND OF LEADERSHIP TRAINING THAT IS NEEDED TO KEEP

RENEWING THE POOL FROM WHICH COMMUNITIES DRAW FOR LEADERSHIP

SUCCESSION. ALL OF US ARE AWARE OE THE EXTENT TO WHICH

COMMUNITIES NEED DIVERSE CITIZEN INVOLVENENT TO MAINTAIN COMMUNITY

VITALITY. BEMIDJI STATE SEES VOLUNTEERISM AS AWAY IN WHICH IT

CAN CONTRIBUTE TO THE PREPARATION OF DIVERSE CONSTITUENCY OUT OF

WHICH COMMUNITIES WILL FIND THEIR LEADERS OF THE FUTURE.

I WOULD NOW Lail TO TURN TO IVO OF THOSE FUTURE COMMUNITY mums,

ANN HAUCO AND TISH SANBORN, AND ASK THEM TO REPORT TO YOU ON THEIR

ACTIVITIES IN STUDENT VOLUNTEERISM.
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STATEMENT OF RICK JACKSON, ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT, METRO MINNEAPOLIS YMCA

TO THE CONGRESSIONAL HEARING ON NATIONAL SERVICE, REPRESENTATIVE GERRY SIKORSKI,

ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA, NOVEMBER 13, 1987.

The Minneapolis YMCA has participated actively in

the work of thA L'innesota Task Force on Youth Service and Work. We strongly

support the establishment of the Minnesota Youth Service Corps.

The YMCA has an ;11storic commitment to the healthy development of youth.

This development is directed at both the well-being of the individual and

service to the community. The YMCA offers programs, and supports those of

other institutions, which instill qualities of compassion, courtesy, honesty

and tolerance. These civic values we view as essential to the development of

citizenship and an ethic of social responsibility.

In recent years, many keen observers have noted signs indicating an

erosion of soniel responsibility and an increase in radical individualism.

Yankelovich (New Rules) notes the rampant "search for self-fulfillment."

Bellah (Habits of the Heart) identifies a "cancerqus individualism" which may

eclipse the social contract of community responsibility necessary for democracy

itself to function.

If, as Robert F. Kennedy claimed, the youth of our nation are the

clearest mirror of our performance as a society, we face a clouded mirror today.

The Ce-iegie Foundation reports a 15 year decline in expectation of youth's

participation in the political life of the country, in any form of altruism,

or of concern for the interests of others. Over the same time there has been

a steady rise in youth interest in those values associated with money, status

and power.
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The values showing the greatest increases since 1972 are:

1. being well off financially

2. being an authority

3. having administrative responsibility for others

4. Obtaining recognition

The values which shot the largest decline are:

1. developing a philosophy of life

2. participating in community affairs

3. cleaning up the environment

4. promoting racial understanding

In spite of record affluence, there exists a failure of moral commitment.

Harvard's Robert Coles points out the irony in his work. Many of the "culturally

deprived" he has studied have a moral sensibility. Many children of wealth

and status have the finest education money can buy but lack a moral purpose.

Says Coles, "They need to be asked of, to be challenged to think of others,

to break out of the cell, the imprisonment of the self."

Our society is facing a crucial choice. We can resign ourselves to the

trends and accept the inevitable costs of cynicism, passivity and narrow

self-interest. In this case, declining vitality of our democratic institutions

will be the result. Or we can reclaim the initiative, challenging our youth,

and ourselves, to an ethic of service and produc ,e contributions to the com-

munity we share.

A program of youth service claims the initiative. It targets public

resources in a creative way to help youth make the kinds of contributions to

community which they uniquely can make. A youth service corps will fill the

i
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gap between teen leadership efforts we are making in the schools, YMCA and

other agencies, and the adult citizenship roles we expect in this society.

The Ford Foundation study, National Service: What Would It Mean? sums up

the opportunity we face: "National Service is one of the few innovations on

the political horizon that, if adopted in comprehensive form, might transform

the conditions of life in the United States." Grand words. Yet, what more

precious resource do we have than our youth, what more noble challenge to pass

on than getting something done for society that needs doing?

The YMCA finds much that is attractive in the Minnesota Youth Service

Preliminary Design. Especially encouraging is the team or group woe oproach

to the service corps, the rural and urban service componenets, and toe design

to collaborate extensively with existing community-based social service

agencies, like the YMCA, to carry out the work tasks of the service corps.

We believe that a Minnesota Youth Service Corps would add an appropriate

and timely contribution of state resources to assist in the essential tasks

of youth development and delivery of community services. We look forward to

continuing to work to make the Minnesota Youth Service Corps a reality.

Thank you for this opportunity to express our support.
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Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you very much.
[Whereupon, at 11:50 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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